Texas Water

Development Board

Application 12-585-Transmission Line: Renamed
to the Surface Water Supply Project (SWSP),
this project includes a 96-inch and 84-inch
waterline that will bring treated surface water
approximately 40 miles from the expanded
NEWPP on the east side of Houston at Lake
Houston to the WHCRWA and the North Fort
Bend Water Authority (NFBWA) on the west side
of Houston. The project also includes two large
booster pump stations that will push water along
the route. There is a Central Pump Station
designed to deliver 200MGD and a Repump
Station designed to deliver 172MGD. Several
large meter stations will be required as well. This
project is being managed by the WHCRWA
although the general cost share is 55%
WHCRWA and 45% NFBWA. A portion of this
project is currently being funded by a TWDB WIF



loan of $41.2M and a 2015 SWIFT multi-year
total loan of $325.44M.

This project is needed to convert from
groundwater to surface water to comply with the
Harris Galveston Subsidence District (HGSD)
Regulatory Plan and to satisfy growing
population in the WHCRWA and NFBWA.

As the design has progressed and routes have
been refined, challenges with the congested
urban pipeline corridor has resulted in right of
way acquisition challenges and need to include
additional tunnels. Projected costs have
Increased resulting In this additional loan
request.
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Legal Authority

The legal authority under which the applicant was created and operates.: OTHER

Legal Authority Other Desc: Comment: The WHCRWA was created by the 77th Legislature, with
passage of House Bill No. 1842 in May 2001, as amended (the “Act”), to accomplish the
provisions provided in Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution.



Comment: The WHCRWA was created by the 77th Legislature, with passage of House Bill No. 1842 in
May 2001, as amended (the “Act”), to accomplish the provisions provided in Article XVI, Section 59 of
the Texas Constitution.



General Information

County: Harris
County: Fort Bend
Name of Entity: West Harris Co Regional WA

System Contact Physical Address
Address 1:

Address 2: 3100 West Alabama
City: Houston

State: TX

Zip: 77098-0000

Phone: (713) 527-6427

Fax: (713) 527-6338

Website: www.whcrwa.com

System Contact Mailing Address
Address 1:

Address 2: 3100 West Alabama
City: Houston

State: TX

Zip: 77098-0000

Description

Brief description of the project: 12-585-Transmission Line: Renamed to the Surface Water Supply
Project (SWSP), this project includes a 96-inch and 84-inch waterline that will bring treated surface
water approximately 40 miles from the expanded NEWPP on the east side of Houston at Lake
Houston to the WHCRWA and the North Fort Bend Water Authority (NFBWA) on the west side of
Houston. The project also includes two large booster pump stations that will push water along the
route. There is a Central Pump Station designed to deliver 200MGD and a Repump Station
designed to deliver 172MGD. Several large meter stations will be required as well. This project is
being managed by the WHCRWA although the general cost share is 55% WHCRWA and 45%
NFBWA. A portion of this project is currently being funded by a TWDB WIF loan of $41.2M and a
2015 SWIFT multi-year total loan of $325.44M.

This project is needed to convert from groundwater to surface water to comply with the Harris
Galveston Subsidence District (HGSD) Regulatory Plan and to satisfy growing population in the

WHCRWA and NFBWA.

As the design has progressed and routes have been refined, challenges with the congested urban



pipeline corridor has resulted in right of way acquisition challenges and need to include additional
tunnels. Projected costs have increased resulting in this additional loan request.

Officers/Members

Applicant's Officers and Members

Bruce G. Parker
President

Larry A. Weppler
Vice President

Douglas (Cam) Postle
Secretary

Gary Struzick
Assistant Vice President

Eric Hansen
Assistant Secretary

Mark Janneck
Director

Michael Thornhill
Director

Karla Cannon
Director

Dennis Gorden
Director

Primary Contact

Name: Melinda Silva
Title: Deputy Program Manager, WHCRWA
Address 1: 3100 West Alabama



Address 2:

City: Houston
State: TX

Zip: 77098-0000

Phone: (713) 527-6427
Fax: (713) 527-6338
Email: melinda.silva@dannenbaum.com

Applicant's Contributors

the board

77098-0000

Contributor Type Firm | Contact Address Phone Fax Email
Name Name
Applicant Dannen |Wayne |3100 West 713-527-|713-527-|\wayne.ahrens@da
Engineer baum G. Alabama 6378 6338 nnenbaum.com
Engineer|Ahrens, [Houston
ing P.E. TX
Corporat 77098-0000
ion
Bond Counsel Allen James |[3200 Southwest [713-860-|713-860-|jboone@abhr.com
Boone |A. Freeway, Suite 6404 6604
Humphri |Boone |2600
es Houston
Robinso TX
n, LLP 77027-0000
Financial Advisor |Post Terrell |3 Riverway, Suite |713-621-|713-651-|terrell.palmer@hillt
Oak Palmer |1400 4094 9361 opsecurities.com
Municipa Houston
I TX
Advisors 77056-0000
LLC
Certified Public Myrtle  [Mary 3401 Louisiana 713-759-|713-758-|mary_jarmon@mc
Accountant (or Cruz, Jarmon |Street, Suite 400 |1368 1264 ruz.com
other appropriate |Inc. Houston
rep X
77002-0000
Legal Counsel Allen Alex E. 3200 Southwest |713-860-|713-860-|agarcia@abhr.co
Boone |Garcia |Freeway, Suite 6404 6614 m
Humphri 2600
es Houston
Robinso TX
n, LLP 77027-0000
Any other Munsch |Tom R. |700 Milam Street, |713-222- hoarber@munsch.
Contributor Hardt Barber |Suite 2700 4081 com
representing the |Kopf & Houston
Applicant before [Harr, TX
the board P.C. 77002-2806
Any other Dannen |Melinda 3100 West 713-527-|713-527-|melinda.silva@da
Contributor baum Silva, P. |Alabama 6427 6338 nnenbaum.com
representing the |Engineer|E. Houston
Applicant before |ing X




Any other Allen Alia 3200 Southwest |713-860-|713-860-|avinson@abhr.co
Contributor Boone |Vinson |Freeway, Suite 6449 6649 m
representing the  [Humphri 2600
Applicant before |es Houston
the board Robinso TX
nLLP 77027-0000
Any other Other See See Attached
Contributor Dannen |Attached |Houston
representing the |baum X
Applicant before |Contibut
the board ors
Any other Robert |Jan 700 Milan Street, [832-871- j.bartholomew@rw
Contributor W. Baird |Bartholo |Suite 1300 5295 baird.com
representing the |& Co., |mew Houston
Applicant before |Inc. TX
the board 77002-0000
Any other Robert |Ryan 700 Milan Street, |832-871- rnesmith@rwbaird
Contributor W. Baird [Nesmith |Suite 1300 5293 .com
representing the |& Co., Houston
Applicant before |Inc. TX
the board 77002-0000

Contributor Contracts (documents follow this page)

986696

Program Administration & Engineering

986697
Legal
986698
financial
986699
CPA
987400
Legal
987401
Legal
1038854

See Additional Attachments

986696

Program Administration

987400
Legal
1038857
Financial
1038858
Financial




DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
LETTER OF AGREEMENT
FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into this 6th day of June, 2001, by and between Dannenbaum
Engineering Corporation of Harris County, Texas (hereinafter called the "Engineer"), and West Harris
County Regional Water Authority (hereinafter called the "Authority").

That whereas the Authority has requested basic services of the Engineer in relation to:

General Engineering Consultant Services for the operation of the West Harris County Regional Water
Authority (herein called the “Project”) to include but not be limited to:

a. Providing general engineering services as needed

b. Attending meetings of the Authority, Districts within the Authority, and other agencies
¢. Completion of a Water Rate Study

d. Preparation of a Ground Water Reduction Plan

e. Preliminary and final design of water supply facilities

NOW, THEREFORE, the AUTHORITY and the ENGINEER, in consideration of the mutual covenants
hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

Upon receipt of the executed copy of this Agreement, the Engineer will perform services to provide the
Authority with the data, information or opinion requested, proceed with the work as expeditiously as
practical, inform the Authority of any delays and provide to the Authority with a minimum of two
formalized copies of the final product or findings.

The Authority will place at the Engineer's disposal all available information pertinent to the Project
including previous reports and any other relative data and will arrange for and provide access to the
Engineer, without liability of any nature to the Engineer except for Engineer's own misconduct, to enter
upon public and private lands as required for the Engineer to perform his work under this Agreement.

Payments for services of the Engineer will be based on payroll costs of salaries and wages times a factor
for general overhead and profit (see Exhibit "A"). Reimbursable expenses, or services and expenses of
sub-consultants, will be charged at Engineer’s cost. Any reimbursable expenses, or services and expenses
of sub-consultants, in excess of $2,000 will be invoiced directly to the Authority.

Reimbursable expenses shall mean the Engineer’s actual expense of transportation and subsistence of
principals, employees and consultants when traveling in connection with the Project, consultant’s fees,
field office expenses, toll telephone calls and telegrams, reproduction of reports, drawings and similar
Project related items.

Payments for services, additional services and reimbursable expenses shall be made by the Authority
within sixty (60) days after receipt of Engineer's statement.

Termination of this Agreement prior to completion must be made in writing and may be made by either
party. If this Agreement is terminated at any time by either party, the Engineer shall be paid for services
actually performed.

If, prior to termination of this Agreement, any work is suspended in whole or in part for more than three
months, or abandoned, after written notice from the Authority, the Engineer shall be paid for services
performed prior to receipt of such notice from the Authority.

All documents, including original drawings, estimates, specifications, field notes and data are and shall

remain the property of the Engineer as instruments of service. The Authority may at his expense obtain a
set of reproducibles.
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NOTWITHSTANDING anything to the contrary herein, all fees and charges due to Dannenbaum
Engineering Corporation under this agreement shall be paid only from funds raised by the Authority.
None of the members of the Board of Directors of the Authority have any personal liability of any nature
or amount for any of the fees or charges due hereunder.

The parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

CLIENT: ENGINEER:

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION

I 1/

Waynﬁé. Ahrens, P.E.
Principal




EXHIBIT “A”

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY SALARY COST

MARCH, 2001

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION SALARY COST PER HOUR

Clerks, Printers, etc. 25.00 55.00
Secretaries 35.00 65.00
Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst. 65.00 85.00
CAD Manager 85.00 110.00
System Analyst, Computer Operators 60.00 85.00
Computer Technicians I, Draftsmen I 25.00 50.00
Computer Technicians I & III, Draftsmen II & III 45.00 85.00
Designers, Grade [ & II 60.00 85.00
Designers, Grade I1I 70.00 100.00
4 Man Survey Crew 120.00 165.00
3 Man Survey Crew 95.00 140.00
2 Man Survey Crew 65.00 110.00
Party Chief 45.00 70.00
Instrument Technicians 25.00 50.00
Rodmen, Chainmen 20.00 35.00
Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor 80.00 115.00
Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor 110.00 150.00
Inspectors, Project Representatives 50.00 85.00
Engineers I & 11, Engineering Assistant 50.00 80.00
Engineers II[, Engineering Associate 65.00 100.00
Engineers IV 75.00 110.00
Engineers V, Project Manager 100.00 150.00
Engineers VI, Principal, Division Manager, Project Director 135.00 250.00

COMPUTER COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

MICROSTATION/AUTOCAD: $ 10 per Workstation Hour

GPS RTK: $350 per Day (Survey)

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 4” x 117)
Xerox Prints $ 1.00 per Square Foot
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot

G:\1110:3487-01NAGREEMEN.doc




PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this “ Agreement”) is by and
between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the “Authority”) and
Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective as of this 13th
day of October, 2010.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously executed that certain Dannenbaum
Engineering Corporation Letter of Agreement for Consulting Services dated June 6,
2001 (the “Letter Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to engage Engineer to perform certain
professional engineering services (“Services”);

WHEREAS, this Agreement is intended to supersede and replace the Letter
Agreement; provided, however, that any outstanding Work Authorizations approved
pursuant to the Letter Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall
hereafter be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L ENGINEER’S RESPONSIBILITIES. Engineer agrees to perform or furnish
professional engineering services for the Authority as set out herein and to give
professional engineering consultation and advice to the Authority in its capacity as
the Authority’s Engineer for the compensation set forth herein.

A, SCOPE OF SERVICES. There are two types of Services provided under
this Agreement: Program and Construction Management Services and Additional
Services.
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1.

Program and Construction Management Services.

The Authority and Engineer understand and agree that routine program
management and construction management services (“Program and Construction
Management Services”) shall include the following;:

a. Attending meetings of the Authority and representing the
Authority at meetings and conferences;

On-site inspections of facilities;

Preparing letter reports;

Correspondence with regulatory agencies;

Renewing or amending permits;

Managing design consultants;

Reviewing construction plans and specifications;

Coordinating with Authority operator and other consultants;
Communication among service providers; and

Other miscellaneous items of work relating to routine operations
and business of the Authority.

5@ e Ao o

— e

Engineer shall attend the regular monthly meetings of the Authority. Program
and Construction Management Services do not require a separate Work
Authorization, as defined below.

2.

Additional Services.

Additional Services shall include the following:

1.

296127_2.doc

Field surveys to collect information required for design, including
photogrammetry, and related office computations and drafting.

Special studies and analysis relating to the Authority’s facilities.

Services of a resident project representative (“Project Representative”),
and other field personnel as requested or agreed to by the Authority for
extensive continuous or part-time on-the-site observation of construction
and for performance of required construction layout surveys.

Preparation and submittal of funding applications to the Texas Water
Development Board (“TWBD”), including related appearances before the
TWBD.

Land surveys and establishment of boundaries and monuments, and
related office computations and drafting.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

B.

Construction and control staking to delineate the location of all
improvements.

Preparation of property or easement descriptions.
Preparation of any special reports required for marketing of bonds.

Appearances before regulatory agencies for any purpose other than
approval of design drawings and documents.

Assistance to the Authority as an expert witness in any litigation with
third parties arising from the development or construction of Authority
projects.

Special investigations involving detailed consideration of operation,
maintenance and overhead expenses; preparation of rate schedules; and
special feasibility studies.

Soil and foundation investigations coordination, including field and
laboratory  tests, borings, related engineering analyses, and
recommendations.

Detailed mill, shop and/or laboratory inspection of materials and
equipment.

Travel and subsistence required of Engineer and authorized by the
Authority.

Additional copies of reports, specifications, and additional copies of
drawings over five copies.

Preparation of applications and supporting documents for
government grants or planning advances for public works projects.

Preparation of environmental statements and assistance to owner in
preparing for and attending public hearings.

Revision of design drawings after a definite plan has been approved
by the Authority.

Any other Services approved in a Work Authorization not specifically
described herein.

WORK AUTHORIZATIONS.  All Services, other than Program and

Construction Management Services as defined below, shall require a written work
authorization (“Work Authorization”), and each Work Authorization shall include:

296127_2.doc




a. Description of work;

b. Description of support data to be supplied by the Authority;

& Basis of compensation;

d. Budget of estimated fees;

e. Completion schedule;

b Statement that performance of the work will be in accordance
with this Agreement;
Proposed project manager or administrator, if applicable;

h. Special provisions applicable to the Work Authorization;

i. Engineer’s signature and date;

i Approval and signature block for Authority; and

k. Effective date of Authority’s acceptance and date of authorization.

II. COMPENSATION, BILLING, AND PAYMENT. The Authority shall pay
Engineer for Services in accordance with the following:

A.  PROGRAM AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES. The
Authority shall pay Engineer for Program and Construction Management Services
based on time and materials plus reimbursable expenses in accordance with the Rate
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.

B. ADDITOINAL SERVICES. The Authority shall pay Engineer for
Additional Services based either on (i) time and materials plus reimbursable expenses
in accordance with the Rate Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A or (ii) a lump sum
basis, each as determined in the applicable Work Authorization.

C. PAYMENTS. Engineer shall submit monthly written invoices for services
performed during the preceding month to the Authority’s bookkeeper, and the
Authority will use its best efforts to make payment within forty-five (45) days of
receipt of invoice. Unless special arrangements are made, if the Authority fails to
make payment within 45 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice therefor, the
amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the
maximum rate allowed by law, if less), from the 46t day. In the event of disputed or
contested billing, only that portion so contested may be withheld from payment, and
the undisputed portion will be paid. No interest will accrue on any contested portion
of the billing until mutually resolved.
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II. ~ STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

A, STANDARD OF CARE. Engineer’s services shall be performed in
accordance with the standard of professional practice ordinarily exercised by
professional engineers at the time and within the locality where the Services are
performed commensurate with the requirements of the civil engineering profession
and through persons ordinarily engaged therein.

B. DELAYS. If events beyond the control of the Authority or Engineer,
including, but not limited to, fire, flood, explosion, riot, stroke, war, process
shutdown, act of God or the public enemy, and act or regulation of any government
agency, result in delay to any schedule established in this Agreement, such schedule
shall be amended to the extent necessary to compensate for such delay. In the event
such delay exceeds ninety (90) days, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable
adjustment in compensation if mutually agreeable to the Engineer and the Authority.

C. TERMINATION/SUSPENSION. Either party may terminate this
Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. The Authority shall
pay Engineer for all Services rendered prior to termination. Copies of all completed
or partially completed designs, drawings, specifications, reports or any other
document prepared by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement shall be delivered to the
Authority within fourteen (14) days of the effective date of termination, at no
additional cost to the Authority. In the event either party defaults in its obligations
under this Agreement (including Authority’s obligation to make the payments
required hereunder), the non-defaulting party may suspend performance under this
Agreement after seven (7) days written notice stating its intention to suspend
performance under the Agreement if cure of such default is not commenced and
diligently continued.

D.  OPINIONS OF CONSTRUCTION COST. Any opinion of probable
construction costs prepared by Engineer is supplied for the general guidance of the
Authority only. Because Engineer has no control over competitive bidding or market
conditions, Engineer cannot guarantee the accuracy of such opinions as compared to
contract bids or actual costs to the Authority.

E. RELATIONSHIP WITH CONTRACTORS. Engineer shall serve as the
Authority’s professional representative for the Services, and may make
recommendations to the Authority concerning actions relating to the Authority’s
contractors, but Engineer specifically disclaims any authority to direct or supervise
the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction selected by
the Authority’s contractors.

F. INSURANCE. Engineer shall furnish certificates of insurance to the
Authority evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements hereof. Certificates
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shall name Engineer, name of insurance company, policy number, term of coverage,
and limits of coverage. Engineer, shall cause its insurance companies to provide the
Authority with at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of any reduction in the limit
of liability by endorsement of the policy, cancellation or non-renewal of the insurance
coverage required under this Agreement. Engineer shall obtain such insurance from
such companies having a Bests rating of B+/VII or better, licensed or approved to
transact business in the state in which the Services shall be performed, and shall obtain
such insurance of the following types and minimum limits:

1. Worker’s Compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, and Employers’ liability coverage with a limit of not less
than $500,000 each employee for Occupational Disease: $500,000 policy
limit for Occupational Disease; and Employer’s Liability of $500,000
each accident.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance including coverage for
Products/Completed Operation, Blanket Contractual, Contractors’
Protective Liability Broad Form Property Damage, Personal
Injury/ Advertising Liability, and Bodily Injury and Property Damage
with limits of not less than

$2,000,000 general aggregate limit
$1,000,000 each occurrence, combined single limit
$1,000,000 aggregate Products, combined single limit

$1,000,000 aggregate Personal Injury/ Advertising Liability

3. Business Automobile Liability coverage applying to owned, non-
owned and hired automobiles with limits not less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property
Damage combined.

4. Umbrella Excess Liability insurance written as excess of Employer’s
Liability, with limits not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence
combined single limit.

5. Professional Liability insurance with limits not less than $2,000,000
each claim/annual aggregate.

The Authority and the Authority’s agents and employees shall be added as additional
insureds to all coverages required above, except those in paragraphs (1) and (5). All
policies written on behalf of Engineer shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of
the Authority and the Authority’s agents and employees, with the exception of
insurance required under paragraph (5). In addition, all of the aforesaid policies shall
be endorsed to provide that they are primary coverages and not in excess of any other
insurance available to the Authority, and without rights of contribution or recovery
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against the Authority or from any such other insurance available to the Authority. The
Engineer, and not the Authority, shall be responsible for paying the premiums and
deductibles, if any, that may from time to time be due under all of the insurance policies
required of the Engineer.

G. INDEMNITY. ENGINEER SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND
HOLD HARMLESS THE AUTHORITY, ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND ASSIGNS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL
CLAIMS, DEMANDS, OR CAUSES OF ACTION (AND ALL LOSSES, LIABILITIES,
EXPENSES, AND JUDGMENTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES,
COURT COSTS, AND OTHER EXPENSES INCURRED IN ENFORCING THIS
INDEMNITY PROVISION) OR FROM ANY OTHER LOSS OR CLAIM ARISING
FROM THIRD PARTY PERSONAL INJURY OR PROPERTY DAMAGE BROUGHT
BY ENGINEER OR ANY OF ENGINEER’S EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,
AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY OR SUPPORT CONSULTANTS, OR
REPRESENTATIVES, OR BY ANY THIRD PARTY, BASED UPON, OR IN
CONNECTION WITH, RESULTING FROM, OR ARISING OUT OF, THE
NEGLIGENT ACT OR, OMISSION, OR MISCONDUCT OF ENGINEER’S
EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY OR
SUPPORT CONSULTANTS, OR REPRESENTATIVES.

H.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. In the performance of work or
Services herein agreed to, Engineer shall be deemed an independent contractor, and
any of its employees performing work required hereunder shall be deemed solely
employees of Engineer, or its subcontractors where appropriate.

L. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All documents, including original
drawings, estimates, specifications, periodic construction progress notes, and data
(collectively, the “Documents”) shall be the property of the Authority, provided that
Engineer has received full compensation due pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,
in consideration of which it is mutually agreed that the Authority will use them solely
in connection with the project for which such documents were designed, except with
the express consent of Engineer, which consent will not be unreasonable withheld.
Engineer may retain reproducible copies of such documents at Engineer’s sole cost
and expense. The Engineer agrees that it shall not reuse any portion of the Documents
that is unique to the Authority’s projects or projects for any other client, without the
express written consent of the Authority, which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld.

I ADDRESS OF NOTICE AND COMMUNICATIONS. All notices and
communications under this Agreement to be mailed or delivered to the Engineer shall
be to the following address:
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Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation
3100 West Alabama

Houston, Texas 77098

Attn. Mr. Wayne Ahrens, P.E.

All notices and communications under this Agreement to be mailed or
delivered to the Authority shall be to the following address:

West Harris County Regional Water Authority
¢/ o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP
3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600

Houston, Texas 77027

Attn: Mr. James A. Boone

K. AMENDMENT. This Agreement, upon execution by both parties hereto,
can be amended only by a written instrument signed by both parties.

L. ASSIGNMENT. The rights and obligations of this Agreement may
assigned by either party only upon written agreement of the other party. This
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any permitted assigns.

M. NO WAIVER. No waiver by either party or any default by the other
party in the performance of any particular section of this Agreement shall invalidate
any other section of this Agreement or operate as a waiver of any future default,
whether like or different in character.

N. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY. Nothing contained in this
Agreement, nor the performance of the parties hereunder, is intended to benefit, nor
shall inure to the benefit of, any third party, including the Authority’s contractors, if
any.

O.  SEVERABILITY. The various terms, provisions and covenants herein
contained shall be deemed to be separate and severable, and the invalidity or
unenforceability of any of them shall not affect or impair the validity or enforceability
of the remainder.

P. RECITALS. The recitals written above are hereby found to be true and
correct and incorporated in this Agreement for all purposes.

Q. AUTHORITY. The persons signing this Agreement warrant that they
have the authority to sign as, or on behalf of, the party for whom they are signing.

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS]
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING

REG?L, Pw:trﬂomw CORPORATION
By: Liiar iy By: é@ﬂz /rfy %M/ f/ /ﬁ

Bruce Parker Name: / /ve= (o %%[
President, Board of Directors Title: £y scct /= / o / S pPEAO07
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EXHIBIT A

RATE SCHEDULE
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EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

SEPTEMBER 2010

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION BILLING RATE PER HOUR
Clerks, Printers, etc. 40.00
Secretaries 65.00
Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst. 85.00
CAD Manager 90.00
System Analyst, Computer Operators 75.00
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen | 50.00
Computer Technicians Il & 1ll, Draftsmen 1l & [l 83.00
Designers, Grade | & |l 83.00
Designers, Grade I 110.00
3 Man Survey Crew 165.00
2 Man Survey Crew 130.00
1 Man Survey Crew 115.00
Party Chief 77.00
Instrument Technicians 49.00
Rodmen, Chainmen 42.00
Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor 140.00
Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying 150.00
Inspector | £8.00
Inspector Il, Project Representative 69.00
Senior Project Representative 98.00
Engineers | & Il, Engineering Assistant 92.00
Engineers [, Engineering Associate 115.00
Engineers [V 130.00
Engineers V 165.00
Engineers VI 200.00
Principal, Project Director 250.00
GPS RTK: $350.00/Day (Survey)

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 5" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot

Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot




FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
” Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 1st day of October, 2011 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has entered into that certain Joint Facilities
Agreement with North Fort Bend Water Authority, under which the Authority is
required to cause certain contractors to agree in writing: (i) to carry liability insurance
that names both Authority and North Fort Bend Water Authority as an “additional
insured,” and (ii) to defend and indemnify both the Owner and North Fort Bend
Water Authority for the negligence of such contractor;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

I. Section IILF. of the Agreement shall be amended to add the following
paragraphs:

Additionally, North Fort Bend Water Authority and its directors shall be
added as additional insureds to all coverages required above, except for those
requirements of paragraphs “1” and “5,” with respect to the Second Source
Waterline, as defined herein. All such policies written on behalf of the Engineer
shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the North Fort Bend Water
Authority and the North Fort Bend Water Authority’s directors, with the
exception of insurance required under paragraph “5.” In addition, all of the
aforesaid policies shall be endorsed to provide that they are primary coverages
and not in excess of any other insurance available to the North Fort Bend Water
Authority, and without rights of contribution or recovery against the North Fort
Bend Water Authority or from any such other insurance available to the North
Fort Bend Water Authority. The Engineer, and not the North Fort Bend Water
Authority, shall be responsible for paying the premiums and deductibles, if any,
that may from time to time be due under all of the insurance policies required of
the Engineer.
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II.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Second Source Waterline” shall
have the same definition as that provided by the Joint Facilities Agreement for
Segment 0, Segment 1A, Bellaire Pump Station, and Second Source
Waterline/ Pump Stations by and between the Authority and North Fort Bend
Regional Water Authority dated July 1, 2011, as amended.

Section III.G. of the Agreement shall be amended to add the following

paragraph:

11

AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION FOR THIS AGREEMENT, ENGINEER
SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS NORTH FORT BEND
WATER AUTHORITY, ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES,
AND AFFILIATES, FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS,
DEMANDS, OR CAUSES OF ACTION (AND ALL LOSSES, LIABILITIES,
EXPENSES, AND JUDGEMENTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH,
INCLUDING ATTORNEY’S FEES AND EXPENSES, COURT COSTS, AND
OTHER _EXPENSES INCURRED IN ENFORCING THIS INDEMNITY
PROVISION) BROUGHT BY ENGINEER OR ANY OF ENGINEER'S
EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY,
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR SUBCONSULTANTS (REGARDLESS OF WHETHER
SAME WERE SELECTED BY ENGINEER, AUTHORITY, OR SOME OTHER
PARTY), OR REPRESENTATIVES, OR BY ANY THIRD PARTY, BASED UPON,
OR IN CONNECTION WITH, RESULTING FROM, OR ARISING OUT OF, THE
NEGLIGENCE OR MISCONDUCT OF ENGINEER'S EMPLOYEES,
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY,
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR SUBCONSULTANTS (REGARDLESS OF WHETHER
SAME WERE SELECTED BY ENGINEER, AUTHORITY, OR SOME OTHER
PARTY) OR REPRESENTATIVES WITH RESPECT TO SERVICES PEFORMED
IN RELATION TO THE SECOND SOURCE WATERLINE, AS DEFINED
HEREIN. THIS INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION WILL
APPLY WHETHER SUCH ACTS OR OMISSIONS ARE CONDUCTED BY THE
ENGINEER OR ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, SUBCONSULTANT OR AGENT OF
THE ENGINEER.

With the amendments herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and

effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are contemplated
by these amendments.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUT ITY CORPORATION
n/ 1/ /
1/ L / y 7! _ / /;’.
fuce G. Parker Wayn€ G. Ahrens, P.E. '
President, Board of Directors Executive Vice President
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SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“ Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“ Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 13t day of June, 2012 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on October 1, 2011.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L Section ILA. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule to
add classification for Right-of-Way Manager as attached hereto as Revised Exhibit A.

II. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION

A / // o)) 2

Wayyé G. Ahrens, P.E.
President, Board of Directors Executive Vice President
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REVISED EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

JUNE 2012

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

Clerks, Printers, etc.

Secretaries

Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst.
CAD Manager

System Analyst, Computer Operators
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen |
Computer Technicians Il & Ill, Draftsmen Il & {II
Designers, Grade | & I

Designers, Grade lil

3 Man Survey Crew

2 Man Survey Crew

1 Man Survey Crew

Party Chief

Instrument Technicians

Rodmen, Chainmen

Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor

Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying
Inspector |

Inspector |, Project Representative

Senior Project Representative

Right-of-Way Manager

Engineers | & Il, Engineering Assistant
Engineers IlI, Engineering Associate
Engineers IV

Engineers V

Engineers VI

Principal, Project Director

GPS RTK:

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 %" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot

Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot

BILLING RATE PER HOUR

40.00
65.00
85.00
90.00
75.00
50.00
83.00
83.00
110.00
165.00
130.00
115.00
77.00
49.00
42.00
140.00
150.00
58.00
69.00
98.00
165.00
92.00
115.00
130.00
165.00
200.00
250.00

$350.00/Day (Survey)




THIRD AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Third Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 10t day of December, 2014 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on October 1, 2011 and the Second
Amendment on June 13, 2012.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L Section ILA. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule to as
attached hereto Revised Exhibit A.

II. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION

By: % By///’(/,u’/////'?u/ i

Wayng/G. Ahrens, P.E.
President, Board of Directors Executive Vice President
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REVISED EXHIBIT "A"
DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

December 2014

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION BILLING RATE PER HOUR
Clerks, Printers, efc. 40.00
Secretaries 70.00
Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst. 95.00
CAD Manager 119.00
System Analyst, Computer Operators 108.00
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen | 54.00
Computer Technicians Il & llI, Draftsmen | & Il} 87.00
Designers, Grade | &l 87.00
Designers, Grade il 130.00
3 Man Survey Crew 165.00
2 Man Survey Crew 130.00
1 Man Survey Crew 115.00
Party Chief 85.00
Instrument Technicians 50.00
Rodmen, Chainmen 42,00
Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor 145.00
Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying 170.00
inspectors, Project Representatives 75.00
Senior Project Representative 104.00
Right-of-Way Manager 165.00
Engineers | & I, Engineering Assistant 92.00
Engineers I, Engineering Associate 115.00
Engineers IV 144.00
Engineers V 170.00
Engineers Vi 225.00
Principal, Project Director 300.00
GPS RTK: $350.00/Day (Survey)

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTICN COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 12" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot
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FOURTH AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Fourth Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“ Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“ Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 8t day of July, 2015 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on QOctober 1, 2011, the Second
Amendment on June 13, 2012 and the Third Amendment on December 10, 2014.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L. Section 1I.A. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule {o as
attached hereto Revised Exhibit A.

I1. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION
i ﬁ By:z /4{// /L//]/%/
\P/esu:lent Board of Directors Wayn G Ahrens, P.E.

Executive Vice President
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REVISED EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

July 2015

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

Clerks, Printers, efc.

Secretaries

Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst.
CAD Manager

System Analyst, Computer Operators
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen |

Computer Technicians il & I, Draftsmen I} & i
Designers, Grade | & 1!

Designers, Grade il

3 Man Survey Crew

2 Man Survey Crew

1 Man Survey Crew

Party Chief

Instrument Technicians

Rodmen, Chainmen

Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor

Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying
Inspectors, Project Representatives '
Senior Project Representative

Right-of-Way Manager

Right-of-Way Agent

Engineers | & I, Engineering Assistant
Engineers i, Engineering Associate

Engineers IV

Engineers V

Engineers VI

Principal, Project Director

GPS RTK:

IN HOUSE REPRODPUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED}):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 12" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Velium $ 2.30 per Square Foot

G:\1110\TerttuiAHO1 TL Birate-schedule\WHCRWA_DEC Contract_Fourth Amendment

BILLING RATE PER HOUR

40.00
70.00
95.00
119.00
108.00
54.00
87.00
87.00
130.00
165.00
130.00
115.00
85.00
50.00
42.00
145.00
170.00
75.00
104.00
165.00
130.00
82.00
116.00
144.00
170.00
225.00
300.00

$350.00/Day {Survey)

8/5/2015




FIFTH AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Fifth Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“ Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“ Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 25t day of January, 2016 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on October 1, 2011, the Second
Amendment on June 13, 2012, the Third Amendment on December 10, 2014 and the
Fourth Amendment on July 8, 2015.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L Section IL.A. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule to as
attached hereto Revised Exhibit A.

I1. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION
i .
By: MW/ By: /K/ @«67,4/\,( Ul e t—
\Vize %esidéht, Board of Directors Wayne g Ahrens, P.E.
Executi¥e Vice President

G\ 110\3487-02\Contract Documents\DEC New Contract\Contract\Fifth Amendment to DEC_Engr Services Agreement.doc



REVISED EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

January 2016

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

Clerks, Printers, etc.

Secretaries

Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst.
CAD Manager

System Analyst, Computer Operators
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen |
Computer Technicians Il & HI, Draftsmen 11 & Il
Designers, Grade | & |1

Designers, Grade Il

3 Man Survey Crew

2 Man Survey Crew

1 Man Survey Crew

Party Chief

instrument Technicians

Rodmen, Chainmen

Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor

Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying
Inspectors, Project Representatives

Senior Project Representative

Right-of-Way Manager

Right-of-Way Agent

Engineers | & |1, Engineering Assistant
Engineers lil, Engineering Associate

Engineers IV

Engineers V

Engineers VI

Engineers, Vi

Principal, Project Director

GPS RTK:

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox : $ 0.05 per Copy (8 " x 117
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot
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BILLING RATE PER HOUR

40.00
70.00
95.00
119.00
108.00
54.00
87.00
87.00
130.00
165.00
130.00
115.00
85.00
50.00
42.00
145.00
170.00
75.00
104.00
165.00
130.00
92.00
145.00
144.00
170.00
225.00
290.00
300.00

$350.00/Day (Survey)

1/26/2016




ALLEN BOONE HUMPHBIES ROB INSON LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PHOENIX TOWER
3200 SOUTHWEST FREEWAY
SUITE 2600
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77027
TEL (713) 860-6400

FAX (713) 860-6401
abhr.com

May 13, 2015

Board of Directors
West Harris County Regional Water Authority

Dear Board of Directors:

We appreciate the opportunity to represent the West Harris County Regional
Water Authority as its legal counsel. Our experience has been that it is mutually
beneficial to set forth the role and responsibilities of both our law firm and the client.
That is the purpose of both this letter and the separate Standard Terms of Engagement
for Legal Services that is enclosed with this letter. This engagement letter replaces our
engagement letter dated September 14, 2005.

Client

The client for this engagement is West Harris County Regional Water Authority
(the “Authority”). This engagement does not create an attorney client relationship with
any related persons or entities, such as parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees,

officers, directors, shareholders, or partners.

Scope of Engagement-General Representation of Authority

We will serve as general counsel for the Authority. Our work in connection with
this representation will include, but will not be limited to, preparing documents and
agenda items for the meetings of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Authority and
its committees, reviewing minutes of those meetings, preparing various resolutions and
orders to be adopted by the Board, calling and canvassing any elections to be held,
preparing various legal notices required to be given, preparing real estate conveyances
(including deeds, easements, and encroachment agreements), and maintaining files and
records of the Authority required by the Public Information Act. We also will represent
the Authority, when authorized by the Board, in securing approvals from city and
county authorities, contract negotiation and preparation, application for permits, and
other legal services that the Authority may require from time to time.
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Scope of Engagement-Bond Counsel Services

We will perform services as bond counsel in connection with the authorization,
issuance and sale of bonds to be issued by the Authority to acquire and construct
facilities and finance Authority costs and projects, and to refund Authority bonds, as
may be authorized and issued hereafter for such purposes.

Our services as bond counsel will include: attending meetings with your
consultants in connection with the planning and authorization of such bond issues,
including consultation on federal income tax matters; reviewing of the official statement
prepared by the Authority’s underwriters, financial advisors or securities counsel in
connection with the sale of the bonds, but only for the limited purposes described in
such official statement; preparing the legal documents comprising the transcript of legal
proceedings for authorization and issuance of the bonds; preparing and submitting to
the Attorney General of Texas a transcript of legal proceedings for the bonds to obtain
the approval of the Attorney General and registration of the bonds by the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of Texas; preparing and filing legal documents required under
federal income tax law for the bonds; coordinating, in conjunction with the Authority’s
financial advisor, delivery of the bonds to the initial purchaser; and, if appropriate,
delivering at closing our approving opinion as to the validity of the bonds under Texas
law and the exclusion of interest on the bonds from gross income of the holders under
federal income tax law.

It is our understanding that the Authority will employ one or more recognized
investment banking firm(s) to serve as financial advisor(s) to the Authority and that
said firm(s) will be responsible for advising the Authority concerning the sale of the
bonds and will assist the Authority in the preparation of an Official Notice of Sale and
an Official Statement (the “Offering Documents”) in connection with each issue of the
bonds offered for sale to the public.

In our capacity as bond counsel, we will review those portions of the Offering
Documents which describe the Authority’s legal authority for issuance of the bonds to
determine whether such description conforms to and fairly summarizes relevant
provisions of Texas law. We also will review those portions of the Offering Documents
describing the resolution or indenture of the Board authorizing the bonds to determine
whether such description fairly summarizes the provisions of said resolution or
indenture. In addition, if requested, we will review such other portions of the Offering
Documents as describe matters of law and legal relationships of the Authority about
which we have knowledge. We will not, however, undertake to independently verify
any of the factual information contained in the Offering Documents, nor will we
conduct any investigation of the affairs of the Authority for the purpose of passing on
the accuracy or completeness of the Offering Documents. Since our role in connection

2.
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with the Offering Documents will be of an advisory rather than an investigatory nature,
said documents will contain a statement describing our services as outlined above and
stating that our limited participation may not be relied upon as an assumption of
responsibility for, or an expression of opinion of any kind with regard to, the accuracy
or completeness of the information contained therein.

Unless specifically requested by the Authority pursuant to terms and conditions
to be set forth in a separate engagement letter, we will not be responsible for advising
the Authority concerning the provisions of the various securities laws, including the
Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the securities laws of
the various states in which the bonds may be sold.

Scope of Engagement - Continuing Disclosure Services

Additionally, we will provide legal services in connection with the obligation of
the Authority to provide continuing disclosure pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15¢2-12, as such rule may be amended from time to time, with respect
to any bonds issued by the Authority. In connection with this engagement, we will
advise the Authority of its continuing disclosure obligations, prepare resolutions or
indentures to be adopted by the Board of Directors of the Authority in connection with
the Authority’s continuing disclosure obligation, and prepare the Authority’s
continuing disclosure filings with the assistance of the Authority’s bookkeeper, auditor,
financial advisors, operator, engineer and other Authority consultants.

General Understandings

We understand and agree that this is not an exclusive agreement, and you are
free to retain any other counsel of your choosing. We recognize that we shall be
disqualified from representing any other client with interests materially and directly
adverse to yours (i) in any matter which is substantially related to our representation of
you and (ii) with respect to any matter where there is a reasonable probability that
confidential information you furnished to us could be used to your disadvantage. You
understand and agree that, with those exceptions, we are free to represent other clients,
including clients whose interests may conflict with yours in litigation, business
transactions, or other legal matters. You agree that our representing you in this matter
will not prevent or disqualify us from representing clients adverse to you in other
matters and that you consent in advance to our undertaking such adverse
representations.

This engagement and our attorney-client relationship will be terminated when
we have completed the services in the matters covered by this engagement letter and
any written supplements to this engagement letter. If you later retain us to perform

e
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further or additional services, our attorney-client relationship will be established by
another engagement letter.

Cooperation

To enable us to render effectively the legal services contemplated, the Authority
has agreed to disclose fully and accurately all facts and keep us informed of all
developments relating to our representation. We necessarily must rely on the accuracy
and completeness of the facts and information you and your agents provide to us. To
the extent it is necessary for the Authority’s representatives to attend meetings in
connection with this matter, we will attempt to schedule them so that the convenience
of those representatives can be served.

Fees

Fees related to matters other than bond counsel services (i.e., fees for serving as
general counsel and for continuing disclosure services) are based on hourly rates and
will be based on the time spent by the lawyers, paralegals, and administrative
personnel who work on the matter. Billing rates vary according to the experience of the
individuals. In an effort to reduce overall legal costs, we utilize paralegal and
administrative assistant personnel whenever appropriate.

Our monthly bills will reflect all individuals that worked that month on the
Authority and their respective billing rates.

For our services as bond counsel in connection with the authorization, issuance,
and sale of bonds, the Authority will pay us, from the proceeds of sale of each issue or
installment of the bonds, the following:

a. an amount equal to 1.5% of the first $5,000,000 in principal amount of the
bonds; and
b. an amount equal to 0.5% of the principal amount of such bonds above said

first $5,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $20,000,000 in
principal amount; and

c. an amount equal to 0.4% of the principal amount of such bonds above

$20,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $35,000,000 in principal
amount; and
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d. an amount equal to 0.3% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$35,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $50,000,000 in principal
amount; and

e. an amount equal to 0.2% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$50,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $65,000,000 in principal
amount; and

f. an amount equal to 0.1% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$65,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $80,000,000 in principal
amount; and

g. an amount equal to 0.05% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$80,000,000 in principal amount.

The above fee schedule shall be applicable to each separate issue or installment of
bonds, whether new money bonds or refunding bonds, but shall only be due with
respect to bonds actually issued, sold, and delivered. Our fee for bond counsel services
for any separate issue or installment of the bonds shall not be less than $60,000, plus
charges for the actual expenses involved.

In the event the Authority determines that it is necessary or desirable to issue
bond anticipation notes or to obtain other forms of short-term financing, we will render
all bond counsel services necessary in connection therewith and our fee shall be set
forth in a separate engagement letter mutually agreed upon by the Authority and us.

Other Charges

In addition to our fees, there will be other charges for items incident to the
performance of our legal services, such as photocopying, messengers, travel expenses,
long distance telephone calls, facsimile transmissions, postage, overtime for secretaries
and other non legal staff, specialized computer applications such as computerized legal
research, and filing fees. The basis upon which we establish these other charges is set
forth in the Standard Terms of Engagement for Legal Services.

Investment Disclosures

The Firm's lawyers, directly or beneficially, may own interests in corporations
and other entities or in real property. If you are at all concerned about these individual
investments, we will be pleased to canvass our lawyers about their individual
investments in any entity or entities about which you may be concerned.

5.
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Withdrawal or Termination

Our relationship is based upon mutual consent and you may terminate our
representation at any time, with or without cause, by notifying us. Your termination of
our services will not affect your responsibility for payment of fees for legal services
rendered and of other charges incurred before termination and in connection with an
orderly transition of the matter.

We are subject to the rules of professional conduct for the jurisdictions in which
we practice, which list several types of conduct or circumstances that require or allow
us to withdraw from representing a client, including for example, nonpayment of fees
or costs, misrepresentation or failure to disclose material facts, fundamental
disagreements, and conflict of interest with another client. We try to identify in
advance and discuss with you any situation which may lead to our withdrawal, and if
withdrawal ever becomes necessary, we give you written notice of our withdrawal. If
we elect to withdraw for any reason, you will take all steps necessary to free us of any
obligation to perform further, including the execution of any documents necessary to
complete our withdrawal, and we will be entitled to be paid for all services rendered
and other charges accrued on your behalf to the date of withdrawal.

Other

If the foregoing, including the items set forth in the enclosed Standard Terms of
Engagement For Legal Services, correctly reflects your understanding of the terms and
conditions of our representation, please so indicate by executing the enclosed copy of
this letter in the space provided below and return it to the undersigned. Please contact
me if you have any questions. We are pleased to have this opportunity to be of service
and to work with you.

Very truly yours,

ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON LLP

| By: ()74\ é&&g

J#mes A. Boone
/
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Approved and accepted by the Board of Directors of West Harris County Regional
Water Authority on May 13, 2015.

ATTEST: President, Board of Directors

By: _ \¢" I

Secretz;ry, Board of Directors
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ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON LLP

Standard Terms of Engagement
for Legal Services

This statement sets forth certain standard terms of our engagement as your
lawyers and is intended as a supplement to the engagement letter that we have with
you as our client. Unless modified in writing by mutual agreement, these terms will be
an integral part of our agreement with you as reflected in the engagement letter.
Therefore, we ask that you review this statement carefully and contact us promptly if
you have any questions. We suggest that you retain this statement in your file with the
engagement letter.

The Scope of Our Work

You should have a clear understanding of the legal services we will provide.
Any questions that you have should be dealt with promptly.

We will at all times act on your behalf to the best of our ability. Any expressions
on our part concerning the outcome of your legal matters are expressions of our best
professional judgment, but are not guarantees. Such opinions are necessarily limited by
our knowledge of the facts and are based on the state of the law at the time they are
expressed.

It is our policy that the person or entity that we represent is the person or entity
that is identified in our engagement letter, and absent an express agreement to the
contrary does not include any affiliates of such person or entity (e.g., if you are a
corporation or partnership, any parents, subsidiaries, employees, officers, directors,
shareholders or partners of the corporation or partnership, or commonly owned
corporations or partnerships; or, if you are a trade association, any members of the
trade association). If you believe this engagement includes additional entities or
persons as our clients you should inform us immediately.

It is also our policy that the attorney-client relationship will be considered
terminated upon our completion of any services that you have retained us to perform.
If you later retain us to perform further or additional services, our attorney-client
relationship will be revived subject to the terms of engagement that we agree on at that
time.

This engagement shall be subject to the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct. We also wish to advise you of the contents of The Texas Lawyer’s Creed, a
copy of which is included at the end of these Standard Terms of Engagement for Legal
Services.
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Who Will Provide the Legal Services

Customarily, each client of the Firm is served by a principal attorney contact.
The principal attorney should be someone in whom you have confidence and with
whom you enjoy working. You are free to request a change of principal attorney at any
time. Subject to the supervisory role of the principal attorney, your work or parts of it
may be performed by other lawyers and legal assistants in the Firm. Such delegation
may be for the purpose of involving lawyers or legal assistants with special expertise in
a given area or for the purpose of providing services on the most efficient and timely
basis. Whenever practicable, we will advise you of the names of those attorneys and
legal assistants who work on your matters.

How Our Fees Will Be Set

Generally, our fees are based on the time spent by the lawyers, paralegals, and
administrative personnel who work on the matter. We will charge for all time spent in
representing your interests, including, by way of illustration, telephone and office
conferences with you and your representatives, consultants (if any), opposing counsel,
and others; conferences among our lawyers, paralegals, and administrative personnel;
factual investigation; legal research; responding to your requests for us to provide
information to your auditors in connection with reviews or audits of financial
statements; drafting letters and other documents; and travel. We will keep accurate
records of the time we devote to your work in units of quarters of an hour.

The hourly rates of our lawyers, paralegals, and administrative personnel are
reviewed and increased from time to time, and at least annually, to reflect current levels
of experience, changes in overhead costs, and other factors.

Although we may from time to time, at the client’s request, furnish estimates of
legal fees and other charges that we anticipate will be incurred, these estimates are by
their nature inexact (due to unforeseeable circumstances) and, therefore, the actual fees
and charges ultimately billed may vary from such estimates.

Additional Charges

In addition to our fees, there will be other charges for items incident to the
performance of our legal services, such as photocopying, messengers, travel expenses,
facsimile transmissions, postage, overtime for secretaries and other non-legal staff,
specialized computer applications such as computerized legal research, record
maintenance and storage, and filing fees. The current basis for these charges is set forth
below. The Firm will review this schedule of charges on an annual basis and adjust
them to take into account changes in the Firm's costs and other factors.

540148.doc



Duplicating
The Firm charges $.15 per page.

Courier Services

The Firm charges an amount which generally represents cost including the
distribution service provided by the Firm. Depending on the volume of work
performed by a service provider, the Firm may receive a volume discount during
a particular accounting period for which no adjustment is made on an individual
client’s bill.

Computer Aided Legal Research (CALR)

Third party providers of CALR services charge the Firm amounts each month
based on the type, extent, and duration of the services provided. The Firm
charges clients for client research only based on the computed cost to the Firm for
the use of the services. This cost is monitored and revised periodically to achieve
an average “at cost” rate for clients.

Telefax
The Firm does not charge for telefaxes.

Telephone
The Firm does not charge for local or long distance calls.

Travel-Related Expenses

Airfare, meals, and related travel expenses charged to the client represent actual,
out-of-pocket cost. Depending on the volume of both Firm and personal travel,
the Firm may receive beneficial services, including airline tickets from its travel
agent for which no adjustment is made on an individual client’s account. In
addition, credits earned under the Frequent Flyer Programs accrue to the
individual traveler and not to the Firm.

All Other Costs

The Firm charges an amount which generally represents costs for maintenance
and storage of client electronic and hard copy records. In addition, the Firm
charges actual disbursements for third-party services like court reporters, expert
witnesses, etc., and may recoup expenses reasonably incurred in connection with
services performed in-house, such as mail services, secretarial overtime, file
retrieval, etc.

Unless special arrangements are otherwise made, fees and expenses of others
(such as experts, investigators, consultants and court reporters) will be the
responsibility of, and billed directly to, the client. Further, all invoices in excess of $500
will be forwarded to the client for direct payment.
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Billing Arrangements and Terms

Our billing rates are based on the assumption of prompt payment. Consequently,
unless other arrangements are made, fees for the services described herein will be billed
from time to time as the work is performed or at such regular intervals, not to exceed 30
days, as the client may direct and are payable within thirty days of receipt.

Advances

Clients of the Firm are sometimes asked to deposit funds as an advance payment
with the Firm. The advance payment will be applied first to payment of charges for
such items as photocopying, messengers, travel, etc., as more fully described above, and
then to fees for services. The advance will be deposited in our client advance account
and we will charge such other charges and our fees against the advance and credit them
on our billing statements. In the event such other charges and our fees for services
exceed the advance deposited with us, we will bill you for the excess monthly or may
request additional advances. Any unused portion of amounts advanced will be
refundable at the conclusion of our representation.

Client and Firm Documents

We will maintain any documents that you furnish to us in our client file (or files)
for this matter. At your request, we will return your documents to you at the conclusion
of the matter (or earlier, if appropriate). It is your obligation to tell us which, if any, of
the documents that you furnish us that you want returned. We will return those
documents to you promptly after our receipt of payment for outstanding fees and
charges. Our own files pertaining to this matter, including the work performed by our
attorneys, will be retained by the Firm. Any documents retained by the Firm will be
kept for a certain period of time, and ultimately we will destroy them in accordance
with our record retention program schedule then in effect.

Attorney Complaint Information

The State of Texas investigates and prosecutes complaints of professional
misconduct against attorneys licensed in Texas. A brochure entitled Attorney
Complaint Information is available at our office and is likewise available upon request.
A client that has any questions about the State Bar’s disciplinary process should call the
Grievance Information Helpline of the State Bar of Texas at 1-800-932-1900.
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I'am a lawyer; I am entrusted by the People of Texas to
preserve and improve our legal system. I am licensed
by the Supreme Court of Texas. I must therefore abide
by the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct, but I know that Professionalism requires
more than merely avoiding the violation of laws and
rules. Tam committed to this Creed for no other reason
than it is right.

I.  OUR LEGAL SYSTEM. A lawyer owes to the
administration of justice personal dignity, integrity,
and independence. A lawyer should always adhere to
the highest principles of professionalism. 1 am
passionately proud of my profession. Therefore, “My
word is my bond.” I am responsible to assure that all
persons have access to competent representation
regardless of wealth or position in life. 1 commit
myself to an adequate and effective pro bono program.
[ am obligated to educate my clients, the public, and
other lawyers regarding the spirit and letter of this
Creed. 1 will always be conscious of my duty to the
judicial system.

II. LAWYER TO CLIENT. A lawyer owes to a
client allegiance, learning, skill, and industry. A
lawyer shall employ all appropriate means to protect
and advance the client’s legitimate rights, claims, and
objectives. A lawyer shall not be deterred by any real
or imagined fear of judicial disfavor or public
unpopularity, nor be influenced by mere self-interest. 1
will advise my client of the contents of this Creed when
undertaking representation. I will endeavor to achieve
my client’s lawful objectives in legal transactions and in
litigation as quickly and economically as possible. I
will be loyal and committed to my client's lawful
objectives, but I will not permit that loyalty and
commitment to interfere with my duty to provide
objective and independent advice. I will advise my
client that civility and courtesy are expected and are
not a sign of weakness. I will advise my client of
proper and expected behavior. I will treat adverse
parties and witnesses with fairness and due
consideration. A client has no right to demand that I
abuse anyone or indulge in any offensive conduct. I
will advise my client that we will not pursue conduct
which is intended primarily to harass or drain the
financial resources of the opposing party. I will advise
my client that we will not pursue tactics which are
intended primarily for delay. 1 will advise my client
that we will not pursue any course of action which is
without merit. I will advise my client that I reserve the
right to determine whether to grant accommodations to
opposing counsel in all matters that do not adversely
affect my client's lawful objectives. A client has no
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right to instruct me to refuse reasonable requests made
by other counsel. I will advise my client regarding the
availability of mediation, arbitration, and other
alternative methods of resolving and settling disputes.

II. LAWYER TO LAWYER. A lawyer owes to
opposing counsel, in the conduct of legal transactions
and the pursuit of litigation, courtesy, candor,
cooperation, and scrupulous observance of all
agreements and mutual understandings. 1l feelings
between clients shall not influence a lawyer’s conduct,
attitude, or demeanor toward opposing counsel. A
lawyer shall not engage in unprofessional conduct in
retaliation against other unprofessional conduct. I will
be courteous, civil, and prompt in oral and written
communications. I will not quarrel over matters of
form or style, but I will concentrate on matters of
substance. I will identify for other counsel or parties all
changes 1 have made in documents submitted for
review. I will attempt to prepare documents which
correctly reflect the agreement of the parties. I will not
include provisions which have not been agreed upon
or omit provisions which are necessary to reflect the
agreement of the parties. 1 will notify opposing
counsel, and, if appropriate, the Court or other persons,
as soon as practicable, when hearings, depositions,
meetings, conferences or closings are canceled. I will
agree to reasonable requests for extensions of time and
for waiver of procedural formalities, provided
legitimate objectives of my client will not be adversely
affected. I will not serve motions or pleadings in any
manner that unfairly limits another party’s opportunity
to respond. I will attempt to resolve by agreement my
objections to matters contained in pleadings and
discovery requests and responses. I can disagree
without being disagreeable. 1 recognize that effective
representation does not require antagonistic or
obnoxious behavior. 1 will neither encourage nor
knowingly permit my client or anyone under my
control to do anything which would be unethical or
improper if done by me. I will not, without good
cause, attribute bad motives or unethical conduct to
opposing counsel nor bring the profession into
disrepute by unfounded accusations of impropriety. I
will avoid disparaging personal remarks or acrimony
towards opposing counsel, parties and witnesses. I
will not be influenced by any ill feeling between clients.
I'will abstain from any allusion to personal peculiarities
or idiosyncrasies of opposing counsel. I will not take
advantage, by causing any default or dismissal to be
rendered, when I know the identity of an opposing
counsel, without first inquiring about that counsel’s
intention to proceed. I will promptly submit orders to



the Court. I will deliver copies to opposing counsel
before or contemporaneously with submission to the
court. T will promptly approve the form of orders
which accurately reflect the substance of the rulings of
the Court. I will not attempt to gain an unfair
advantage by sending the Court or its staff
correspondence or copies of correspondence. I will not
arbitrarily schedule a deposition, Court appearance, or
hearing until a good faith effort has been made to
schedule it by agreement. I will readily stipulate to
undisputed facts in order to avoid needless costs or
inconvenience for any party. I will refrain from
excessive and abusive discovery. I will comply with all
reasonable discovery requests. 1 will not resist
discovery requests which are not objectionable. T will
not make objections nor give instructions to a witness
for the purpose of delaying or obstructing the
discovery process. I will encourage witnesses to
respond to all deposition questions which are
reasonably understandable. I will neither encourage
nor permit my witness to quibble about words where
their meaning is reasonably clear. I will not seek Court
intervention to obtain discovery which is clearly
improper and not discoverable. 1 will not seek
sanctions or disqualification unless it is necessary for
protection of my client’s lawful objectives or is fully
justified by the circumstances.

IV. LAWYER AND JUDGE. Lawyers and judges
owe each other respect, diligence, candor, punctuality,
and protection against unjust and improper criticism
and attack. Lawyers and judges are equally
responsible to protect the dignity and independence of
the Court and the profession. I will always recognize
that the position of judge is the symbol of both the
judicial system and administration of justice. I will
refrain from conduct that degrades this symbol. T will
conduct myself in court in a professional manner and
demonstrate my respect for the Court and the law. I
will treat counsel, opposing parties, the Court, and
members of the Court staff with courtesy and civility. I
will be punctual. T will not engage in any conduct
which offends the dignity and decorum of proceedings.
I will not knowingly misrepresent, mischaracterize,
misquote or miscite facts or authorities to gain an
advantage. I will respect the rulings of the Court. I will
give the issues in controversy deliberate, impartial and
studied analysis and consideration. 1 will be
considerate of the time constraints and pressures
imposed upon the Court, Court staff and counsel in
efforts to administer justice and resolve disputes.
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FINANCIAL ADVISORY AGREEMENT

This Financial Advisory Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and
between the West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the “Issuer”) and Post Oak
Municipal Advisors LLC and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated (the “Team”) effective as of
fo'.f L L, 201%(the “Lffective Date”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Issuer may have under consideration from time to time the authorization
and issuance of indebtedness in amounts and forms which cannot presently be determined and,
in connection with the authorization, sale, issuance and delivery of such indebtedness, Issuer
desires to retain an independent financial advisor; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to obtain the professional services of the Team to advise the
Issuer regarding the issuance and sale of certain evidences of indebtedness or debt obligations
that may be authorized and issued or otherwise created or assumed by the Issuer (hereinafter
referred to collectively as the “Debt Instruments”) from time to time during the period in which
this Agreement shall be effective; and

WHEREAS, the Team is willing to provide its professional services and its facilities as
financial advisor in connection with all programs of financing as may be considered and
authorized by Issuer during the period in which this Agreement shall be effective.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Issuer and the Team, in consideration of the mutual covenants
and agreements herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree as
follows:

_SECTION I
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Upon the request of an authorized representative of the Issuer, the Team agrees to
perform the financial advisory services stated in the following provisions of this Section [; and
for having rendered such services, the Issuer agrees to pay to the Team the compensation as
provided herein.

A. Financial Planning. At the direction of the Issuer, the Team shall:

1. Survey and Analysis. Conduct a survey of the financial resources of the
Issuer to determine the extent of its capacity to authorize, issue, and service
any Debt Instruments contemplated. This survey will include an analysis of
any existing debt structure as compared with the existing and projected
sources of revenues which may be pledged to secure payment of debt service
and, where appropriate, will include present and future revenue
requirements of the Issuer. In the event revenues of existing or projected
facilities operated by the Issuer are to be pledged to repayment of the Debt
Instruments then under consideration, the survey will take into account any
outstanding indebtedness payable from the revenues thereof, additional
revenues be available from any proposed rate increases and additional

1-
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revenues, as projected by consulting engineers employed by the Issuer,
resulting from improvements to be financed by the Debt Instruments under
consideration. The survey provided under this Section I may also include,
where appropriate, the analysis of the Issuer’s rates, the impact of capital
contributions to the Issuer by members of the Authority, and the analysis of
financing alternatives for payments due the City of Houston or others from
the Issuer.

Future Financings. Consider and analyze future financing needs as
projected by the Issuer’s staff and consulting engineers or other experts, if
any, employed by the Issuer.

Recommendations for Debt Instruments. On the basis of the information
developed by the survey described above, and other information and
experience available, submit to the Issuer recommendations regarding the
Debt Instruments under consideration, including such elements as the date
of issue, interest payment dates, schedule of principal maturities, options of
prior payment, security provisions, and such other provisions as may be
appropriate in order to make the issue attractive to investors while achieving
the objectives of the Issuer. All recommendations will be consistent with the
goal of designing the Debt Instruments to be sold on terms which are
advantageous to the Issuer, including the lowest interest cost consistent with
all other considerations.

Market Information. Advise the Issuer of our interpretation of current bond
market conditions, other related forthcoming bond issues and general
information, with economic data, which might normally be expected to
influence interest rates or bidding conditions so that the date of sale of the
Debt Instruments may be set at a favorable time.

Rates. Annual review of rates and provision of recommendations regarding
Issuer’s Pumpage and Surface Water Fees.

Meetings: In the event our attendance is required at a regularly scheduled
Issuer meeting, at other public meetings, at meetings of a finance committee
or other committee, at a meeting with the City of Houston or any other
meeting specifically requested by the Issuer, a member or members or the
Team will attend.

Debt Management and Financial Implementation. At the direction of Issuer, the

Team shall:

1.

Method of Sale. Evaluate the particular financing being contemplated,

giving consideration to the complexity, market acceptance, rating, size and
structure in order to make a recommendation as to an appropriate method
of sale, and:

a. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by an advertised competitive sale,
the Team will:
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(4)

Supervise the sale of the Debt Instruments;

Disseminate information to prospective bidders, organize such
informational meetings as may be necessary, and facilitate
prospective bidders’ efforts in making timely submission of proper
bids;

Assist the staff of the Issuer in coordinating the receipt of bids, the
safekeeping of good faith checks and the tabulation and
comparison of submitted bids; and

Advise the Issuer regarding the best bid and provide advice
regarding acceptance or rejection of the bids.

b. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by negotiated sale, the Team will:

(1)

(2)

©)

(4)

Recommend for Issuer’s final approval and acceptance one or more
investment banking firms as managers of an underwriting
syndicate for the purpose of negotiating the purchase of the Debt
Instruments.

Cooperate with and assist any selected managing underwriter and
their counsel in connection with their efforts to prepare any Official
Statement or Offering Memorandum. The Team will cooperate
with and assist the underwriters in the preparation of a bond
purchase contract, an underwriters agreement and other related
documents. The costs incurred in such efforts, including the
printing of the documents, will be paid in accordance with the
terms of the Issuer’s agreement with the underwriters, but shall not
be or become an obligation of the Team, except to the extent
specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement or assumed in
writing by the Team.

Assist the staff of the Issuer in the safekeeping of any good faith
checks, to the extent there are any of such, and provide a cost
comparison, for both expenses and interest which are suggested by
the underwriters, to the then current market.

Advise the Issuer as to the fairness of the price offered by the
underwriters.

Offering Documents. Assist in the preparation and compilation of the notice

of sale and bidding instructions, official statement, official bid form and such
other documents (the “Offering Documents”) as may be required and submit
all such documents to the Issuer for examination, approval and certification.
The Issuer acknowledges that it is subject to and may be held liable under
federal or state securities laws for violations thereof, including misleading or
incomplete disclosure in the Offering Documents. After such examination,
approval and certification, the Team shall provide the Issuer with a supply

3
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10.

of all such documents sufficient to its needs and distribute by mail or, where
appropriate, by electronic delivery, sets of the same to prospective
purchasers of the Debt Instruments. Also, the Team shall provide copies of
the final Official Statement to the purchaser of the Debt Instruments in
accordance with the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions.

Credit Ratings. Make recommendations to the Issuer as to the advisability
of obtaining a credit rating or ratings, for the Debt Instruments and/or
municipal bond insurance, and, when directed by the Issuer, coordinate the
preparation of such information as may be appropriate for submission to the
rating agency, or agencies and/or municipal bond insurance providers. In
those cases where the advisability of personal presentation of information to
the rating agency, or agencies, may be indicated, the Team will arrange for
such personal presentations, utilizing such composition of representatives
from the Issuer as may be finally approved or directed by the Issuer.

Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar. Upon request, counsel with the Issuer in
the selection of a Trustee and/or Paying Agent/Registrar for the Debt
Instruments, and assist in the negotiation of agreements pertinent to these
services and the fees incident thereto.

Financial Publications. When appropriate, advise financial publications of
the forthcoming sale of the Debt Instruments and provide them with all
pertinent information.

Consultants. After consulting with and receiving directions from the Issuer,
arrange for such reports and opinions of recognized independent
consultants as may be appropriate for the successful marketing of the Debt
Instruments.

Auditors. In the event formal verification by an independent auditor of any
calculations incident to the Debt Instruments is required, make
arrangements for such services.

[ssuer Meetings. Attend meetings of the governing body of the Issuer, its
staff, representatives or committees as requested at all times when the Team
may be of assistance or service and the subject of financing is to be discussed.

Printing. To the extentauthorized by the Issuer, coordinate all work incident
to printing of the offering documents and the Debt Instruments.

Delivery of Debt Instruments. As soon as a bid for the Debt Instruments is
accepted by the Issuer, coordinate the efforts of all concerned to the end that
the Debt Instruments may be delivered and paid for as expeditiously as
possible and assist the Issuer in the preparation or verification of final closing
figures incident to the delivery of the Debt Instruments.




1L Debt Service Schedule. After the closing of the sale and delivery of the Debt
Instruments, deliver to the Issuer a schedule of annual debt service
requirements for the Debt Instruments.

SECTION II
TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the Issuer or the Team upon
the giving of at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other party of its intention to
terminate, specifying in such notice the effective date of such termination. However, it is
understood that the Team may not be terminated during the pendency of a competitive bond
issue once the Issuer has authorized the advertisement of the sale of such bonds and until the
delivery of such bonds. No penalty will be assessed for termination of this Agreement.

SECTION III
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT

The fees due to the Team for the services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through
A6 of this Agreement with respect to financial planning and meetings prior to the issuance of
bonds shall be calculated in accordance with the schedule set forth or Appendix A attached
hereto. The fees due to the Team for the services set forth and described in Section 1, B1 through
B11 of this agreement with respect to the issuance of Debt Instruments shall be calculated in
accordance with the schedule set forth on Appendix B attached hereto. Unless specifically
provided otherwise in Appendices A and B or in a separate written agreement between Issuer
and the Team, such fees, together with any other fees as may have been mutually agreed upon
and all expenses for which the Team is entitled to reimbursement, shall become due and payable
as shown in Appendices A and B. The Team shall invoice the Issuer for all fees and reimbursable
expenses due from the Issuer hereunder, and all invoices shall be signed by Post Oak Municipal
Advisors LLC (“POMA”) and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated (“Baird”). In accordance with
the terms of this Agreement, the Issuer shall pay each such invoice as follows: (i) for the portion
of the invoice attributable to fees, the Issuer shall pay 50% of the fees to POMA and 50% of the
fees to Baird, and (ii) for the portion of the invoice attributable to reimbursable expenses, the
Issuer shall reimburse POMA or Baird (as applicable) those expenses that the invoice reflects were
paid by POMA or Baird (as applicable).

SECTION IV
MISCELLANEOUS

1.  Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed and given effect in accordance with the
laws of the State of Texas.

2.  Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the Issuer and the Team, their respective successors and assigns; provided however,
neither party hereto may assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder
without the prior written consent of the other party.

3. Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties
relating to the rights herein granted and obligations herein assumed. Any oral or written
representations or modifications concerning this Agreement shall be of no force or effect
except for a subsequent modification in writing signed by all parties hereto.

-5-
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Additional Certifications. Additionally, Baird and POMA represent and verify that, to the
extent this contract represents a contract for goods and services within the meaning of
Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of
Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government Code, at the time of execution of this contract and
through the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by
applicable federal law, neither Baird (nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned
subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same) nor POMA boycotts or will boycott
Israel. The terms “boycott Israel” and “boycotts Israel” as used in this paragraph have the
meanings assigned to the term “boycott Israel” in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government
Code, as amended.

Further, by executing this contract, Baird and POMA also represent and certify that, to the
extent this contract represents a governmental contract within the meaning of Section
2252.151 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of Chapter
2252 of the Texas Government Code, at the time of execution and delivery of this contract
and through the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by
applicable federal law, neither Baird ( nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned
subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same) nor POMA (i) engages in business with
Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization as described in Chapters 806 or 807 of the
Texas Government Code, or Subchapter F of Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code,
or (ii) is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections
806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. The term “foreign terrorist
organization” in this paragraph the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2252.151 of
the Texas Government Code.



ATTEST:

Secretary
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POST OAK MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

o LTl

Pl ]

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO. INCORPORATED

By;%ﬁmwww

artholomew
ging Director

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

By:
Title:
Date:




POST OAK MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

By:

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO. INCORPORATED

By:

Jan Bartholomew
Managing Director

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

By: 4 %

Title: _PREB |1 P &7 7
Date: G~ ~Z0 (R

ATTEST:

W

Secretar)ﬂ
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APPENDIX A

The fees due the Team for services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through A6, shall be
accrued on an hourly basis as follows:

Senior Vice Presidents/Managing Directors $150.00 per hour
Other Vice Presidents/ Analysts $100.00 per hour
Administrative $ 25.00 per hour

With respect to the method of billing used By the Team, if two senior vice presidents and/or
managing directors are in attendance or involved in a project, the Issuer will only be invoiced for
$150.00 per hour. However, if a senior vice president and/ or managing director and another vice
president or analyst is necessary at the attendance of a meeting or involved in a project, the Issuer
will be invoiced for both of those professionals.

If the Team seeks payment for any such services, the Team shall invoice the Issuer for any such
services on a quarterly basis. Hourly fees shall be due and payable within 60 days of the date of
the invoice.

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by the Team as reimbursable
expenses:

Travel expenses
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges
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APPENDIX B

The fees due the Team with respect to the services as set forth in Section I, B1 through B11
for the issuing of Debt Instruments that are bonds are as follows:

Minimum Fee $50,000

First $3,000,000: 2.00% of the Principal Amount
$3,000,001 to $5,000,000: 1.50% of the Principal Amount
$5,000,001 to $10,000,000: 1.00% of the Principal Amount
$10,000,001 to $20,000,000: 0.75% of the Principal Amount
$20,000,001 to $30,000,000: 0.50% of the Principal Amount
$30,000,001 to $50,000,000: 0.25% of the Principal Amount
Over to $50,000,000: 0.10% of the Principal Amount

The payment of fees described above for financial advisory services shall be contingent upon the
delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that bonds are delivered.

The fees due the Team for Debt Instruments that are not bonds will be mutually determined by
the Issuer and Team by separate written agreement.

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by the Team as reimbursable
expenses:

Bond counsel, legal or tax opinion, counsel to underwriter, securities or disclosure counsel, or
any other counsel

Bond printing

Bond ratings

Credit enhancement

CPA fees for refunding

Official statement preparation and printing and distribution

Paying agent/registrar/ trustee

Travel expenses

Publication of Notices in newspapers, financial publications and other publications
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges

The payment of reimbursable expenses that the Team has assumed on behalf of the Issuer shall
not be contingent upon the delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that services are
rendered and payable upon receipt of an invoice therefor submitted by the Team.

In the event that either party to this contract determines that it is necessary to retain securities or
disclosure counsel to review documents and proceedings related to the offering of bonds by the
Issuer and to provide other services customarily provided by securities disclosure counsel, such
counsel will be retained.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT FOR BOOKKEEPING SERVICES
STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF HARRIS
THIS AGREEMENT for Bookkeeping Services, (the “Agreement”) is effective as of

the 1% day of JUNE, 2017 (the “Effective Date”) between West Harris County Regional

Water Authority (hereinafter called the “Authority”) and MYRTLE CRUZ, INC.,

(hereinafter called the “Bookkeeper”) and in consideratibn of the mutual covenants
and agreements herein contained.
I.

Any and all agreements currently in effect between Bookkeeper and the
Authority are terminated by mutual agreement as of MAY 31, 2017. Beginning on
the Effective Date, the Bookkeeper shall render the following services to the
Authority. All services shall be rendered in a professional, competent and
timely manner.

MONTHLY ENUMERATED SERVICES

1. Maintain bank accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposits
and other accounts as may be necessary and authorized, and reconcile
such accounts on a monthly basis.

2. Deposit District funds in the appropriate account on a timely basis.
3. Prepare and present for Authority Board of Directors (hereinafter

called the “Board”) approval of all checks, with invoices
attached, drawn on the District’s accounts.

4. Maintain and reconcile monthly all cash accounts for the Authority’s
accounts.
5. Prepare monthly statements showing all activity within each of the

above funds, and the current distribution of monies within each fund.

6. Maintain all journals and ledgers pertaining to the Authority’s funds
in a manner consistent with the statute creating the Authority, and
in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures, policies
and regulations adopted by the Board and the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality, Water District Financial Management Guide,
adopted March 2004, and in such a manner that excessive auditing
procedures or adjustments by the Authority’s auditor are not
required.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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Complete posting and close all journals and ledgers within forty five
(45) days following the end of Authority’s fiscal year.

Assist the Authority’s auditors to efficiently perform the annual
audit, including use of Bookkeeper’s office facilities during the
field audit and using best efforts to comply with recommendations
contained in Auditors Annual Management Letter to the Board.

Invest bond proceeds and surplus funds in interest bearing time
deposits in accordance with state law and the Authority’s investment
policy.

Prepare and provide for review (at least guarterly) an investment
report detailing compliance with the Texas Public Funds Investment
Act and the Authority’s investment policy. Serve as investment
officer of the Authority and maintain file for auditor review. Obtain
training necessary to comply with state regulations.

Verify on a continual basis that securities are provided for the
Authority’s funds in accordance with state law and Board policy.
Provide for review (at least quarterly) a listing of the pledged
securities and their stated market value.

Work with consultants to prepare annual budget for various Authority
funds with monthly increments and compare budget with actual
expenditures on a monthly and cumulative basis.

Attend meetings of the Board, including but not limited to the
monthly meeting, as requested by the Board. All meeting attendance
will be included in the base rate.

Prepare checks for Directors in accordance with guidelines of the
I.R.S. as related to “Statutory Employees”. File the appropriate
forms both quarterly and annually. Bookkeeper will also provide
annual W-2 forms for the Directors.

Deposit funds received by the Authority and post payments to on-line
reporting system. Transfer deposited payments by wire transfer to
Trustee as received and verify receipt of these funds. Reconcile
redistribution of funds monthly and annually according to the
indenture agreement.

Calculate late penalties and generate invoice for this fee when
payment is received.
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17. Prepare monthly report of fees collected for both ground water and
surface water to update the Authority on surface water conversion
percentage. Annually this information will be compared to the
information provided by the Harris Galveston and the Fort Bend
Subsidence District. A report will then be prepared on discrepancies.
This report will be the basis of refunded overpayments or billed
underpayments. The Bookkeeper will send out the initial collection
letters and assist with ongoing collection process.

18. Use report prepared for payment exceptions to update the continuing
disclosure report with the percentage of collections and other
information on the water usage.

19. All functions that are specific to the Authority and not enumerated
above but listed in the Exhibit “A” as included in the Base Rate.

The above enumerated services will be performed in a timely and competent
manner for compensation of the services provided by the Bookkeeper to the
Authority on a recurring basis.

IT.

As consideration for the services rendered by the Bookkeeper to the
Authority, Authority shall pay to Bookkeeper as compensation for the above
enumerated services, the Base Rate of $17,000.00 per month, to commence on
the Effective Date. Exhibit “A” includes additional detail of the recurring

services rendered as enumerated in the Rase Rate.

In addition, the Bookkeeper shall render additional services not
enumerated in paragraph I or in Exhibit “A”, as reqguested by the Board or
required by revised agency regulations and will be paid at the rate of
$75.00 per hour detailed on the monthly billing. If the service is to be
a recurring addition to the above enumerated services, an amendment to
the contract will be presented to the Board for consideration and
approval with the description of service and the monthly amount of the

fee.

The Authority shall pay the Bookkeeper for all out-of-pocket
expenses reasonable and necessarily incurred by Bookkeeper in the
performance of the services described herein, including but not limited
to printing, reproduction of documents, long distance telephone calls,
postage, ledger binders, and storage of documents. The fee for out-of-
pocket expenses will be included in the base rate as an estimated cost of
$2,000.00 monthly. If there is a special project requiring additional
copies or postage, the bill for such will be presented to the Board for

approval.
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In addition, a monthly fee of $2,100.00 will be charged for
services rendered with respect to tracking, billing and preparing monthly
reports for past and future operating and maintenance costs and capital
costs (including without limitation, realty interest acquisition,
construction, surveying, legal, and engineering costs) related to the
Second Source Water Line project. This fee will be charged directly to
the Second Source Water Line Joint Facilities account, “the Second

Source”.

Bookkeeper will maintain accurate records of all time and materials
contributed to Authority services, and the Authority will have the right, on
reasonable notice, to audit such records. Bookkeeper will submit a detailed
monthly invoice indicating all fees and hourly services, together with any

backup documentation requested by the Authority.

NON RECURRING SERVICES

ITI.

The Bookkeeper shall provide services of a non recurring nature to
the Authority including but not limited to, work related to bond issues,
release of escrowed funds, refunding bond issues, revision of debt service
schedules to reflect changes to debt and coordination with the trustee
regarding reserve requirements and annual debt service payments, assistance
providing documentation to the arbitrage rebate specialist and defeasance of

bonds.

Services that will be deemed non recurring will be billed at the rate
listed in Exhibit “A” at the time the service is performed and will be
comprehensive of the work required from inception to completion of service.
Additional detail of the scope of work for each service is listed in Exhibit
“A” with the fee schedule for each service. Fees of additional services for
new money bond issues, refunding bond issues, and bond anticipation notes
will be assessed and billed at the time of funding such bond issue or

anticipation note.
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Iv.

The Authority shall instruct all contractors, vendors and service
representatives or the Authority to submit all bills and invoices to
Bookkeeper at least five (5) days prior to any scheduled meetings of the
Board. It is understood that any bill or invoice submitted subsequent to the
said five (5) day period, shall be paid if possible at said meeting, but will

not necessarily be reflected on the cash analysis schedule.

V.

Upon the Effective Date, Bookkeeper shall provide the Authority with a
public employees blanket position bond, conditioned that Bookkeeper will
faithfully account for all monies which shall come in to Bookkeeper’s custody
under the terms of its service agreements, including this Agreement and
otherwise, at the discretion of the Board, in the amount of two hundred fifty
thousand ($250,000)dollars. The cost of such bond shall be borne by the
Authority. The bookkeeper agrees to maintain at the bookkeeper’s sole cost and
expenses, Professional Liability insurance with limits not less than one

million, ($1,000,000) dollars each claim/annual aggregate.

In addition, Myrtle Cruz, Inc. shall obtain a crime policy in an amount
to be determined by the Board, with a single insured being the West Harris
County Regional Water Authority, and shall provide a certificate of insurance to
the Authority. The limit for this coverage shall be ten million ($10,000,000)
dollars and the policy will be paid by Myrtle Cruz, Inc., to be reimbursed to
Myrtle Cruz, Inc.by the Authority with proof of payment. The estimated cost of

this coverage is $18,500 per annum.

VI.

This Agreement shall remain in effect until such time as either party
provides notice of termination as provided below. This Agreement may be
terminated by either party without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice
to the other party. Bookkeeper shall not be entitled to any payment or
further payment other than for work actually performed or for material or
supplies furnished prior to termination. Upon termination of this Agreement,

the Bookkeeper shall deliver all Authority records.
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VII.
The execution of this contract acknowledges receipt of the Authority’s order
establishing a records management program and designating a records
management officer, (the “Document Retention Policy”), a copy of which is
attached as Exhibit “B”. Myrtle Cruz, Inc. agrees to maintain all Authority
records in Myrtle Cruz, Inc. possession in accordance with the Authority’s

Document Retention Policy.

Executed in multiple copies as of the date shown above.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL TER AUTHORITY

By gl %

P
President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

\

ol

Secretary,UBoard of Directors

BOOKKEEPER
MYRTLE CRUZ, INC

By %WM /Q?Mdﬁ\J
Pregééght




EXHIBIT "A" SERVICES INCLUDED IN BASE RATE Page 1 or2
[ BASE RATE MONTHLY $17,000.00 |
WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

Our monthly fee includes preparing for meeting; e-mails to directors, preparation

of report and e-mail of report, preparing checks and copies for meeting. Monthly:
Montly Budget Comparison. Schedules of Remaining Balance in Separate

Accounts with Funds deposited by District. Attending Monthly Meeting and Processing

Disbursements. File all District records and provide copies to Engineer for refundable projects.

24 hour

Transfers to Regions Bank of pumpage and surface water fees collected. Coordination Weekly:
with Regions on transfers; including monthly transfer and annual true up

per indenture agreement. Posting to On Line System if manualy report provided. Update monthly

the surface water usage and ground water usage for groundwater reduction percentage

8 hours

Monthly Reconciliation of Bank Statements and Money Market Accts. (including escrow account with Monthly:
Amegy Bank for City of Houston Jt. Project, and Trustee Statements from Regions Bank. )

10 hours

Investment of District Funds; including Monthly Investment Report.
This includes collateral pledge report and the updates required by bank. Monthly:
This also includes coordination with trust depository and verification of their statements.

15 hours

Payroll reports on Monthly Basis to Update Director's W-2. Filing 941 quarterly Monthly:
and Annual Filing of 1099 and 1096 forms. Quarterly payroll tax deposits. Process 941 S for Annually
all easements purchased during calendar year.

3 hours
12 hours

Tracking of Directors fees on monthly basis for annual legal limit. Monthly:

1/2 hour

Tracking contracts paid with total amt due/ retainage and completion %, including contracts Monthly:
that require developer participation and splits related to those project costs.

1/2 hour

Summary of monthly disbursements and making the transfer from the applicable Monthly:
funds on deposits , i.e. ,improvement, construction, operating and any other funds on deposit

Separate Funds by Bond Issue and track by Segment or Project. Reconcile with auditor for verification

reports done for reporting to North Ft.Bend.

10 hours

Posting Books for Audit. Reconciling all accounts to Bank balances. Monthly: (9)
The books are posted quarterly. Then prepared for audit following the January Monthly during Audit (3 mos)
meeting. During the 1st quarter of the year we spend extra time preparing the
books and discussing financials with the auditors.

(Currently using both a financial reporting firm and an auditor)

16 hours
24 hours

Depositing Pumpage and Surface Water Fees. Entering Pumpage and Surface Water fees Monthly:
on spread sheet for annual tracking. Listing on Deposit Record for auditor.

Communication with bookkeepers/ well owners to request delinquent payments

reports, explain and correct payments, etc.The spreadsheet

allows us to maintain records for the use of your auditor and engineer and operator

on groundwater conversion percentage and for annual exception and continuing disclosure report.

40 hours

Request pumpage reports if not received, send out delinquents notices, delinquent bills and track Monthly:
receipt of payment. Provide information to attorney for collection of delinguent fees upon request.

4 hrs.

Continuing Disclosure reporting regarding amount pumped and surface water used and Annual:
paid to establish percentage of collections . List of the top entities pumping water and using

surface water to determine financial information that is provided annually to the disclosure counsel.

Determine percentage of payments from MUD versus non-MUDS.

40 hours

Comparing report from engineer with amounts paid to WHCRWA and the Annual:
information reported to the Authority on annual water consumption to determine
collection percentage.

80 hours

Bill or refund exceptions and follow up with collection of funds. Send follow up notices Annual:
and present the remaining unpaid exceptions to the finance committee for action by the delinquent attorney.

20 hours

Budget: We will prepare and work with District consultants to adopt Annual:
yearly operating budget (included in monthly fee). Most of the additional work

on the budget is attending meetings and conferencing with consultants on projections

for operating, construction, debt service number.

24 hours

Harris Galveston Subsidence District requirements that WHCRWA is the permittee Monthly:
and must report accurately water used and percentage of surface water requires extensive

follow up with the well owners/ muds to verify receipt of pumpage report, payment and process

late fees. Any modifications to the original forms must be notated and communicated to the engineer.

4 hours

Tracking payment from entities with capital credit AND agreements for alternate Monthly:
water, effluent credits and various agreements to determine pumpage amount due.

When new capital credit is received work with financial advisor on amortization schedule , notification

to entity of monthly credit and auditor(s) for District's annual audit records.

10 hours

Attend Scheduled conference calls with Attorney, Financial Advisor, Engineer, Auditor as called
when necessary to discuss continuing disclosure, exceptions, budget, insurance, long range Annual:
planning , various other reasons. Attend committee meetings when requested.

24 hours

Provide reports on COH Cash Call and Withdrawals,Balance remaining in each bond series and the Monthly:
projects spent from Each Series, Investment report also showing balance remaining in each Series .
Prepare Color Coded copies and make 20 Sets for Finance committee Meeting.

2 1/2 hours

Prepare invoices as requested by engineer for purchase of groundwater credits and request for Each request

1 hours

Form 1295. Track until invoices is paid and then send copy of check to Engineer and copy of 1285 to Estimated annual requests (24)

Attorney for processing transfer of credits,

Prepare checks as requested after determining appropriate fund for payment , Sign approved resolution, Each Request

172 hour

send check and resolution to person requesting check. Office expenses includes delivery charges Estimated Annual requests {120)

as these checks are usually messengered to the property acquistion team.
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Reimbursement for office expenses including copies, mileage to meetings, tolls, messenger services . Included in base Rate
Provide sets of colored copies of bond comparisons, Newpp Deposits and Investment report to finance committee meeting.
Annual Hours 2400 Plus monthly expenses ($2.000)
MONTHLY BASE RATE [ 17,000.00]

Services not listed in Non Recurring Services in Exhibit "A"
flat fee will be tracked and detailed for charge at the hourly rate.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES BILLED AT: |HOURLY RATE: ($75.00 PER HOUR)

SECOND SOURCE JT. FACILITIES CHARGE (based on hourly rate } T G 10

To be charged to Second Source Joint Facilities Operating Account and billed to contractual parties.

This fee includes billing to North Fort Bend Water Authority for share of debt service on the Texas Water Development Bond ; Series 2012.
This Fee also includes any billing to North Fort Bend Water Authority for capital expenses on the second source project that are
not funded with the bonds and the tracking to determine each Authority 's prorata share of the expenses.

Increased number of segments for Second Source that are not included in W.LF. funding and adds allocation and cash call for SWIFT funding

EXPENSES: Are billed as follows: Included in Base Rate

SERVICES PROVIDED / Non Recurring

1. Sale of Bonds $3,000.00

Work with financial advisor, attorney to provide information for documents provided to rating agencies and

for the documentation needed to complete the bond sale. Coordinate with bank on amount needed for

collateral , the funding documents and the wires for payment and to Capital Account. Establish new account

for the proceeds so these funds can be tracked seperately and work with Engineer on applicable use of funds.

Set up debt service requirements provided by financial advisor and coordinate with Trustee on new reserve amount

and new debt service amount for monthly transfers.

2. Refunding Bond Issue $2,500.00

Coordinate with Financial Advisor, Attorney on closing memo and distribution of proceeds. Wire funds from
District accounts if required prior to closing, Notify bank of funding and arrange collateral with bank for District deposits. Update all
debt schedules to reflect changes to debt service payments. And notify trustee of change to monthly transfer for debt service require

3. Defeasance of Existing Bonds $1,000.00

Coordinate with Attorney and Trusteee as paying agent on amount of defeasance and wiring instructions

for funds. Work with financial advisor on modification of the debt service schedules / notify auditor and
Trustee for monthly transfer for Debt Service Requirements and adjust reserve balance necessary.

4. Release of Escrowed funds 10 hours‘ $750.00

Determine amounts released for invoices already disbursed and amounts released for prefunding payment.
Determine the appropriate souce of funds to reimburse any previously disbursed amounts.
Work with auditor to update the total amount spent on capital projects with each Escrow Release.
Work with engineer on invoices not submitted and then properly allocate to the fund for that segment .

5. Arbitrage Rebate Calculation done by Omni Cap
Providing documentation and record research to Arbitrage Rebate Specialist EACH SER!ES! $325.00
Provide documentation of prior years earned interest on money market, certificate of deposit,

and documentation of distribution of bond proceeds . On annual basis provide trust statements and summary
On annual basis provide trust statements and summary to Omni Cap for future Arbitrage rebate Calculations ANNUAL] $250.00




ALLEN BOONE HUMPHBIES ROB INSON LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PHOENIX TOWER
3200 SOUTHWEST FREEWAY
SUITE 2600
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77027
TEL (713) 860-6400

FAX (713) 860-6401
abhr.com

May 13, 2015

Board of Directors
West Harris County Regional Water Authority

Dear Board of Directors:

We appreciate the opportunity to represent the West Harris County Regional
Water Authority as its legal counsel. Our experience has been that it is mutually
beneficial to set forth the role and responsibilities of both our law firm and the client.
That is the purpose of both this letter and the separate Standard Terms of Engagement
for Legal Services that is enclosed with this letter. This engagement letter replaces our
engagement letter dated September 14, 2005.

Client

The client for this engagement is West Harris County Regional Water Authority
(the “Authority”). This engagement does not create an attorney client relationship with
any related persons or entities, such as parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees,

officers, directors, shareholders, or partners.

Scope of Engagement-General Representation of Authority

We will serve as general counsel for the Authority. Our work in connection with
this representation will include, but will not be limited to, preparing documents and
agenda items for the meetings of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Authority and
its committees, reviewing minutes of those meetings, preparing various resolutions and
orders to be adopted by the Board, calling and canvassing any elections to be held,
preparing various legal notices required to be given, preparing real estate conveyances
(including deeds, easements, and encroachment agreements), and maintaining files and
records of the Authority required by the Public Information Act. We also will represent
the Authority, when authorized by the Board, in securing approvals from city and
county authorities, contract negotiation and preparation, application for permits, and
other legal services that the Authority may require from time to time.

540148.doc
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Scope of Engagement-Bond Counsel Services

We will perform services as bond counsel in connection with the authorization,
issuance and sale of bonds to be issued by the Authority to acquire and construct
facilities and finance Authority costs and projects, and to refund Authority bonds, as
may be authorized and issued hereafter for such purposes.

Our services as bond counsel will include: attending meetings with your
consultants in connection with the planning and authorization of such bond issues,
including consultation on federal income tax matters; reviewing of the official statement
prepared by the Authority’s underwriters, financial advisors or securities counsel in
connection with the sale of the bonds, but only for the limited purposes described in
such official statement; preparing the legal documents comprising the transcript of legal
proceedings for authorization and issuance of the bonds; preparing and submitting to
the Attorney General of Texas a transcript of legal proceedings for the bonds to obtain
the approval of the Attorney General and registration of the bonds by the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of Texas; preparing and filing legal documents required under
federal income tax law for the bonds; coordinating, in conjunction with the Authority’s
financial advisor, delivery of the bonds to the initial purchaser; and, if appropriate,
delivering at closing our approving opinion as to the validity of the bonds under Texas
law and the exclusion of interest on the bonds from gross income of the holders under
federal income tax law.

It is our understanding that the Authority will employ one or more recognized
investment banking firm(s) to serve as financial advisor(s) to the Authority and that
said firm(s) will be responsible for advising the Authority concerning the sale of the
bonds and will assist the Authority in the preparation of an Official Notice of Sale and
an Official Statement (the “Offering Documents”) in connection with each issue of the
bonds offered for sale to the public.

In our capacity as bond counsel, we will review those portions of the Offering
Documents which describe the Authority’s legal authority for issuance of the bonds to
determine whether such description conforms to and fairly summarizes relevant
provisions of Texas law. We also will review those portions of the Offering Documents
describing the resolution or indenture of the Board authorizing the bonds to determine
whether such description fairly summarizes the provisions of said resolution or
indenture. In addition, if requested, we will review such other portions of the Offering
Documents as describe matters of law and legal relationships of the Authority about
which we have knowledge. We will not, however, undertake to independently verify
any of the factual information contained in the Offering Documents, nor will we
conduct any investigation of the affairs of the Authority for the purpose of passing on
the accuracy or completeness of the Offering Documents. Since our role in connection

2.
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with the Offering Documents will be of an advisory rather than an investigatory nature,
said documents will contain a statement describing our services as outlined above and
stating that our limited participation may not be relied upon as an assumption of
responsibility for, or an expression of opinion of any kind with regard to, the accuracy
or completeness of the information contained therein.

Unless specifically requested by the Authority pursuant to terms and conditions
to be set forth in a separate engagement letter, we will not be responsible for advising
the Authority concerning the provisions of the various securities laws, including the
Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the securities laws of
the various states in which the bonds may be sold.

Scope of Engagement - Continuing Disclosure Services

Additionally, we will provide legal services in connection with the obligation of
the Authority to provide continuing disclosure pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15¢2-12, as such rule may be amended from time to time, with respect
to any bonds issued by the Authority. In connection with this engagement, we will
advise the Authority of its continuing disclosure obligations, prepare resolutions or
indentures to be adopted by the Board of Directors of the Authority in connection with
the Authority’s continuing disclosure obligation, and prepare the Authority’s
continuing disclosure filings with the assistance of the Authority’s bookkeeper, auditor,
financial advisors, operator, engineer and other Authority consultants.

General Understandings

We understand and agree that this is not an exclusive agreement, and you are
free to retain any other counsel of your choosing. We recognize that we shall be
disqualified from representing any other client with interests materially and directly
adverse to yours (i) in any matter which is substantially related to our representation of
you and (ii) with respect to any matter where there is a reasonable probability that
confidential information you furnished to us could be used to your disadvantage. You
understand and agree that, with those exceptions, we are free to represent other clients,
including clients whose interests may conflict with yours in litigation, business
transactions, or other legal matters. You agree that our representing you in this matter
will not prevent or disqualify us from representing clients adverse to you in other
matters and that you consent in advance to our undertaking such adverse
representations.

This engagement and our attorney-client relationship will be terminated when
we have completed the services in the matters covered by this engagement letter and
any written supplements to this engagement letter. If you later retain us to perform

e
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further or additional services, our attorney-client relationship will be established by
another engagement letter.

Cooperation

To enable us to render effectively the legal services contemplated, the Authority
has agreed to disclose fully and accurately all facts and keep us informed of all
developments relating to our representation. We necessarily must rely on the accuracy
and completeness of the facts and information you and your agents provide to us. To
the extent it is necessary for the Authority’s representatives to attend meetings in
connection with this matter, we will attempt to schedule them so that the convenience
of those representatives can be served.

Fees

Fees related to matters other than bond counsel services (i.e., fees for serving as
general counsel and for continuing disclosure services) are based on hourly rates and
will be based on the time spent by the lawyers, paralegals, and administrative
personnel who work on the matter. Billing rates vary according to the experience of the
individuals. In an effort to reduce overall legal costs, we utilize paralegal and
administrative assistant personnel whenever appropriate.

Our monthly bills will reflect all individuals that worked that month on the
Authority and their respective billing rates.

For our services as bond counsel in connection with the authorization, issuance,
and sale of bonds, the Authority will pay us, from the proceeds of sale of each issue or
installment of the bonds, the following:

a. an amount equal to 1.5% of the first $5,000,000 in principal amount of the
bonds; and
b. an amount equal to 0.5% of the principal amount of such bonds above said

first $5,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $20,000,000 in
principal amount; and

c. an amount equal to 0.4% of the principal amount of such bonds above

$20,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $35,000,000 in principal
amount; and

540148.doc
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d. an amount equal to 0.3% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$35,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $50,000,000 in principal
amount; and

e. an amount equal to 0.2% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$50,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $65,000,000 in principal
amount; and

f. an amount equal to 0.1% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$65,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $80,000,000 in principal
amount; and

g. an amount equal to 0.05% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$80,000,000 in principal amount.

The above fee schedule shall be applicable to each separate issue or installment of
bonds, whether new money bonds or refunding bonds, but shall only be due with
respect to bonds actually issued, sold, and delivered. Our fee for bond counsel services
for any separate issue or installment of the bonds shall not be less than $60,000, plus
charges for the actual expenses involved.

In the event the Authority determines that it is necessary or desirable to issue
bond anticipation notes or to obtain other forms of short-term financing, we will render
all bond counsel services necessary in connection therewith and our fee shall be set
forth in a separate engagement letter mutually agreed upon by the Authority and us.

Other Charges

In addition to our fees, there will be other charges for items incident to the
performance of our legal services, such as photocopying, messengers, travel expenses,
long distance telephone calls, facsimile transmissions, postage, overtime for secretaries
and other non legal staff, specialized computer applications such as computerized legal
research, and filing fees. The basis upon which we establish these other charges is set
forth in the Standard Terms of Engagement for Legal Services.

Investment Disclosures

The Firm's lawyers, directly or beneficially, may own interests in corporations
and other entities or in real property. If you are at all concerned about these individual
investments, we will be pleased to canvass our lawyers about their individual
investments in any entity or entities about which you may be concerned.

5.
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Withdrawal or Termination

Our relationship is based upon mutual consent and you may terminate our
representation at any time, with or without cause, by notifying us. Your termination of
our services will not affect your responsibility for payment of fees for legal services
rendered and of other charges incurred before termination and in connection with an
orderly transition of the matter.

We are subject to the rules of professional conduct for the jurisdictions in which
we practice, which list several types of conduct or circumstances that require or allow
us to withdraw from representing a client, including for example, nonpayment of fees
or costs, misrepresentation or failure to disclose material facts, fundamental
disagreements, and conflict of interest with another client. We try to identify in
advance and discuss with you any situation which may lead to our withdrawal, and if
withdrawal ever becomes necessary, we give you written notice of our withdrawal. If
we elect to withdraw for any reason, you will take all steps necessary to free us of any
obligation to perform further, including the execution of any documents necessary to
complete our withdrawal, and we will be entitled to be paid for all services rendered
and other charges accrued on your behalf to the date of withdrawal.

Other

If the foregoing, including the items set forth in the enclosed Standard Terms of
Engagement For Legal Services, correctly reflects your understanding of the terms and
conditions of our representation, please so indicate by executing the enclosed copy of
this letter in the space provided below and return it to the undersigned. Please contact
me if you have any questions. We are pleased to have this opportunity to be of service
and to work with you.

Very truly yours,

ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON LLP

| By: ()74\ é&&g

J#mes A. Boone
/
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Approved and accepted by the Board of Directors of West Harris County Regional
Water Authority on May 13, 2015.

ATTEST: President, Board of Directors

By: _ \¢" I

Secretz;ry, Board of Directors
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ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON LLP

Standard Terms of Engagement
for Legal Services

This statement sets forth certain standard terms of our engagement as your
lawyers and is intended as a supplement to the engagement letter that we have with
you as our client. Unless modified in writing by mutual agreement, these terms will be
an integral part of our agreement with you as reflected in the engagement letter.
Therefore, we ask that you review this statement carefully and contact us promptly if
you have any questions. We suggest that you retain this statement in your file with the
engagement letter.

The Scope of Our Work

You should have a clear understanding of the legal services we will provide.
Any questions that you have should be dealt with promptly.

We will at all times act on your behalf to the best of our ability. Any expressions
on our part concerning the outcome of your legal matters are expressions of our best
professional judgment, but are not guarantees. Such opinions are necessarily limited by
our knowledge of the facts and are based on the state of the law at the time they are
expressed.

It is our policy that the person or entity that we represent is the person or entity
that is identified in our engagement letter, and absent an express agreement to the
contrary does not include any affiliates of such person or entity (e.g., if you are a
corporation or partnership, any parents, subsidiaries, employees, officers, directors,
shareholders or partners of the corporation or partnership, or commonly owned
corporations or partnerships; or, if you are a trade association, any members of the
trade association). If you believe this engagement includes additional entities or
persons as our clients you should inform us immediately.

It is also our policy that the attorney-client relationship will be considered
terminated upon our completion of any services that you have retained us to perform.
If you later retain us to perform further or additional services, our attorney-client
relationship will be revived subject to the terms of engagement that we agree on at that
time.

This engagement shall be subject to the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct. We also wish to advise you of the contents of The Texas Lawyer’s Creed, a
copy of which is included at the end of these Standard Terms of Engagement for Legal
Services.
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Who Will Provide the Legal Services

Customarily, each client of the Firm is served by a principal attorney contact.
The principal attorney should be someone in whom you have confidence and with
whom you enjoy working. You are free to request a change of principal attorney at any
time. Subject to the supervisory role of the principal attorney, your work or parts of it
may be performed by other lawyers and legal assistants in the Firm. Such delegation
may be for the purpose of involving lawyers or legal assistants with special expertise in
a given area or for the purpose of providing services on the most efficient and timely
basis. Whenever practicable, we will advise you of the names of those attorneys and
legal assistants who work on your matters.

How Our Fees Will Be Set

Generally, our fees are based on the time spent by the lawyers, paralegals, and
administrative personnel who work on the matter. We will charge for all time spent in
representing your interests, including, by way of illustration, telephone and office
conferences with you and your representatives, consultants (if any), opposing counsel,
and others; conferences among our lawyers, paralegals, and administrative personnel;
factual investigation; legal research; responding to your requests for us to provide
information to your auditors in connection with reviews or audits of financial
statements; drafting letters and other documents; and travel. We will keep accurate
records of the time we devote to your work in units of quarters of an hour.

The hourly rates of our lawyers, paralegals, and administrative personnel are
reviewed and increased from time to time, and at least annually, to reflect current levels
of experience, changes in overhead costs, and other factors.

Although we may from time to time, at the client’s request, furnish estimates of
legal fees and other charges that we anticipate will be incurred, these estimates are by
their nature inexact (due to unforeseeable circumstances) and, therefore, the actual fees
and charges ultimately billed may vary from such estimates.

Additional Charges

In addition to our fees, there will be other charges for items incident to the
performance of our legal services, such as photocopying, messengers, travel expenses,
facsimile transmissions, postage, overtime for secretaries and other non-legal staff,
specialized computer applications such as computerized legal research, record
maintenance and storage, and filing fees. The current basis for these charges is set forth
below. The Firm will review this schedule of charges on an annual basis and adjust
them to take into account changes in the Firm's costs and other factors.
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Duplicating
The Firm charges $.15 per page.

Courier Services

The Firm charges an amount which generally represents cost including the
distribution service provided by the Firm. Depending on the volume of work
performed by a service provider, the Firm may receive a volume discount during
a particular accounting period for which no adjustment is made on an individual
client’s bill.

Computer Aided Legal Research (CALR)

Third party providers of CALR services charge the Firm amounts each month
based on the type, extent, and duration of the services provided. The Firm
charges clients for client research only based on the computed cost to the Firm for
the use of the services. This cost is monitored and revised periodically to achieve
an average “at cost” rate for clients.

Telefax
The Firm does not charge for telefaxes.

Telephone
The Firm does not charge for local or long distance calls.

Travel-Related Expenses

Airfare, meals, and related travel expenses charged to the client represent actual,
out-of-pocket cost. Depending on the volume of both Firm and personal travel,
the Firm may receive beneficial services, including airline tickets from its travel
agent for which no adjustment is made on an individual client’s account. In
addition, credits earned under the Frequent Flyer Programs accrue to the
individual traveler and not to the Firm.

All Other Costs

The Firm charges an amount which generally represents costs for maintenance
and storage of client electronic and hard copy records. In addition, the Firm
charges actual disbursements for third-party services like court reporters, expert
witnesses, etc., and may recoup expenses reasonably incurred in connection with
services performed in-house, such as mail services, secretarial overtime, file
retrieval, etc.

Unless special arrangements are otherwise made, fees and expenses of others
(such as experts, investigators, consultants and court reporters) will be the
responsibility of, and billed directly to, the client. Further, all invoices in excess of $500
will be forwarded to the client for direct payment.
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Billing Arrangements and Terms

Our billing rates are based on the assumption of prompt payment. Consequently,
unless other arrangements are made, fees for the services described herein will be billed
from time to time as the work is performed or at such regular intervals, not to exceed 30
days, as the client may direct and are payable within thirty days of receipt.

Advances

Clients of the Firm are sometimes asked to deposit funds as an advance payment
with the Firm. The advance payment will be applied first to payment of charges for
such items as photocopying, messengers, travel, etc., as more fully described above, and
then to fees for services. The advance will be deposited in our client advance account
and we will charge such other charges and our fees against the advance and credit them
on our billing statements. In the event such other charges and our fees for services
exceed the advance deposited with us, we will bill you for the excess monthly or may
request additional advances. Any unused portion of amounts advanced will be
refundable at the conclusion of our representation.

Client and Firm Documents

We will maintain any documents that you furnish to us in our client file (or files)
for this matter. At your request, we will return your documents to you at the conclusion
of the matter (or earlier, if appropriate). It is your obligation to tell us which, if any, of
the documents that you furnish us that you want returned. We will return those
documents to you promptly after our receipt of payment for outstanding fees and
charges. Our own files pertaining to this matter, including the work performed by our
attorneys, will be retained by the Firm. Any documents retained by the Firm will be
kept for a certain period of time, and ultimately we will destroy them in accordance
with our record retention program schedule then in effect.

Attorney Complaint Information

The State of Texas investigates and prosecutes complaints of professional
misconduct against attorneys licensed in Texas. A brochure entitled Attorney
Complaint Information is available at our office and is likewise available upon request.
A client that has any questions about the State Bar’s disciplinary process should call the
Grievance Information Helpline of the State Bar of Texas at 1-800-932-1900.
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I'am a lawyer; I am entrusted by the People of Texas to
preserve and improve our legal system. I am licensed
by the Supreme Court of Texas. I must therefore abide
by the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct, but I know that Professionalism requires
more than merely avoiding the violation of laws and
rules. Tam committed to this Creed for no other reason
than it is right.

I.  OUR LEGAL SYSTEM. A lawyer owes to the
administration of justice personal dignity, integrity,
and independence. A lawyer should always adhere to
the highest principles of professionalism. 1 am
passionately proud of my profession. Therefore, “My
word is my bond.” I am responsible to assure that all
persons have access to competent representation
regardless of wealth or position in life. 1 commit
myself to an adequate and effective pro bono program.
[ am obligated to educate my clients, the public, and
other lawyers regarding the spirit and letter of this
Creed. 1 will always be conscious of my duty to the
judicial system.

II. LAWYER TO CLIENT. A lawyer owes to a
client allegiance, learning, skill, and industry. A
lawyer shall employ all appropriate means to protect
and advance the client’s legitimate rights, claims, and
objectives. A lawyer shall not be deterred by any real
or imagined fear of judicial disfavor or public
unpopularity, nor be influenced by mere self-interest. 1
will advise my client of the contents of this Creed when
undertaking representation. I will endeavor to achieve
my client’s lawful objectives in legal transactions and in
litigation as quickly and economically as possible. I
will be loyal and committed to my client's lawful
objectives, but I will not permit that loyalty and
commitment to interfere with my duty to provide
objective and independent advice. I will advise my
client that civility and courtesy are expected and are
not a sign of weakness. I will advise my client of
proper and expected behavior. I will treat adverse
parties and witnesses with fairness and due
consideration. A client has no right to demand that I
abuse anyone or indulge in any offensive conduct. I
will advise my client that we will not pursue conduct
which is intended primarily to harass or drain the
financial resources of the opposing party. I will advise
my client that we will not pursue tactics which are
intended primarily for delay. 1 will advise my client
that we will not pursue any course of action which is
without merit. I will advise my client that I reserve the
right to determine whether to grant accommodations to
opposing counsel in all matters that do not adversely
affect my client's lawful objectives. A client has no
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right to instruct me to refuse reasonable requests made
by other counsel. I will advise my client regarding the
availability of mediation, arbitration, and other
alternative methods of resolving and settling disputes.

II. LAWYER TO LAWYER. A lawyer owes to
opposing counsel, in the conduct of legal transactions
and the pursuit of litigation, courtesy, candor,
cooperation, and scrupulous observance of all
agreements and mutual understandings. 1l feelings
between clients shall not influence a lawyer’s conduct,
attitude, or demeanor toward opposing counsel. A
lawyer shall not engage in unprofessional conduct in
retaliation against other unprofessional conduct. I will
be courteous, civil, and prompt in oral and written
communications. I will not quarrel over matters of
form or style, but I will concentrate on matters of
substance. I will identify for other counsel or parties all
changes 1 have made in documents submitted for
review. I will attempt to prepare documents which
correctly reflect the agreement of the parties. I will not
include provisions which have not been agreed upon
or omit provisions which are necessary to reflect the
agreement of the parties. 1 will notify opposing
counsel, and, if appropriate, the Court or other persons,
as soon as practicable, when hearings, depositions,
meetings, conferences or closings are canceled. I will
agree to reasonable requests for extensions of time and
for waiver of procedural formalities, provided
legitimate objectives of my client will not be adversely
affected. I will not serve motions or pleadings in any
manner that unfairly limits another party’s opportunity
to respond. I will attempt to resolve by agreement my
objections to matters contained in pleadings and
discovery requests and responses. I can disagree
without being disagreeable. 1 recognize that effective
representation does not require antagonistic or
obnoxious behavior. 1 will neither encourage nor
knowingly permit my client or anyone under my
control to do anything which would be unethical or
improper if done by me. I will not, without good
cause, attribute bad motives or unethical conduct to
opposing counsel nor bring the profession into
disrepute by unfounded accusations of impropriety. I
will avoid disparaging personal remarks or acrimony
towards opposing counsel, parties and witnesses. I
will not be influenced by any ill feeling between clients.
I'will abstain from any allusion to personal peculiarities
or idiosyncrasies of opposing counsel. I will not take
advantage, by causing any default or dismissal to be
rendered, when I know the identity of an opposing
counsel, without first inquiring about that counsel’s
intention to proceed. I will promptly submit orders to



the Court. I will deliver copies to opposing counsel
before or contemporaneously with submission to the
court. T will promptly approve the form of orders
which accurately reflect the substance of the rulings of
the Court. I will not attempt to gain an unfair
advantage by sending the Court or its staff
correspondence or copies of correspondence. I will not
arbitrarily schedule a deposition, Court appearance, or
hearing until a good faith effort has been made to
schedule it by agreement. I will readily stipulate to
undisputed facts in order to avoid needless costs or
inconvenience for any party. I will refrain from
excessive and abusive discovery. I will comply with all
reasonable discovery requests. 1 will not resist
discovery requests which are not objectionable. T will
not make objections nor give instructions to a witness
for the purpose of delaying or obstructing the
discovery process. I will encourage witnesses to
respond to all deposition questions which are
reasonably understandable. I will neither encourage
nor permit my witness to quibble about words where
their meaning is reasonably clear. I will not seek Court
intervention to obtain discovery which is clearly
improper and not discoverable. 1 will not seek
sanctions or disqualification unless it is necessary for
protection of my client’s lawful objectives or is fully
justified by the circumstances.

IV. LAWYER AND JUDGE. Lawyers and judges
owe each other respect, diligence, candor, punctuality,
and protection against unjust and improper criticism
and attack. Lawyers and judges are equally
responsible to protect the dignity and independence of
the Court and the profession. I will always recognize
that the position of judge is the symbol of both the
judicial system and administration of justice. I will
refrain from conduct that degrades this symbol. T will
conduct myself in court in a professional manner and
demonstrate my respect for the Court and the law. I
will treat counsel, opposing parties, the Court, and
members of the Court staff with courtesy and civility. I
will be punctual. T will not engage in any conduct
which offends the dignity and decorum of proceedings.
I will not knowingly misrepresent, mischaracterize,
misquote or miscite facts or authorities to gain an
advantage. I will respect the rulings of the Court. I will
give the issues in controversy deliberate, impartial and
studied analysis and consideration. 1 will be
considerate of the time constraints and pressures
imposed upon the Court, Court staff and counsel in
efforts to administer justice and resolve disputes.
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Thomas R. Barber
Shareholder
713/222-4081
tbarber@munsch.com

February 9, 2018

Via Email: agarcia@abhr.com

Via Email: doliver@abhr.com

West Harris County Regional Water Authority and
North Fort Bend Water Authority

c/o ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON, LLP
3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600

Houston, Texas 77027

Re:  Amendment to Engagement Letter of October 14, 2015 Regarding Consultation
and Advice Concerning Construction Of The Second Source Project

Dear Boards of Directors,

This letter confirms the amendment (“Amendment’) of the engagement letter and
agreement (“Engagement”), dated October 14, 2015, made between Munsch, Hardt, Kopf &
Harr, P.C. (“Munsch, Hardt” or “Firm”) and the West Harris County Regional Water Authority
(“WHCRWA"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, relating to the above captioned
matter. The purpose of this Amendment is to provide for the joint representation of WHCRWA
and North Ft. Bend Water Authority (“NFBWA”) pursuant to and in accordance with the
Engagement, except as expressly provided otherwise herein. Acceptance of the amended
representation (the “Representation”) will be effective as of October 10, 2015, as it was and is
the intention of the WHCRWA, NFBWA and Munsch, Hardt that both WHCRWA and NFBWA be
clients of Munsch, Hardt since that date, the WHCRWA and NFBWA having shared
communications and advice accordingly.

Specifically, the Engagement is hereby modified to include NFBWA as a party defined
as “Our Client” and to add the following paragraphs, as the paragraphs immediately preceding
the paragraph heading “Conclusion”

“Joint Representation”

The Representation is a joint representation of both WHCRWA and NFBWA. As such,
any written communications from the Firm with one shall be copied to or otherwise provided to
the other. Both WHCRWA and NFBWA shall be invited by the Firm to participate in phone
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conferences and meetings. The Firm will take direction from the clients consistent with the
clients’ respective rights and obligations as set forth in the Joint Facilities Agreement for
Segments 0 & 1A, Bellaire Pump Station, and Second Source Waterline/Pump Stations dated
July 1, 2011, as amended. The withdrawal of one of the clients to the joint representation shall
not in and of itself constitute grounds for disqualification of the Firm, unless the Firm is required
to withdraw from the representation of the remaining client under the applicable rules of
professional responsibility adopted in Texas.

As between WHCRWA and NFBWA, information and communications that the Firm
receives from one or both of them will not be confidential with respect to the Representation.

The Firm has agreed, for the convenience of WHCRWA and NFBWA, to render a single
monthly statement, delivered to the then designated representative of WHCRWA and to look
solely to WHCRWA for payment.

In the event of any dispute between WHCRWA and NFBWA relating to the
Representation or any agreement between WHCRWA and NFBWA relating to the sharing of
costs for the Surface Water Supply Project, previously known as the Second Source Project, the
Firm will not undertake the representation of either in respect to such dispute, but shall not also
be precluded from continuing the Representation as to one or both, unless required under the
applicable rules of professional responsibility adopted in Texas.”

No other change to the Engagement is made and in the event of any ambiguity or
conflict between the Engagement and this Amendment, this Amendment shall control.

Thank you again for this opportunity to be of service.

Very truly yours,
— s )
Thomas R. Barber
TRB:dh
Attachment

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY:

WEST H S Cq ZNAL WATER AUTHORITY
By: @24 g

Name: B@UCG: Q‘HQK@?
Title: Pees a7
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ATTORNEYS § COUNSELORS
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700 Milam Street

Suite 2700

Houston Texas 77002-2806
Main 713.222 1470

Fax 713222 1475

munsch com

Direct Dial 713.222 4081
Direct Fax 713.222.5894
tbarber@munsch.com

October 14, 2015

Via Email: agarcia@abhr.com

West Harris County Regional Water Authority

c/o ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON. LLP
ATTN: Alex Garcia

3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600

Houston, Texas 77027

Re:  Consultation and Advice Concerning Construction Of The Second Source Project

Dear Board of Directors.

This letter confirms that Munsch, Hardt, Kopf & Harr, P.C. (“Munsch, Hardt™) will represent the
West Harris County Regional Water Authority (“Our Client™) in connection with the above referenced
matter. Our acceptance of the representation (the “Representation™) will be effective as of October 10,

2015.

Terms of Engagement

This letter sets out the terms of our engagement in the Representation. Certain defined terms are
included in the body of this letter, and additional terms are contained in the attached document. entitled
Engagement Letter - Exhibit A. The execution and return of this letter constitutes an unqualified
agreement to all the terms set forth in this letter and in the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A.

Our Personnel Who Will Be Working on the Matter

I will be working on the Representation and representatives of Our Client may call. write. or e-
mail me whenever anyone has any questions about the Representation. Other firm personnel. including
firm lawyers and legal assistants. will participate in the Representation when in our judgment their
participation is necessary or appropriate.

Our Legal Fees and Costs

Legal fees and costs are difficult to estimate. Accordingly. we have made no commitment
concerning the maximum fees and costs that will be necessary to resolve or complete the
Representation. From time to time. we may furnish estimates of legal fees and other charges that we
anticipate will be incurred in connection with the Matter. Such estimates are by their nature inexact
because of the potential for unforeseeable circumstances; and therefore. our actual fees and other
charges may vary from such estimates.

It is expressly understood that payment of our fees and costs is in no way contingent on the
ultimate outcome of the Representation. All fees and costs associated with the Representation will be

MHDocs 6609512_1 981077.1
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paid by Our Client within thirty (30) days of invoice, including without limitation: copy costs;
messenger fees: long distance telephone charges: expert witness fees: all travel expenses, including air,
hotel. meals and ground transportation: court reporter’s charges: Westlaw or other outside computerized
research: filing fees: records service charges: and any other costs needed to carry out the
Representation. No air or hotel expenses shall be charged to Our Client without Our Client's prior

written approval.

Generally, our hourly billing rates range from $300.00 to $450.00 for directors: from $200.00 to
$300.00 for senior associates: from $160.00 to $200.00 for associates: and from $90.00 to $160.00 for
legal assistants. 1 charge $390.00 per hour. Other associates and directors working on the
Representation will range from $275.00 to $390.00. These rates may be adjusted upward from time to
time to account for inflation and other market forces without advanced notice to Our Client.

Conflicts of Interest

Before accepting the Representation, we have undertaken reasonable and customary efforts to
determine whether there are any potential conflicts of interest that would bar our firm from representing
Our Client. Based on the information available to us. we are not aware of any potential disqualification.
We reviewed potential conflicts in accordance with the rules of professional responsibility adopted in
Texas. We believe that those rules. rather than the rules of any other jurisdiction. are applicable to the
Representation, and the execution and return of the enclosed copy of this letter by Our Client represents
an express agreement to the applicability of Texas rules. If you are aware, or become aware, of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest, please let us know in writing immediately.

Conclusion

This letter and the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A arc the entire terms ofthe
engagement of Munsch, Hardt in the Representation. These written terms of engagement are not
subject to any oral agreements or understandings, and they can only be modified by written agreement
signed both by Munsch, Hardt and Our Client. Unless expressly stated in these terms of engagement,
no obligation or undertaking shall be implied on the part of either Munsch. Hardt or Our Client.

Please carefully review this letter and the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A. If there are
any questions about these terms of engagement. or if these terms are inaccurate in any way. please let
me know immediately. If both documents are acceptable. please sign and return this letter. Thank you
very much for this opportunity to be of service to you.

Very truly yours.

—— D

Tom R. Barber
Our Clientagrees t6 and’aceepts this letter and the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A:

By: Wy /
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Printed Name: @6?(’&2{ @M
Title: GDL é W
Date: /O / 5//3
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Engagement Letter - Exhibit A

This is a supplement to our engagement letter. The purpose of this document is to set out additional
terms of our agreement to provide the representation described in our engagement letter (the
“Representation™) concerning the matter referenced in the engagement letter (the “Matter™). Because
these additional terms of engagement are a part of our agreement to provide legal services to Our Client.
you should review them carefully and should promptly communicate to us any questions concerning
this document. We suggest that Our Client retain a copy of this statement of additional terms along
with the engagement letter and any related documents.

The Scope of the Representation

As lawyers, we undertake to provide representation and advice on the legal matters for which we are
engaged. If there are any questions about the scope of the Representation, please raise those questions
promptly, so that we may resolve them at the outset.

Any expressions on our part concerning the outcome of the Representation. or any other matters, are
based on our professional judgment and are not guarantees. Such expressions, even when described as
opinions. are necessarily limited by our knowledge of the facts and are based on our views of the state
of the law at the time they are expressed. Munsch, Hardt has made no guarantees or promises to Our
Client about the outcome of the Representation or the Matter, and nothing in the terms of engagement
shall be construed as a guarantee or promise.

Upon accepting this engagement on Our Client’s behalf, Munsch, Hardt agrees to do the following: (1)
provide legal counsel in accordance with these terms of engagement and the related engagement letter,
and in reliance upon information and guidance provided by Our Client; and (2) keep Our Client
reasonably informed about the status and progress of the Representation.

To enable us to provide effective representation, Our Client agrees to do the following: (1) disclose to
us, fully and accurately and on a timely basis, all facts and documents that are or might be related to the
Representation or that we may request. (2) keep us apprised on a timely basis of all developments
relating to the Representation that are or might be important, (3) attend meetings. conferences, and other
proceedings when it is reasonable to do so. and (4) otherwise fully cooperate with us.

Munsch, Hardt does not represent itself as experts or advisors in the area of taxation. If Our Client has
tax questions, Munsch, Hardt advises Our Client to consult with an accountant or tax expert.

Who Will Provide the Legal Services

Munsch, Hardt, Kopf, & Harr, P.C. will represent Our Client in the Matter. Although our firm will be
providing legal services. each client of the firm customarily has a relationship principally with one
attorney, or perhaps a few attorneys. At the same time, however, the work required in the
Representation, or parts of it, may be performed by other firm personnel, including lawyers and legal
assistants.
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Our Relationships With Others

Our law firm represents many companies and individuals. In some instances. the applicable rules of
professional conduct may limit our ability to represent clients with conflicting or potentially conflicting
interests. Those rules of conduct often allow us to exercise our independent judgment in determining
whether our relationship with one client prevents us from representing another. In other situations, we
may be permitted to represent a client only if the other client consents to that representation.

Records Retention

Our law firm has a records retention policy that allows us to destroy files within a reasonable time after
the Representation has been concluded. Generally, we destroy files four years after representation on a
matter has ceased or the file has been sent to our closed files. A copy of our records retention policy is
attached.

Termination

At any time, Our Client may, with or without cause, terminate the Representation by notifying us of Our
Client’s intention to do so. Any such termination of services will not affect the obligation to pay legal
services rendered and expenses incurred before termination, as well as additional services and charges
incurred in connection with an orderly transition of the Matter.

There are several types of conduct or circumstances that could result in our withdrawing from
representing a client. including, for example, the following: non-payment of fees or costs;
misrepresentation or failure to disclose important information; fraudulent or criminal conduct; action
contrary to our advice: failure to develop a workable relationship with Our Client; and conflict of
interest with another client.

A failure by Our Client to meet any obligations under these terms of engagement shall entitle Munsch,
Hardt to terminate the Representation. In that event, Our Client will take all steps necessary to release
Munsch, Hardt of any further obligations in the Representation or the Matter, including without
limitation the execution of any documents necessary to effectuate our withdrawal from the
Representation or the Matter. The right of Munsch. Hardt to withdraw in such circumstances is in
addition to any rights created by law, statute or recognized by the governing rules of professional

conduct.
Billing Arrangements and Terms of Payment

Our engagement letter specifically explains our fees for services in the Matter. We will bill on a regular
basis, normally each month, for both fees and expenses, and it is agreed that Our Client will make full
payment within 30 days of receiving our statement.

It is further agreed that any delinquent account must be promptly paid, and if the delinquency continues,
we may withdraw from the Representation and pursue collection of our account.
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Typically, our invoices will include amounts. not only for legal services rendered. but also for other
expenses and services. Examples include charges for photocopying, long-distance telephone calls,
travel and conference expenses, messenger deliveries, computerized research, and facsimile and other
electronic transmissions. expert witness fees: all travel expenses, including air, hotel. meals and ground
transportation: court reporter’s charges; Westlaw or other outside computerized research: filing fees;
records service charges; and any other costs needed to carry out the Representation. In addition, we
reserve the right to send to Our Client for direct payment any invoices delivered to us by others,
including experts and any vendors relating to the Representation.

Attorney Complaint Information .

The State Bar of Texas investigates and prosecutes complaints of professional misconduct against
attorneys licensed in Texas. A brochure entitled Attorney Complaint Information is available at our
office and is likewise available upon request. A client that has any questions about State Bar's
disciplinary process should call the Office of the General Counsel of the State Bar of Texas at 1-877-
953-5535 toll free.
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MUNSCH, HARDT, KOPF & HARR, P.C.
RECORDS RETENTION POLICY

LEGAL FILES

It is the policy of the Firm to retain records in storage relating to representation of a client in a matter
for a period not to exceed four (4) years following the end of the representation. At any time after the
file is closed, the client may request the closed file be transferred to the client. The file may contain
original documents which will be destroyed with the file. Clients who wish files to be retained will be
charged the storage expense.

At the end of every year, the attorneys will be given a list of those files which have been closed for a
period in excess of four (4) years. In the event the files listed for destruction need to be retained for a
period longer than four (4) years, the attorney in charge of the file is to notify the Records Retention
Committee that the file should be retained and the reasons the file should be retained. In such event, the
file will be retained for another four (4) years at the client's expense.

NOTIFICATION TO CLIENTS OF RECORDS RETENTION POLICY

Upon assumption of the representation of a client in a matter and upon the conclusion of the
representation. efforts should be made to inform the client of this Records Retention Policy.

In the event no notification is received from the client that the client wants the file within thirty (30)
days of the mailing of notice to the client of the Firm's record retention policy, the file will be destroyed
in accordance with this policy.

ADMINISTRATIVE FILES

It is the policy of the Firm to destroy administrative non-financial records after a period of two (2)
years. It is the policy of the Firm to retain administrative financial records. including records relating to
client billings and to bank and trust accounts, for a period not to exceed seven (7) years at which time

they will be destroyed.
PERSONAL FILES

It is the policy of the Firm not to store non-client files. At the end of every year any attorney or
employee having personal files in Firm storage will be given a list of those files. Within thirty (30)
days of receipt of the list, the attorney or employee shall notify the Records Retention Committee
whether the files are to be returned. otherwise they will be destroyed.
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ATTORNEYS & COUNSELORS
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Direct Dial 713.222 4081
Direct Fax 713.222.5894
tharber@@munsch.com

QOctober 14, 2015

Via Email: agarciaiwabhr.com

West Harris County Regional Water Authority

c¢/o ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON, LLP
ATTN: Alex Garcia

3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600

Houston, Texas 77027

Re:  Consultation and Advice Concerning Construction Of The Second Source Project
Dear Board of Directors,

This letter confirms that Munsch, Hardt, Kopf & Harr, P.C. (“Munsch, Hardt™) will represent the
West Harris County Regional Water Authority (“Our Client™) in connection with the above referenced
matter. Our acceptance of the representation (the “Representation™) will be effective as of October 10,
2015.

Terms of Engagement

This letter sets out the terms of our engagement in the Representation. Certain defined terms are
included in the body of this letter, and additional terms are contained in the attached document, entitled
Engagement Letter - Exhibit A. The execution and return of this letter constitutes an unqualified
agreement to all the terms set forth in this letter and in the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A.

Our Personnel Who Will Be Working on the Matter

I will be working on the Representation and representatives of Our Client may call, write, or e-
mail me whenever anyone has any questions about the Representation. Other firm personnel, including
firm lawyers and legal assistants, will participate in the Representation when in our judgment their
participation is necessary or appropriate.

Our Legal Fees and Costs

Legal fees and costs are difficult to estimate. Accordingly, we have made no commitment
concerning the maximum fees and costs that will be necessary to resolve or complete the
Representation. From time to time, we may furnish estimates of legal fees and other charges that we
anticipate will be incurred in connection with the Matter. Such estimates are by their nature inexact
because of the potential for unforeseeable circumstances; and therefore, our actual fees and other
charges may vary from such estimates.

It is expressly understood that payment of our fees and costs is in no way contingent on the
ultimate outcome of the Representation. All fees and costs associated with the Representation will be
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paid by Our Client within thirty (30) days of invoice, including without limitation: copy costs;
messenger fees; long distance telephone charges; expert witness fees; all travel expenses, including air,
hotel, meals and ground transportation; court reporter’s charges; Westlaw or other outside computerized
research; filing fees: records service charges; and any other costs needed to carry out the
Representation. No air or hotel expenses shall be charged to Our Client without Our Client's prior
written approval.

Generally. our hourly billing rates range from $300.00 to $450.00 for directors; from $200.00 to
$300.00 for senior associates; from $160.00 to $200.00 for associates; and from $90.00 to $160.00 for
legal assistants. 1 charge $390.00 per hour. Other associates and directors working on the
Representation will range from $275.00 to $390.00. These rates may be adjusted upward from time to
time to account for inflation and other market forces without advanced notice to Our Client.

Conflicts of Interest

Before accepting the Representation, we have undertaken reasonable and customary efforts to
determine whether there are any potential conflicts of interest that would bar our firm from representing
Our Client. Based on the information available to us, we are not aware of any potential disqualification.
We reviewed potential conflicts in accordance with the rules of professional responsibility adopted in
Texas. We believe that those rules, rather than the rules of any other jurisdiction, are applicable to the
Representation, and the execution and return of the enclosed copy of this letter by Our Client represents
an express agreement to the applicability of Texas rules. If you are aware, or become aware, of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest, please let us know in writing immediately.

Conclusion

This letter and the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A are the entire terms ofthe
engagement of Munsch, Hardt in the Representation. These written terms of engagement are not
subject to any oral agreements or understandings, and they can only be modified by written agreement
signed both by Munsch, Hardt and Our Client. Unless expressly stated in these terms of engagement,
no obligation or undertaking shall be implied on the part of either Munsch, Hardt or Our Client.

Please carefully review this letter and the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A. If there are
any questions about these terms of engagement, or if these terms are inaccurate in any way, please let
me know immediately. If both documents are acceptable, please sign and return this letter. Thank you
very much for this opportunity to be of service to you.

~Very-truly yours,

- @ Tom R. Barber
Our Ch grees 10 am’ﬁ accepts this letter and the attached Engagement Letter - Exhibit A:
? ep

";x - # .
By: / wz"iﬁw@" / %ﬁ =y
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Printed Name:@ M{' @M
Title: VO L ] &’W
Date: /é “/ %/ 3/
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Engagement Letter - Exhibit A

This is a supplement to our engagement letter. The purpose of this document is to set out additional
terms of our agreement to provide the representation described in our engagement letter (the
“Representation”) concerning the matter referenced in the engagement letter (the “Matter”). Because
these additional terms of engagement are a part of our agreement to provide legal services to Our Client,
you should review them carefully and should promptly communicate to us any questions concerning
this document. We suggest that Our Client retain a copy of this statement of additional terms along
with the engagement letter and any related documents.

The Scope of the Representation

As lawyers, we undertake to provide representation and advice on the legal matters for which we are
engaged. If there are any questions about the scope of the Representation, please raise those questions
promptly, so that we may resolve them at the outset.

Any expressions on our part concerning the outcome of the Representation, or any other matters, are
based on our professional judgment and are not guarantees. Such expressions, even when described as
opinions, are necessarily limited by our knowledge of the facts and are based on our views of the state
of the law at the time they are expressed. Munsch, Hardt has made no guarantees or promises to Our
Client about the outcome of the Representation or the Matter, and nothing in the terms of engagement
shall be construed as a guarantee or promise.

Upon accepting this engagement on Our Client’s behalf, Munsch, Hardt agrees to do the following: (1)
provide legal counsel in accordance with these terms of engagement and the related engagement letter,
and in reliance upon information and guidance provided by Our Client; and (2) keep Our Client
reasonably informed about the status and progress of the Representation.

To enable us to provide effective representation, Our Client agrees to do the following: (1) disclose to
us, fully and accurately and on a timely basis, all facts and documents that are or might be related to the
Representation or that we may request, (2) keep us apprised on a timely basis of all developments
relating to the Representation that are or might be important, (3) attend meetings, conferences, and other
proceedings when it is reasonable to do so, and (4) otherwise fully cooperate with us.

Munsch, Hardt does not represent itself as experts or advisors in the area of taxation. If Our Client has
tax questions, Munsch, Hardt advises Our Client to consult with an accountant or tax expert.

Who Will Provide the Legal Services

Munsch, Hardt, Kopf, & Harr, P.C. will represent Our Client in the Matter. Although our firm will be
providing legal services, each client of the firm customarily has a relationship principally with one
attorney, or perhaps a few attorneys. At the same time, however, the work required in the
Representation, or parts of it, may be performed by other firm personnel, including lawyers and legal
assistants.
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Our Relationships With Others

Our law firm represents many companies and individuals. In some instances, the applicable rules of
professional conduct may limit our ability to represent clients with conflicting or potentially conflicting
interests. Those rules of conduct often allow us to exercise our independent judgment in determining
whether our relationship with one client prevents us from representing another. In other situations, we
may be permitted to represent a client only if the other client consents to that representation.

Records Retention

Our law firm has a records retention policy that allows us to destroy files within a reasonable time after
the Representation has been concluded. Generally, we destroy files four years after representation on a
matter has ceased or the file has been sent to our closed files. A copy of our records retention policy is
attached.

Termination

At any time, Our Client may, with or without cause, terminate the Representation by notifying us of Our
Client’s intention to do so. Any such termination of services will not affect the obligation to pay legal
services rendered and expenses incurred before termination, as well as additional services and charges
incurred in connection with an orderly transition of the Matter.

There are several types of conduct or circumstances that could result in our withdrawing from
representing a client, including, for example, the following: non-payment of fees or costs;
misrepresentation or failure to disclose important information; fraudulent or criminal conduct; action
contrary to our advice; failure to develop a workable relationship with Our Client; and conflict of
interest with another client.

A failure by Our Client to meet any obligations under these terms of engagement shall entitle Munsch,
Hardt to terminate the Representation. In that event, Our Client will take all steps necessary to release
Munsch, Hardt of any further obligations in the Representation or the Matter, including without
limitation the execution of any documents necessary to effectuate our withdrawal from the
Representation or the Matter. The right of Munsch, Hardt to withdraw in such circumstances is in
addition to any rights created by law, statute or recognized by the governing rules of professional
conduct.

Billing Arrangements and Terms of Payment
Our engagement letter specifically explains our fees for services in the Matter. We will bill on a regular
basis, normally each month, for both fees and expenses, and it is agreed that Our Client will make full

payment within 30 days of receiving our statement.

It is further agreed that any delinquent account must be promptly paid, and if the delinquency continues,
we may withdraw from the Representation and pursue collection of our account.
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Typically, our invoices will include amounts, not only for legal services rendered, but also for other
expenses and services. Examples include charges for photocopying, long-distance telephone calls,
travel and conference expenses, messenger deliveries, computerized research, and facsimile and other
electronic transmissions, expert witness fees; all travel expenses, including air, hotel, meals and ground
transportation; court reporter’s charges; Westlaw or other outside computerized research; filing fees;
records service charges; and any other costs needed to carry out the Representation. In addition, we
reserve the right to send to Our Client for direct payment any invoices delivered to us by others,
including experts and any vendors relating to the Representation.

Attorney Complaint Information

The State Bar of Texas investigates and prosecutes complaints of professional misconduct against

attorneys licensed in Texas. A brochure entitled Attorney Complaint Information is available at our
office and is likewise available upon request. A client that has any questions about State Bar's

disciplinary process should call the Office of the General Counsel of the State Bar of Texas at 1-877-
953-5535 toll free.
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MUNSCH, HARDT, KOPF & HARR, P.C.
RECORDS RETENTION POLICY
LEGAL FILES

It is the policy of the Firm to retain records in storage relating to representation of a client in a matter
for a period not to exceed four (4) years following the end of the representation. At any time after the
file is closed, the client may request the closed file be transferred to the client. The file may contain
original documents which will be destroyed with the file. Clients who wish files to be retained will be
charged the storage expense.

At the end of every year, the attorneys will be given a list of those files which have been closed for a
period in excess of four (4) years. In the event the files listed for destruction need to be retained for a
period longer than four (4) years, the attorney in charge of the file is to notify the Records Retention
Committee that the file should be retained and the reasons the file should be retained. In such event, the
file will be retained for another four (4) years at the client’s expense.

NOTIFICATION TO CLIENTS OF RECORDS RETENTION POLICY

Upon assumption of the representation of a client in a matter and upon the conclusion of the
representation, efforts should be made to inform the client of this Records Retention Policy.

In the event no notification is received from the client that the client wants the file within thirty (30)
days of the mailing of notice to the client of the Firm’s record retention policy, the file will be destroyed
in accordance with this policy.

ADMINISTRATIVE FILES

It is the policy of the Firm to destroy administrative non-financial records after a period of two (2)
years. It is the policy of the Firm to retain administrative financial records, including records relating to
client billings and to bank and trust accounts, for a period not to exceed seven (7) years at which time
they will be destroyed.

PERSONAL FILES

It is the policy of the Firm not to store non-client files. At the end of every year any attorney or
employee having personal files in Firm storage will be given a list of those files. Within thirty (30)
days of receipt of the list, the attorney or employee shall notify the Records Retention Committee
whether the files are to be returned, otherwise they will be destroyed.
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DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
LETTER OF AGREEMENT
FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into this 6th day of June, 2001, by and between Dannenbaum
Engineering Corporation of Harris County, Texas (hereinafter called the "Engineer"), and West Harris
County Regional Water Authority (hereinafter called the "Authority").

That whereas the Authority has requested basic services of the Engineer in relation to:

General Engineering Consultant Services for the operation of the West Harris County Regional Water
Authority (herein called the “Project”) to include but not be limited to:

a. Providing general engineering services as needed

b. Attending meetings of the Authority, Districts within the Authority, and other agencies
¢. Completion of a Water Rate Study

d. Preparation of a Ground Water Reduction Plan

e. Preliminary and final design of water supply facilities

NOW, THEREFORE, the AUTHORITY and the ENGINEER, in consideration of the mutual covenants
hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

Upon receipt of the executed copy of this Agreement, the Engineer will perform services to provide the
Authority with the data, information or opinion requested, proceed with the work as expeditiously as
practical, inform the Authority of any delays and provide to the Authority with a minimum of two
formalized copies of the final product or findings.

The Authority will place at the Engineer's disposal all available information pertinent to the Project
including previous reports and any other relative data and will arrange for and provide access to the
Engineer, without liability of any nature to the Engineer except for Engineer's own misconduct, to enter
upon public and private lands as required for the Engineer to perform his work under this Agreement.

Payments for services of the Engineer will be based on payroll costs of salaries and wages times a factor
for general overhead and profit (see Exhibit "A"). Reimbursable expenses, or services and expenses of
sub-consultants, will be charged at Engineer’s cost. Any reimbursable expenses, or services and expenses
of sub-consultants, in excess of $2,000 will be invoiced directly to the Authority.

Reimbursable expenses shall mean the Engineer’s actual expense of transportation and subsistence of
principals, employees and consultants when traveling in connection with the Project, consultant’s fees,
field office expenses, toll telephone calls and telegrams, reproduction of reports, drawings and similar
Project related items.

Payments for services, additional services and reimbursable expenses shall be made by the Authority
within sixty (60) days after receipt of Engineer's statement.

Termination of this Agreement prior to completion must be made in writing and may be made by either
party. If this Agreement is terminated at any time by either party, the Engineer shall be paid for services
actually performed.

If, prior to termination of this Agreement, any work is suspended in whole or in part for more than three
months, or abandoned, after written notice from the Authority, the Engineer shall be paid for services
performed prior to receipt of such notice from the Authority.

All documents, including original drawings, estimates, specifications, field notes and data are and shall

remain the property of the Engineer as instruments of service. The Authority may at his expense obtain a
set of reproducibles.
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NOTWITHSTANDING anything to the contrary herein, all fees and charges due to Dannenbaum
Engineering Corporation under this agreement shall be paid only from funds raised by the Authority.
None of the members of the Board of Directors of the Authority have any personal liability of any nature
or amount for any of the fees or charges due hereunder.

The parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

CLIENT: ENGINEER:

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION

I 1/

Waynﬁé. Ahrens, P.E.
Principal




EXHIBIT “A”

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY SALARY COST

MARCH, 2001

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION SALARY COST PER HOUR

Clerks, Printers, etc. 25.00 55.00
Secretaries 35.00 65.00
Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst. 65.00 85.00
CAD Manager 85.00 110.00
System Analyst, Computer Operators 60.00 85.00
Computer Technicians I, Draftsmen I 25.00 50.00
Computer Technicians I & III, Draftsmen II & III 45.00 85.00
Designers, Grade [ & II 60.00 85.00
Designers, Grade I1I 70.00 100.00
4 Man Survey Crew 120.00 165.00
3 Man Survey Crew 95.00 140.00
2 Man Survey Crew 65.00 110.00
Party Chief 45.00 70.00
Instrument Technicians 25.00 50.00
Rodmen, Chainmen 20.00 35.00
Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor 80.00 115.00
Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor 110.00 150.00
Inspectors, Project Representatives 50.00 85.00
Engineers I & 11, Engineering Assistant 50.00 80.00
Engineers II[, Engineering Associate 65.00 100.00
Engineers IV 75.00 110.00
Engineers V, Project Manager 100.00 150.00
Engineers VI, Principal, Division Manager, Project Director 135.00 250.00

COMPUTER COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

MICROSTATION/AUTOCAD: $ 10 per Workstation Hour

GPS RTK: $350 per Day (Survey)

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 4” x 117)
Xerox Prints $ 1.00 per Square Foot
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot
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PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this “ Agreement”) is by and
between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the “Authority”) and
Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective as of this 13th
day of October, 2010.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously executed that certain Dannenbaum
Engineering Corporation Letter of Agreement for Consulting Services dated June 6,
2001 (the “Letter Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to engage Engineer to perform certain
professional engineering services (“Services”);

WHEREAS, this Agreement is intended to supersede and replace the Letter
Agreement; provided, however, that any outstanding Work Authorizations approved
pursuant to the Letter Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall
hereafter be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L ENGINEER’S RESPONSIBILITIES. Engineer agrees to perform or furnish
professional engineering services for the Authority as set out herein and to give
professional engineering consultation and advice to the Authority in its capacity as
the Authority’s Engineer for the compensation set forth herein.

A, SCOPE OF SERVICES. There are two types of Services provided under
this Agreement: Program and Construction Management Services and Additional
Services.
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1.

Program and Construction Management Services.

The Authority and Engineer understand and agree that routine program
management and construction management services (“Program and Construction
Management Services”) shall include the following;:

a. Attending meetings of the Authority and representing the
Authority at meetings and conferences;

On-site inspections of facilities;

Preparing letter reports;

Correspondence with regulatory agencies;

Renewing or amending permits;

Managing design consultants;

Reviewing construction plans and specifications;

Coordinating with Authority operator and other consultants;
Communication among service providers; and

Other miscellaneous items of work relating to routine operations
and business of the Authority.

5@ e Ao o

— e

Engineer shall attend the regular monthly meetings of the Authority. Program
and Construction Management Services do not require a separate Work
Authorization, as defined below.

2.

Additional Services.

Additional Services shall include the following:

1.

296127_2.doc

Field surveys to collect information required for design, including
photogrammetry, and related office computations and drafting.

Special studies and analysis relating to the Authority’s facilities.

Services of a resident project representative (“Project Representative”),
and other field personnel as requested or agreed to by the Authority for
extensive continuous or part-time on-the-site observation of construction
and for performance of required construction layout surveys.

Preparation and submittal of funding applications to the Texas Water
Development Board (“TWBD”), including related appearances before the
TWBD.

Land surveys and establishment of boundaries and monuments, and
related office computations and drafting.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

B.

Construction and control staking to delineate the location of all
improvements.

Preparation of property or easement descriptions.
Preparation of any special reports required for marketing of bonds.

Appearances before regulatory agencies for any purpose other than
approval of design drawings and documents.

Assistance to the Authority as an expert witness in any litigation with
third parties arising from the development or construction of Authority
projects.

Special investigations involving detailed consideration of operation,
maintenance and overhead expenses; preparation of rate schedules; and
special feasibility studies.

Soil and foundation investigations coordination, including field and
laboratory  tests, borings, related engineering analyses, and
recommendations.

Detailed mill, shop and/or laboratory inspection of materials and
equipment.

Travel and subsistence required of Engineer and authorized by the
Authority.

Additional copies of reports, specifications, and additional copies of
drawings over five copies.

Preparation of applications and supporting documents for
government grants or planning advances for public works projects.

Preparation of environmental statements and assistance to owner in
preparing for and attending public hearings.

Revision of design drawings after a definite plan has been approved
by the Authority.

Any other Services approved in a Work Authorization not specifically
described herein.

WORK AUTHORIZATIONS.  All Services, other than Program and

Construction Management Services as defined below, shall require a written work
authorization (“Work Authorization”), and each Work Authorization shall include:
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a. Description of work;

b. Description of support data to be supplied by the Authority;

& Basis of compensation;

d. Budget of estimated fees;

e. Completion schedule;

b Statement that performance of the work will be in accordance
with this Agreement;
Proposed project manager or administrator, if applicable;

h. Special provisions applicable to the Work Authorization;

i. Engineer’s signature and date;

i Approval and signature block for Authority; and

k. Effective date of Authority’s acceptance and date of authorization.

II. COMPENSATION, BILLING, AND PAYMENT. The Authority shall pay
Engineer for Services in accordance with the following:

A.  PROGRAM AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES. The
Authority shall pay Engineer for Program and Construction Management Services
based on time and materials plus reimbursable expenses in accordance with the Rate
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.

B. ADDITOINAL SERVICES. The Authority shall pay Engineer for
Additional Services based either on (i) time and materials plus reimbursable expenses
in accordance with the Rate Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A or (ii) a lump sum
basis, each as determined in the applicable Work Authorization.

C. PAYMENTS. Engineer shall submit monthly written invoices for services
performed during the preceding month to the Authority’s bookkeeper, and the
Authority will use its best efforts to make payment within forty-five (45) days of
receipt of invoice. Unless special arrangements are made, if the Authority fails to
make payment within 45 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice therefor, the
amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the
maximum rate allowed by law, if less), from the 46t day. In the event of disputed or
contested billing, only that portion so contested may be withheld from payment, and
the undisputed portion will be paid. No interest will accrue on any contested portion
of the billing until mutually resolved.
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II. ~ STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

A, STANDARD OF CARE. Engineer’s services shall be performed in
accordance with the standard of professional practice ordinarily exercised by
professional engineers at the time and within the locality where the Services are
performed commensurate with the requirements of the civil engineering profession
and through persons ordinarily engaged therein.

B. DELAYS. If events beyond the control of the Authority or Engineer,
including, but not limited to, fire, flood, explosion, riot, stroke, war, process
shutdown, act of God or the public enemy, and act or regulation of any government
agency, result in delay to any schedule established in this Agreement, such schedule
shall be amended to the extent necessary to compensate for such delay. In the event
such delay exceeds ninety (90) days, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable
adjustment in compensation if mutually agreeable to the Engineer and the Authority.

C. TERMINATION/SUSPENSION. Either party may terminate this
Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. The Authority shall
pay Engineer for all Services rendered prior to termination. Copies of all completed
or partially completed designs, drawings, specifications, reports or any other
document prepared by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement shall be delivered to the
Authority within fourteen (14) days of the effective date of termination, at no
additional cost to the Authority. In the event either party defaults in its obligations
under this Agreement (including Authority’s obligation to make the payments
required hereunder), the non-defaulting party may suspend performance under this
Agreement after seven (7) days written notice stating its intention to suspend
performance under the Agreement if cure of such default is not commenced and
diligently continued.

D.  OPINIONS OF CONSTRUCTION COST. Any opinion of probable
construction costs prepared by Engineer is supplied for the general guidance of the
Authority only. Because Engineer has no control over competitive bidding or market
conditions, Engineer cannot guarantee the accuracy of such opinions as compared to
contract bids or actual costs to the Authority.

E. RELATIONSHIP WITH CONTRACTORS. Engineer shall serve as the
Authority’s professional representative for the Services, and may make
recommendations to the Authority concerning actions relating to the Authority’s
contractors, but Engineer specifically disclaims any authority to direct or supervise
the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction selected by
the Authority’s contractors.

F. INSURANCE. Engineer shall furnish certificates of insurance to the
Authority evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements hereof. Certificates
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shall name Engineer, name of insurance company, policy number, term of coverage,
and limits of coverage. Engineer, shall cause its insurance companies to provide the
Authority with at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of any reduction in the limit
of liability by endorsement of the policy, cancellation or non-renewal of the insurance
coverage required under this Agreement. Engineer shall obtain such insurance from
such companies having a Bests rating of B+/VII or better, licensed or approved to
transact business in the state in which the Services shall be performed, and shall obtain
such insurance of the following types and minimum limits:

1. Worker’s Compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, and Employers’ liability coverage with a limit of not less
than $500,000 each employee for Occupational Disease: $500,000 policy
limit for Occupational Disease; and Employer’s Liability of $500,000
each accident.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance including coverage for
Products/Completed Operation, Blanket Contractual, Contractors’
Protective Liability Broad Form Property Damage, Personal
Injury/ Advertising Liability, and Bodily Injury and Property Damage
with limits of not less than

$2,000,000 general aggregate limit
$1,000,000 each occurrence, combined single limit
$1,000,000 aggregate Products, combined single limit

$1,000,000 aggregate Personal Injury/ Advertising Liability

3. Business Automobile Liability coverage applying to owned, non-
owned and hired automobiles with limits not less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property
Damage combined.

4. Umbrella Excess Liability insurance written as excess of Employer’s
Liability, with limits not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence
combined single limit.

5. Professional Liability insurance with limits not less than $2,000,000
each claim/annual aggregate.

The Authority and the Authority’s agents and employees shall be added as additional
insureds to all coverages required above, except those in paragraphs (1) and (5). All
policies written on behalf of Engineer shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of
the Authority and the Authority’s agents and employees, with the exception of
insurance required under paragraph (5). In addition, all of the aforesaid policies shall
be endorsed to provide that they are primary coverages and not in excess of any other
insurance available to the Authority, and without rights of contribution or recovery
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against the Authority or from any such other insurance available to the Authority. The
Engineer, and not the Authority, shall be responsible for paying the premiums and
deductibles, if any, that may from time to time be due under all of the insurance policies
required of the Engineer.

G. INDEMNITY. ENGINEER SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND
HOLD HARMLESS THE AUTHORITY, ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND ASSIGNS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL
CLAIMS, DEMANDS, OR CAUSES OF ACTION (AND ALL LOSSES, LIABILITIES,
EXPENSES, AND JUDGMENTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES,
COURT COSTS, AND OTHER EXPENSES INCURRED IN ENFORCING THIS
INDEMNITY PROVISION) OR FROM ANY OTHER LOSS OR CLAIM ARISING
FROM THIRD PARTY PERSONAL INJURY OR PROPERTY DAMAGE BROUGHT
BY ENGINEER OR ANY OF ENGINEER’S EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,
AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY OR SUPPORT CONSULTANTS, OR
REPRESENTATIVES, OR BY ANY THIRD PARTY, BASED UPON, OR IN
CONNECTION WITH, RESULTING FROM, OR ARISING OUT OF, THE
NEGLIGENT ACT OR, OMISSION, OR MISCONDUCT OF ENGINEER’S
EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY OR
SUPPORT CONSULTANTS, OR REPRESENTATIVES.

H.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. In the performance of work or
Services herein agreed to, Engineer shall be deemed an independent contractor, and
any of its employees performing work required hereunder shall be deemed solely
employees of Engineer, or its subcontractors where appropriate.

L. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All documents, including original
drawings, estimates, specifications, periodic construction progress notes, and data
(collectively, the “Documents”) shall be the property of the Authority, provided that
Engineer has received full compensation due pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,
in consideration of which it is mutually agreed that the Authority will use them solely
in connection with the project for which such documents were designed, except with
the express consent of Engineer, which consent will not be unreasonable withheld.
Engineer may retain reproducible copies of such documents at Engineer’s sole cost
and expense. The Engineer agrees that it shall not reuse any portion of the Documents
that is unique to the Authority’s projects or projects for any other client, without the
express written consent of the Authority, which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld.

I ADDRESS OF NOTICE AND COMMUNICATIONS. All notices and
communications under this Agreement to be mailed or delivered to the Engineer shall
be to the following address:
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Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation
3100 West Alabama

Houston, Texas 77098

Attn. Mr. Wayne Ahrens, P.E.

All notices and communications under this Agreement to be mailed or
delivered to the Authority shall be to the following address:

West Harris County Regional Water Authority
¢/ o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP
3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600

Houston, Texas 77027

Attn: Mr. James A. Boone

K. AMENDMENT. This Agreement, upon execution by both parties hereto,
can be amended only by a written instrument signed by both parties.

L. ASSIGNMENT. The rights and obligations of this Agreement may
assigned by either party only upon written agreement of the other party. This
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any permitted assigns.

M. NO WAIVER. No waiver by either party or any default by the other
party in the performance of any particular section of this Agreement shall invalidate
any other section of this Agreement or operate as a waiver of any future default,
whether like or different in character.

N. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY. Nothing contained in this
Agreement, nor the performance of the parties hereunder, is intended to benefit, nor
shall inure to the benefit of, any third party, including the Authority’s contractors, if
any.

O.  SEVERABILITY. The various terms, provisions and covenants herein
contained shall be deemed to be separate and severable, and the invalidity or
unenforceability of any of them shall not affect or impair the validity or enforceability
of the remainder.

P. RECITALS. The recitals written above are hereby found to be true and
correct and incorporated in this Agreement for all purposes.

Q. AUTHORITY. The persons signing this Agreement warrant that they
have the authority to sign as, or on behalf of, the party for whom they are signing.

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS]
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING

REG?L, Pw:trﬂomw CORPORATION
By: Liiar iy By: é@ﬂz /rfy %M/ f/ /ﬁ

Bruce Parker Name: / /ve= (o %%[
President, Board of Directors Title: £y scct /= / o / S pPEAO07
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EXHIBIT A

RATE SCHEDULE
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EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

SEPTEMBER 2010

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION BILLING RATE PER HOUR
Clerks, Printers, etc. 40.00
Secretaries 65.00
Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst. 85.00
CAD Manager 90.00
System Analyst, Computer Operators 75.00
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen | 50.00
Computer Technicians Il & 1ll, Draftsmen 1l & [l 83.00
Designers, Grade | & |l 83.00
Designers, Grade I 110.00
3 Man Survey Crew 165.00
2 Man Survey Crew 130.00
1 Man Survey Crew 115.00
Party Chief 77.00
Instrument Technicians 49.00
Rodmen, Chainmen 42.00
Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor 140.00
Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying 150.00
Inspector | £8.00
Inspector Il, Project Representative 69.00
Senior Project Representative 98.00
Engineers | & Il, Engineering Assistant 92.00
Engineers [, Engineering Associate 115.00
Engineers [V 130.00
Engineers V 165.00
Engineers VI 200.00
Principal, Project Director 250.00
GPS RTK: $350.00/Day (Survey)

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 5" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot

Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot




FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
” Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 1st day of October, 2011 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has entered into that certain Joint Facilities
Agreement with North Fort Bend Water Authority, under which the Authority is
required to cause certain contractors to agree in writing: (i) to carry liability insurance
that names both Authority and North Fort Bend Water Authority as an “additional
insured,” and (ii) to defend and indemnify both the Owner and North Fort Bend
Water Authority for the negligence of such contractor;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

I. Section IILF. of the Agreement shall be amended to add the following
paragraphs:

Additionally, North Fort Bend Water Authority and its directors shall be
added as additional insureds to all coverages required above, except for those
requirements of paragraphs “1” and “5,” with respect to the Second Source
Waterline, as defined herein. All such policies written on behalf of the Engineer
shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the North Fort Bend Water
Authority and the North Fort Bend Water Authority’s directors, with the
exception of insurance required under paragraph “5.” In addition, all of the
aforesaid policies shall be endorsed to provide that they are primary coverages
and not in excess of any other insurance available to the North Fort Bend Water
Authority, and without rights of contribution or recovery against the North Fort
Bend Water Authority or from any such other insurance available to the North
Fort Bend Water Authority. The Engineer, and not the North Fort Bend Water
Authority, shall be responsible for paying the premiums and deductibles, if any,
that may from time to time be due under all of the insurance policies required of
the Engineer.
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II.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Second Source Waterline” shall
have the same definition as that provided by the Joint Facilities Agreement for
Segment 0, Segment 1A, Bellaire Pump Station, and Second Source
Waterline/ Pump Stations by and between the Authority and North Fort Bend
Regional Water Authority dated July 1, 2011, as amended.

Section III.G. of the Agreement shall be amended to add the following

paragraph:

11

AS FURTHER CONSIDERATION FOR THIS AGREEMENT, ENGINEER
SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS NORTH FORT BEND
WATER AUTHORITY, ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES,
AND AFFILIATES, FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS,
DEMANDS, OR CAUSES OF ACTION (AND ALL LOSSES, LIABILITIES,
EXPENSES, AND JUDGEMENTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH,
INCLUDING ATTORNEY’S FEES AND EXPENSES, COURT COSTS, AND
OTHER _EXPENSES INCURRED IN ENFORCING THIS INDEMNITY
PROVISION) BROUGHT BY ENGINEER OR ANY OF ENGINEER'S
EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY,
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR SUBCONSULTANTS (REGARDLESS OF WHETHER
SAME WERE SELECTED BY ENGINEER, AUTHORITY, OR SOME OTHER
PARTY), OR REPRESENTATIVES, OR BY ANY THIRD PARTY, BASED UPON,
OR IN CONNECTION WITH, RESULTING FROM, OR ARISING OUT OF, THE
NEGLIGENCE OR MISCONDUCT OF ENGINEER'S EMPLOYEES,
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OUTSIDE ADVISORY,
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR SUBCONSULTANTS (REGARDLESS OF WHETHER
SAME WERE SELECTED BY ENGINEER, AUTHORITY, OR SOME OTHER
PARTY) OR REPRESENTATIVES WITH RESPECT TO SERVICES PEFORMED
IN RELATION TO THE SECOND SOURCE WATERLINE, AS DEFINED
HEREIN. THIS INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION WILL
APPLY WHETHER SUCH ACTS OR OMISSIONS ARE CONDUCTED BY THE
ENGINEER OR ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, SUBCONSULTANT OR AGENT OF
THE ENGINEER.

With the amendments herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and

effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are contemplated
by these amendments.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUT ITY CORPORATION
n/ 1/ /
1/ L / y 7! _ / /;’.
fuce G. Parker Wayn€ G. Ahrens, P.E. '
President, Board of Directors Executive Vice President
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SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“ Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“ Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 13t day of June, 2012 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on October 1, 2011.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L Section ILA. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule to
add classification for Right-of-Way Manager as attached hereto as Revised Exhibit A.

II. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION

A / // o)) 2

Wayyé G. Ahrens, P.E.
President, Board of Directors Executive Vice President
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REVISED EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

JUNE 2012

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

Clerks, Printers, etc.

Secretaries

Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst.
CAD Manager

System Analyst, Computer Operators
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen |
Computer Technicians Il & Ill, Draftsmen Il & {II
Designers, Grade | & I

Designers, Grade lil

3 Man Survey Crew

2 Man Survey Crew

1 Man Survey Crew

Party Chief

Instrument Technicians

Rodmen, Chainmen

Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor

Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying
Inspector |

Inspector |, Project Representative

Senior Project Representative

Right-of-Way Manager

Engineers | & Il, Engineering Assistant
Engineers IlI, Engineering Associate
Engineers IV

Engineers V

Engineers VI

Principal, Project Director

GPS RTK:

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 %" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot

Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot

BILLING RATE PER HOUR

40.00
65.00
85.00
90.00
75.00
50.00
83.00
83.00
110.00
165.00
130.00
115.00
77.00
49.00
42.00
140.00
150.00
58.00
69.00
98.00
165.00
92.00
115.00
130.00
165.00
200.00
250.00

$350.00/Day (Survey)




THIRD AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Third Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 10t day of December, 2014 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on October 1, 2011 and the Second
Amendment on June 13, 2012.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L Section ILA. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule to as
attached hereto Revised Exhibit A.

II. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION

By: % By///’(/,u’/////'?u/ i

Wayng/G. Ahrens, P.E.
President, Board of Directors Executive Vice President
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REVISED EXHIBIT "A"
DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

December 2014

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION BILLING RATE PER HOUR
Clerks, Printers, efc. 40.00
Secretaries 70.00
Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst. 95.00
CAD Manager 119.00
System Analyst, Computer Operators 108.00
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen | 54.00
Computer Technicians Il & llI, Draftsmen | & Il} 87.00
Designers, Grade | &l 87.00
Designers, Grade il 130.00
3 Man Survey Crew 165.00
2 Man Survey Crew 130.00
1 Man Survey Crew 115.00
Party Chief 85.00
Instrument Technicians 50.00
Rodmen, Chainmen 42,00
Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor 145.00
Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying 170.00
inspectors, Project Representatives 75.00
Senior Project Representative 104.00
Right-of-Way Manager 165.00
Engineers | & I, Engineering Assistant 92.00
Engineers I, Engineering Associate 115.00
Engineers IV 144.00
Engineers V 170.00
Engineers Vi 225.00
Principal, Project Director 300.00
GPS RTK: $350.00/Day (Survey)

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTICN COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 12" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot
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FOURTH AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Fourth Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“ Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“ Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 8t day of July, 2015 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on QOctober 1, 2011, the Second
Amendment on June 13, 2012 and the Third Amendment on December 10, 2014.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L. Section 1I.A. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule {o as
attached hereto Revised Exhibit A.

I1. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION
i ﬁ By:z /4{// /L//]/%/
\P/esu:lent Board of Directors Wayn G Ahrens, P.E.

Executive Vice President
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REVISED EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

July 2015

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

Clerks, Printers, efc.

Secretaries

Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst.
CAD Manager

System Analyst, Computer Operators
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen |

Computer Technicians il & I, Draftsmen I} & i
Designers, Grade | & 1!

Designers, Grade il

3 Man Survey Crew

2 Man Survey Crew

1 Man Survey Crew

Party Chief

Instrument Technicians

Rodmen, Chainmen

Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor

Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying
Inspectors, Project Representatives '
Senior Project Representative

Right-of-Way Manager

Right-of-Way Agent

Engineers | & I, Engineering Assistant
Engineers i, Engineering Associate

Engineers IV

Engineers V

Engineers VI

Principal, Project Director

GPS RTK:

IN HOUSE REPRODPUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED}):

Xerox $ 0.05 per Copy (8 12" x 117)
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Velium $ 2.30 per Square Foot
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BILLING RATE PER HOUR

40.00
70.00
95.00
119.00
108.00
54.00
87.00
87.00
130.00
165.00
130.00
115.00
85.00
50.00
42.00
145.00
170.00
75.00
104.00
165.00
130.00
82.00
116.00
144.00
170.00
225.00
300.00

$350.00/Day {Survey)
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FIFTH AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This Fifth Amendment to Professional Engineering Services Agreement (this
“ Amendment”) is by and between West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the
“ Authority”) and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (“Engineer”) and is effective
as of the 25t day of January, 2016 (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Engineer have previously entered into that
certain Professional Engineering Services Agreement dated October 13, 2010 (the
“Agreement”); and amended by First Amendment on October 1, 2011, the Second
Amendment on June 13, 2012, the Third Amendment on December 10, 2014 and the
Fourth Amendment on July 8, 2015.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and benefits contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

L Section IL.A. of the Agreement shall be amended to revise the Rate Schedule to as
attached hereto Revised Exhibit A.

I1. With the amendment herein presented, the Agreement remains in full force and
effect. No other changes to the terms and conditions of the Agreement are
contemplated by this amendment.

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
be effective on the Effective Date in several counterparts, each of which shall be
considered as an original.

WEST HARRIS COUNTY DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY CORPORATION
i .
By: MW/ By: /K/ @«67,4/\,( Ul e t—
\Vize %esidéht, Board of Directors Wayne g Ahrens, P.E.
Executi¥e Vice President
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REVISED EXHIBIT "A"

DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATE

January 2016

RANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

Clerks, Printers, etc.

Secretaries

Executive Secretary, Administrative Asst., Proposal Asst.
CAD Manager

System Analyst, Computer Operators
Computer Technicians |, Draftsmen |
Computer Technicians Il & HI, Draftsmen 11 & Il
Designers, Grade | & |1

Designers, Grade Il

3 Man Survey Crew

2 Man Survey Crew

1 Man Survey Crew

Party Chief

instrument Technicians

Rodmen, Chainmen

Survey Coordinator, Project Surveyor

Director of Survey, Registered Surveyor, Chief of Surveying
Inspectors, Project Representatives

Senior Project Representative

Right-of-Way Manager

Right-of-Way Agent

Engineers | & |1, Engineering Assistant
Engineers lil, Engineering Associate

Engineers IV

Engineers V

Engineers VI

Engineers, Vi

Principal, Project Director

GPS RTK:

IN HOUSE REPRODUCTION COSTS (NO MARK-UP INCLUDED):

Xerox : $ 0.05 per Copy (8 " x 117
Bluelines $ 0.20 per Square Foot
Sepias $ 1.50 per Square Foot
Mylars $ 3.75 per Square Foot
Vellum $ 2.30 per Square Foot
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BILLING RATE PER HOUR

40.00
70.00
95.00
119.00
108.00
54.00
87.00
87.00
130.00
165.00
130.00
115.00
85.00
50.00
42.00
145.00
170.00
75.00
104.00
165.00
130.00
92.00
145.00
144.00
170.00
225.00
290.00
300.00

$350.00/Day (Survey)

1/26/2016




ALLEN BOONE HUMPHBIES ROB INSON LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PHOENIX TOWER
3200 SOUTHWEST FREEWAY
SUITE 2600
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77027
TEL (713) 860-6400

FAX (713) 860-6401
abhr.com

May 13, 2015

Board of Directors
West Harris County Regional Water Authority

Dear Board of Directors:

We appreciate the opportunity to represent the West Harris County Regional
Water Authority as its legal counsel. Our experience has been that it is mutually
beneficial to set forth the role and responsibilities of both our law firm and the client.
That is the purpose of both this letter and the separate Standard Terms of Engagement
for Legal Services that is enclosed with this letter. This engagement letter replaces our
engagement letter dated September 14, 2005.

Client

The client for this engagement is West Harris County Regional Water Authority
(the “Authority”). This engagement does not create an attorney client relationship with
any related persons or entities, such as parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees,

officers, directors, shareholders, or partners.

Scope of Engagement-General Representation of Authority

We will serve as general counsel for the Authority. Our work in connection with
this representation will include, but will not be limited to, preparing documents and
agenda items for the meetings of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Authority and
its committees, reviewing minutes of those meetings, preparing various resolutions and
orders to be adopted by the Board, calling and canvassing any elections to be held,
preparing various legal notices required to be given, preparing real estate conveyances
(including deeds, easements, and encroachment agreements), and maintaining files and
records of the Authority required by the Public Information Act. We also will represent
the Authority, when authorized by the Board, in securing approvals from city and
county authorities, contract negotiation and preparation, application for permits, and
other legal services that the Authority may require from time to time.
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May 13, 2015
Page 2

Scope of Engagement-Bond Counsel Services

We will perform services as bond counsel in connection with the authorization,
issuance and sale of bonds to be issued by the Authority to acquire and construct
facilities and finance Authority costs and projects, and to refund Authority bonds, as
may be authorized and issued hereafter for such purposes.

Our services as bond counsel will include: attending meetings with your
consultants in connection with the planning and authorization of such bond issues,
including consultation on federal income tax matters; reviewing of the official statement
prepared by the Authority’s underwriters, financial advisors or securities counsel in
connection with the sale of the bonds, but only for the limited purposes described in
such official statement; preparing the legal documents comprising the transcript of legal
proceedings for authorization and issuance of the bonds; preparing and submitting to
the Attorney General of Texas a transcript of legal proceedings for the bonds to obtain
the approval of the Attorney General and registration of the bonds by the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of Texas; preparing and filing legal documents required under
federal income tax law for the bonds; coordinating, in conjunction with the Authority’s
financial advisor, delivery of the bonds to the initial purchaser; and, if appropriate,
delivering at closing our approving opinion as to the validity of the bonds under Texas
law and the exclusion of interest on the bonds from gross income of the holders under
federal income tax law.

It is our understanding that the Authority will employ one or more recognized
investment banking firm(s) to serve as financial advisor(s) to the Authority and that
said firm(s) will be responsible for advising the Authority concerning the sale of the
bonds and will assist the Authority in the preparation of an Official Notice of Sale and
an Official Statement (the “Offering Documents”) in connection with each issue of the
bonds offered for sale to the public.

In our capacity as bond counsel, we will review those portions of the Offering
Documents which describe the Authority’s legal authority for issuance of the bonds to
determine whether such description conforms to and fairly summarizes relevant
provisions of Texas law. We also will review those portions of the Offering Documents
describing the resolution or indenture of the Board authorizing the bonds to determine
whether such description fairly summarizes the provisions of said resolution or
indenture. In addition, if requested, we will review such other portions of the Offering
Documents as describe matters of law and legal relationships of the Authority about
which we have knowledge. We will not, however, undertake to independently verify
any of the factual information contained in the Offering Documents, nor will we
conduct any investigation of the affairs of the Authority for the purpose of passing on
the accuracy or completeness of the Offering Documents. Since our role in connection
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with the Offering Documents will be of an advisory rather than an investigatory nature,
said documents will contain a statement describing our services as outlined above and
stating that our limited participation may not be relied upon as an assumption of
responsibility for, or an expression of opinion of any kind with regard to, the accuracy
or completeness of the information contained therein.

Unless specifically requested by the Authority pursuant to terms and conditions
to be set forth in a separate engagement letter, we will not be responsible for advising
the Authority concerning the provisions of the various securities laws, including the
Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the securities laws of
the various states in which the bonds may be sold.

Scope of Engagement - Continuing Disclosure Services

Additionally, we will provide legal services in connection with the obligation of
the Authority to provide continuing disclosure pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15¢2-12, as such rule may be amended from time to time, with respect
to any bonds issued by the Authority. In connection with this engagement, we will
advise the Authority of its continuing disclosure obligations, prepare resolutions or
indentures to be adopted by the Board of Directors of the Authority in connection with
the Authority’s continuing disclosure obligation, and prepare the Authority’s
continuing disclosure filings with the assistance of the Authority’s bookkeeper, auditor,
financial advisors, operator, engineer and other Authority consultants.

General Understandings

We understand and agree that this is not an exclusive agreement, and you are
free to retain any other counsel of your choosing. We recognize that we shall be
disqualified from representing any other client with interests materially and directly
adverse to yours (i) in any matter which is substantially related to our representation of
you and (ii) with respect to any matter where there is a reasonable probability that
confidential information you furnished to us could be used to your disadvantage. You
understand and agree that, with those exceptions, we are free to represent other clients,
including clients whose interests may conflict with yours in litigation, business
transactions, or other legal matters. You agree that our representing you in this matter
will not prevent or disqualify us from representing clients adverse to you in other
matters and that you consent in advance to our undertaking such adverse
representations.

This engagement and our attorney-client relationship will be terminated when
we have completed the services in the matters covered by this engagement letter and
any written supplements to this engagement letter. If you later retain us to perform

e
540148.doc



May 13, 2015
Page 4

further or additional services, our attorney-client relationship will be established by
another engagement letter.

Cooperation

To enable us to render effectively the legal services contemplated, the Authority
has agreed to disclose fully and accurately all facts and keep us informed of all
developments relating to our representation. We necessarily must rely on the accuracy
and completeness of the facts and information you and your agents provide to us. To
the extent it is necessary for the Authority’s representatives to attend meetings in
connection with this matter, we will attempt to schedule them so that the convenience
of those representatives can be served.

Fees

Fees related to matters other than bond counsel services (i.e., fees for serving as
general counsel and for continuing disclosure services) are based on hourly rates and
will be based on the time spent by the lawyers, paralegals, and administrative
personnel who work on the matter. Billing rates vary according to the experience of the
individuals. In an effort to reduce overall legal costs, we utilize paralegal and
administrative assistant personnel whenever appropriate.

Our monthly bills will reflect all individuals that worked that month on the
Authority and their respective billing rates.

For our services as bond counsel in connection with the authorization, issuance,
and sale of bonds, the Authority will pay us, from the proceeds of sale of each issue or
installment of the bonds, the following:

a. an amount equal to 1.5% of the first $5,000,000 in principal amount of the
bonds; and
b. an amount equal to 0.5% of the principal amount of such bonds above said

first $5,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $20,000,000 in
principal amount; and

c. an amount equal to 0.4% of the principal amount of such bonds above

$20,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $35,000,000 in principal
amount; and
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d. an amount equal to 0.3% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$35,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $50,000,000 in principal
amount; and

e. an amount equal to 0.2% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$50,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $65,000,000 in principal
amount; and

f. an amount equal to 0.1% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$65,000,000 in principal amount but not exceeding $80,000,000 in principal
amount; and

g. an amount equal to 0.05% of the principal amount of such bonds above
$80,000,000 in principal amount.

The above fee schedule shall be applicable to each separate issue or installment of
bonds, whether new money bonds or refunding bonds, but shall only be due with
respect to bonds actually issued, sold, and delivered. Our fee for bond counsel services
for any separate issue or installment of the bonds shall not be less than $60,000, plus
charges for the actual expenses involved.

In the event the Authority determines that it is necessary or desirable to issue
bond anticipation notes or to obtain other forms of short-term financing, we will render
all bond counsel services necessary in connection therewith and our fee shall be set
forth in a separate engagement letter mutually agreed upon by the Authority and us.

Other Charges

In addition to our fees, there will be other charges for items incident to the
performance of our legal services, such as photocopying, messengers, travel expenses,
long distance telephone calls, facsimile transmissions, postage, overtime for secretaries
and other non legal staff, specialized computer applications such as computerized legal
research, and filing fees. The basis upon which we establish these other charges is set
forth in the Standard Terms of Engagement for Legal Services.

Investment Disclosures

The Firm's lawyers, directly or beneficially, may own interests in corporations
and other entities or in real property. If you are at all concerned about these individual
investments, we will be pleased to canvass our lawyers about their individual
investments in any entity or entities about which you may be concerned.
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Withdrawal or Termination

Our relationship is based upon mutual consent and you may terminate our
representation at any time, with or without cause, by notifying us. Your termination of
our services will not affect your responsibility for payment of fees for legal services
rendered and of other charges incurred before termination and in connection with an
orderly transition of the matter.

We are subject to the rules of professional conduct for the jurisdictions in which
we practice, which list several types of conduct or circumstances that require or allow
us to withdraw from representing a client, including for example, nonpayment of fees
or costs, misrepresentation or failure to disclose material facts, fundamental
disagreements, and conflict of interest with another client. We try to identify in
advance and discuss with you any situation which may lead to our withdrawal, and if
withdrawal ever becomes necessary, we give you written notice of our withdrawal. If
we elect to withdraw for any reason, you will take all steps necessary to free us of any
obligation to perform further, including the execution of any documents necessary to
complete our withdrawal, and we will be entitled to be paid for all services rendered
and other charges accrued on your behalf to the date of withdrawal.

Other

If the foregoing, including the items set forth in the enclosed Standard Terms of
Engagement For Legal Services, correctly reflects your understanding of the terms and
conditions of our representation, please so indicate by executing the enclosed copy of
this letter in the space provided below and return it to the undersigned. Please contact
me if you have any questions. We are pleased to have this opportunity to be of service
and to work with you.

Very truly yours,

ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON LLP

| By: ()74\ é&&g

J#mes A. Boone
/
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Approved and accepted by the Board of Directors of West Harris County Regional
Water Authority on May 13, 2015.

ATTEST: President, Board of Directors

By: _ \¢" I

Secretz;ry, Board of Directors
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ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON LLP

Standard Terms of Engagement
for Legal Services

This statement sets forth certain standard terms of our engagement as your
lawyers and is intended as a supplement to the engagement letter that we have with
you as our client. Unless modified in writing by mutual agreement, these terms will be
an integral part of our agreement with you as reflected in the engagement letter.
Therefore, we ask that you review this statement carefully and contact us promptly if
you have any questions. We suggest that you retain this statement in your file with the
engagement letter.

The Scope of Our Work

You should have a clear understanding of the legal services we will provide.
Any questions that you have should be dealt with promptly.

We will at all times act on your behalf to the best of our ability. Any expressions
on our part concerning the outcome of your legal matters are expressions of our best
professional judgment, but are not guarantees. Such opinions are necessarily limited by
our knowledge of the facts and are based on the state of the law at the time they are
expressed.

It is our policy that the person or entity that we represent is the person or entity
that is identified in our engagement letter, and absent an express agreement to the
contrary does not include any affiliates of such person or entity (e.g., if you are a
corporation or partnership, any parents, subsidiaries, employees, officers, directors,
shareholders or partners of the corporation or partnership, or commonly owned
corporations or partnerships; or, if you are a trade association, any members of the
trade association). If you believe this engagement includes additional entities or
persons as our clients you should inform us immediately.

It is also our policy that the attorney-client relationship will be considered
terminated upon our completion of any services that you have retained us to perform.
If you later retain us to perform further or additional services, our attorney-client
relationship will be revived subject to the terms of engagement that we agree on at that
time.

This engagement shall be subject to the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct. We also wish to advise you of the contents of The Texas Lawyer’s Creed, a
copy of which is included at the end of these Standard Terms of Engagement for Legal
Services.
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Who Will Provide the Legal Services

Customarily, each client of the Firm is served by a principal attorney contact.
The principal attorney should be someone in whom you have confidence and with
whom you enjoy working. You are free to request a change of principal attorney at any
time. Subject to the supervisory role of the principal attorney, your work or parts of it
may be performed by other lawyers and legal assistants in the Firm. Such delegation
may be for the purpose of involving lawyers or legal assistants with special expertise in
a given area or for the purpose of providing services on the most efficient and timely
basis. Whenever practicable, we will advise you of the names of those attorneys and
legal assistants who work on your matters.

How Our Fees Will Be Set

Generally, our fees are based on the time spent by the lawyers, paralegals, and
administrative personnel who work on the matter. We will charge for all time spent in
representing your interests, including, by way of illustration, telephone and office
conferences with you and your representatives, consultants (if any), opposing counsel,
and others; conferences among our lawyers, paralegals, and administrative personnel;
factual investigation; legal research; responding to your requests for us to provide
information to your auditors in connection with reviews or audits of financial
statements; drafting letters and other documents; and travel. We will keep accurate
records of the time we devote to your work in units of quarters of an hour.

The hourly rates of our lawyers, paralegals, and administrative personnel are
reviewed and increased from time to time, and at least annually, to reflect current levels
of experience, changes in overhead costs, and other factors.

Although we may from time to time, at the client’s request, furnish estimates of
legal fees and other charges that we anticipate will be incurred, these estimates are by
their nature inexact (due to unforeseeable circumstances) and, therefore, the actual fees
and charges ultimately billed may vary from such estimates.

Additional Charges

In addition to our fees, there will be other charges for items incident to the
performance of our legal services, such as photocopying, messengers, travel expenses,
facsimile transmissions, postage, overtime for secretaries and other non-legal staff,
specialized computer applications such as computerized legal research, record
maintenance and storage, and filing fees. The current basis for these charges is set forth
below. The Firm will review this schedule of charges on an annual basis and adjust
them to take into account changes in the Firm's costs and other factors.
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Duplicating
The Firm charges $.15 per page.

Courier Services

The Firm charges an amount which generally represents cost including the
distribution service provided by the Firm. Depending on the volume of work
performed by a service provider, the Firm may receive a volume discount during
a particular accounting period for which no adjustment is made on an individual
client’s bill.

Computer Aided Legal Research (CALR)

Third party providers of CALR services charge the Firm amounts each month
based on the type, extent, and duration of the services provided. The Firm
charges clients for client research only based on the computed cost to the Firm for
the use of the services. This cost is monitored and revised periodically to achieve
an average “at cost” rate for clients.

Telefax
The Firm does not charge for telefaxes.

Telephone
The Firm does not charge for local or long distance calls.

Travel-Related Expenses

Airfare, meals, and related travel expenses charged to the client represent actual,
out-of-pocket cost. Depending on the volume of both Firm and personal travel,
the Firm may receive beneficial services, including airline tickets from its travel
agent for which no adjustment is made on an individual client’s account. In
addition, credits earned under the Frequent Flyer Programs accrue to the
individual traveler and not to the Firm.

All Other Costs

The Firm charges an amount which generally represents costs for maintenance
and storage of client electronic and hard copy records. In addition, the Firm
charges actual disbursements for third-party services like court reporters, expert
witnesses, etc., and may recoup expenses reasonably incurred in connection with
services performed in-house, such as mail services, secretarial overtime, file
retrieval, etc.

Unless special arrangements are otherwise made, fees and expenses of others
(such as experts, investigators, consultants and court reporters) will be the
responsibility of, and billed directly to, the client. Further, all invoices in excess of $500
will be forwarded to the client for direct payment.
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Billing Arrangements and Terms

Our billing rates are based on the assumption of prompt payment. Consequently,
unless other arrangements are made, fees for the services described herein will be billed
from time to time as the work is performed or at such regular intervals, not to exceed 30
days, as the client may direct and are payable within thirty days of receipt.

Advances

Clients of the Firm are sometimes asked to deposit funds as an advance payment
with the Firm. The advance payment will be applied first to payment of charges for
such items as photocopying, messengers, travel, etc., as more fully described above, and
then to fees for services. The advance will be deposited in our client advance account
and we will charge such other charges and our fees against the advance and credit them
on our billing statements. In the event such other charges and our fees for services
exceed the advance deposited with us, we will bill you for the excess monthly or may
request additional advances. Any unused portion of amounts advanced will be
refundable at the conclusion of our representation.

Client and Firm Documents

We will maintain any documents that you furnish to us in our client file (or files)
for this matter. At your request, we will return your documents to you at the conclusion
of the matter (or earlier, if appropriate). It is your obligation to tell us which, if any, of
the documents that you furnish us that you want returned. We will return those
documents to you promptly after our receipt of payment for outstanding fees and
charges. Our own files pertaining to this matter, including the work performed by our
attorneys, will be retained by the Firm. Any documents retained by the Firm will be
kept for a certain period of time, and ultimately we will destroy them in accordance
with our record retention program schedule then in effect.

Attorney Complaint Information

The State of Texas investigates and prosecutes complaints of professional
misconduct against attorneys licensed in Texas. A brochure entitled Attorney
Complaint Information is available at our office and is likewise available upon request.
A client that has any questions about the State Bar’s disciplinary process should call the
Grievance Information Helpline of the State Bar of Texas at 1-800-932-1900.
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I'am a lawyer; I am entrusted by the People of Texas to
preserve and improve our legal system. I am licensed
by the Supreme Court of Texas. I must therefore abide
by the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct, but I know that Professionalism requires
more than merely avoiding the violation of laws and
rules. Tam committed to this Creed for no other reason
than it is right.

I.  OUR LEGAL SYSTEM. A lawyer owes to the
administration of justice personal dignity, integrity,
and independence. A lawyer should always adhere to
the highest principles of professionalism. 1 am
passionately proud of my profession. Therefore, “My
word is my bond.” I am responsible to assure that all
persons have access to competent representation
regardless of wealth or position in life. 1 commit
myself to an adequate and effective pro bono program.
[ am obligated to educate my clients, the public, and
other lawyers regarding the spirit and letter of this
Creed. 1 will always be conscious of my duty to the
judicial system.

II. LAWYER TO CLIENT. A lawyer owes to a
client allegiance, learning, skill, and industry. A
lawyer shall employ all appropriate means to protect
and advance the client’s legitimate rights, claims, and
objectives. A lawyer shall not be deterred by any real
or imagined fear of judicial disfavor or public
unpopularity, nor be influenced by mere self-interest. 1
will advise my client of the contents of this Creed when
undertaking representation. I will endeavor to achieve
my client’s lawful objectives in legal transactions and in
litigation as quickly and economically as possible. I
will be loyal and committed to my client's lawful
objectives, but I will not permit that loyalty and
commitment to interfere with my duty to provide
objective and independent advice. I will advise my
client that civility and courtesy are expected and are
not a sign of weakness. I will advise my client of
proper and expected behavior. I will treat adverse
parties and witnesses with fairness and due
consideration. A client has no right to demand that I
abuse anyone or indulge in any offensive conduct. I
will advise my client that we will not pursue conduct
which is intended primarily to harass or drain the
financial resources of the opposing party. I will advise
my client that we will not pursue tactics which are
intended primarily for delay. 1 will advise my client
that we will not pursue any course of action which is
without merit. I will advise my client that I reserve the
right to determine whether to grant accommodations to
opposing counsel in all matters that do not adversely
affect my client's lawful objectives. A client has no
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right to instruct me to refuse reasonable requests made
by other counsel. I will advise my client regarding the
availability of mediation, arbitration, and other
alternative methods of resolving and settling disputes.

II. LAWYER TO LAWYER. A lawyer owes to
opposing counsel, in the conduct of legal transactions
and the pursuit of litigation, courtesy, candor,
cooperation, and scrupulous observance of all
agreements and mutual understandings. 1l feelings
between clients shall not influence a lawyer’s conduct,
attitude, or demeanor toward opposing counsel. A
lawyer shall not engage in unprofessional conduct in
retaliation against other unprofessional conduct. I will
be courteous, civil, and prompt in oral and written
communications. I will not quarrel over matters of
form or style, but I will concentrate on matters of
substance. I will identify for other counsel or parties all
changes 1 have made in documents submitted for
review. I will attempt to prepare documents which
correctly reflect the agreement of the parties. I will not
include provisions which have not been agreed upon
or omit provisions which are necessary to reflect the
agreement of the parties. 1 will notify opposing
counsel, and, if appropriate, the Court or other persons,
as soon as practicable, when hearings, depositions,
meetings, conferences or closings are canceled. I will
agree to reasonable requests for extensions of time and
for waiver of procedural formalities, provided
legitimate objectives of my client will not be adversely
affected. I will not serve motions or pleadings in any
manner that unfairly limits another party’s opportunity
to respond. I will attempt to resolve by agreement my
objections to matters contained in pleadings and
discovery requests and responses. I can disagree
without being disagreeable. 1 recognize that effective
representation does not require antagonistic or
obnoxious behavior. 1 will neither encourage nor
knowingly permit my client or anyone under my
control to do anything which would be unethical or
improper if done by me. I will not, without good
cause, attribute bad motives or unethical conduct to
opposing counsel nor bring the profession into
disrepute by unfounded accusations of impropriety. I
will avoid disparaging personal remarks or acrimony
towards opposing counsel, parties and witnesses. I
will not be influenced by any ill feeling between clients.
I'will abstain from any allusion to personal peculiarities
or idiosyncrasies of opposing counsel. I will not take
advantage, by causing any default or dismissal to be
rendered, when I know the identity of an opposing
counsel, without first inquiring about that counsel’s
intention to proceed. I will promptly submit orders to



the Court. I will deliver copies to opposing counsel
before or contemporaneously with submission to the
court. T will promptly approve the form of orders
which accurately reflect the substance of the rulings of
the Court. I will not attempt to gain an unfair
advantage by sending the Court or its staff
correspondence or copies of correspondence. I will not
arbitrarily schedule a deposition, Court appearance, or
hearing until a good faith effort has been made to
schedule it by agreement. I will readily stipulate to
undisputed facts in order to avoid needless costs or
inconvenience for any party. I will refrain from
excessive and abusive discovery. I will comply with all
reasonable discovery requests. 1 will not resist
discovery requests which are not objectionable. T will
not make objections nor give instructions to a witness
for the purpose of delaying or obstructing the
discovery process. I will encourage witnesses to
respond to all deposition questions which are
reasonably understandable. I will neither encourage
nor permit my witness to quibble about words where
their meaning is reasonably clear. I will not seek Court
intervention to obtain discovery which is clearly
improper and not discoverable. 1 will not seek
sanctions or disqualification unless it is necessary for
protection of my client’s lawful objectives or is fully
justified by the circumstances.

IV. LAWYER AND JUDGE. Lawyers and judges
owe each other respect, diligence, candor, punctuality,
and protection against unjust and improper criticism
and attack. Lawyers and judges are equally
responsible to protect the dignity and independence of
the Court and the profession. I will always recognize
that the position of judge is the symbol of both the
judicial system and administration of justice. I will
refrain from conduct that degrades this symbol. T will
conduct myself in court in a professional manner and
demonstrate my respect for the Court and the law. I
will treat counsel, opposing parties, the Court, and
members of the Court staff with courtesy and civility. I
will be punctual. T will not engage in any conduct
which offends the dignity and decorum of proceedings.
I will not knowingly misrepresent, mischaracterize,
misquote or miscite facts or authorities to gain an
advantage. I will respect the rulings of the Court. I will
give the issues in controversy deliberate, impartial and
studied analysis and consideration. 1 will be
considerate of the time constraints and pressures
imposed upon the Court, Court staff and counsel in
efforts to administer justice and resolve disputes.
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FINANCIAL ADVISORY AGREEMENT

This Financial Advisory Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and
between the West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the “Issuer”) and Post Oak
Municipal Advisors LLC and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated (the “Team”) effective as of
fo'.f L L, 201%(the “Lffective Date”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Issuer may have under consideration from time to time the authorization
and issuance of indebtedness in amounts and forms which cannot presently be determined and,
in connection with the authorization, sale, issuance and delivery of such indebtedness, Issuer
desires to retain an independent financial advisor; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to obtain the professional services of the Team to advise the
Issuer regarding the issuance and sale of certain evidences of indebtedness or debt obligations
that may be authorized and issued or otherwise created or assumed by the Issuer (hereinafter
referred to collectively as the “Debt Instruments”) from time to time during the period in which
this Agreement shall be effective; and

WHEREAS, the Team is willing to provide its professional services and its facilities as
financial advisor in connection with all programs of financing as may be considered and
authorized by Issuer during the period in which this Agreement shall be effective.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Issuer and the Team, in consideration of the mutual covenants
and agreements herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree as
follows:

_SECTION I
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Upon the request of an authorized representative of the Issuer, the Team agrees to
perform the financial advisory services stated in the following provisions of this Section [; and
for having rendered such services, the Issuer agrees to pay to the Team the compensation as
provided herein.

A. Financial Planning. At the direction of the Issuer, the Team shall:

1. Survey and Analysis. Conduct a survey of the financial resources of the
Issuer to determine the extent of its capacity to authorize, issue, and service
any Debt Instruments contemplated. This survey will include an analysis of
any existing debt structure as compared with the existing and projected
sources of revenues which may be pledged to secure payment of debt service
and, where appropriate, will include present and future revenue
requirements of the Issuer. In the event revenues of existing or projected
facilities operated by the Issuer are to be pledged to repayment of the Debt
Instruments then under consideration, the survey will take into account any
outstanding indebtedness payable from the revenues thereof, additional
revenues be available from any proposed rate increases and additional

1-
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revenues, as projected by consulting engineers employed by the Issuer,
resulting from improvements to be financed by the Debt Instruments under
consideration. The survey provided under this Section I may also include,
where appropriate, the analysis of the Issuer’s rates, the impact of capital
contributions to the Issuer by members of the Authority, and the analysis of
financing alternatives for payments due the City of Houston or others from
the Issuer.

Future Financings. Consider and analyze future financing needs as
projected by the Issuer’s staff and consulting engineers or other experts, if
any, employed by the Issuer.

Recommendations for Debt Instruments. On the basis of the information
developed by the survey described above, and other information and
experience available, submit to the Issuer recommendations regarding the
Debt Instruments under consideration, including such elements as the date
of issue, interest payment dates, schedule of principal maturities, options of
prior payment, security provisions, and such other provisions as may be
appropriate in order to make the issue attractive to investors while achieving
the objectives of the Issuer. All recommendations will be consistent with the
goal of designing the Debt Instruments to be sold on terms which are
advantageous to the Issuer, including the lowest interest cost consistent with
all other considerations.

Market Information. Advise the Issuer of our interpretation of current bond
market conditions, other related forthcoming bond issues and general
information, with economic data, which might normally be expected to
influence interest rates or bidding conditions so that the date of sale of the
Debt Instruments may be set at a favorable time.

Rates. Annual review of rates and provision of recommendations regarding
Issuer’s Pumpage and Surface Water Fees.

Meetings: In the event our attendance is required at a regularly scheduled
Issuer meeting, at other public meetings, at meetings of a finance committee
or other committee, at a meeting with the City of Houston or any other
meeting specifically requested by the Issuer, a member or members or the
Team will attend.

Debt Management and Financial Implementation. At the direction of Issuer, the

Team shall:

1.

Method of Sale. Evaluate the particular financing being contemplated,

giving consideration to the complexity, market acceptance, rating, size and
structure in order to make a recommendation as to an appropriate method
of sale, and:

a. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by an advertised competitive sale,
the Team will:
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(4)

Supervise the sale of the Debt Instruments;

Disseminate information to prospective bidders, organize such
informational meetings as may be necessary, and facilitate
prospective bidders’ efforts in making timely submission of proper
bids;

Assist the staff of the Issuer in coordinating the receipt of bids, the
safekeeping of good faith checks and the tabulation and
comparison of submitted bids; and

Advise the Issuer regarding the best bid and provide advice
regarding acceptance or rejection of the bids.

b. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by negotiated sale, the Team will:

(1)

(2)

©)

(4)

Recommend for Issuer’s final approval and acceptance one or more
investment banking firms as managers of an underwriting
syndicate for the purpose of negotiating the purchase of the Debt
Instruments.

Cooperate with and assist any selected managing underwriter and
their counsel in connection with their efforts to prepare any Official
Statement or Offering Memorandum. The Team will cooperate
with and assist the underwriters in the preparation of a bond
purchase contract, an underwriters agreement and other related
documents. The costs incurred in such efforts, including the
printing of the documents, will be paid in accordance with the
terms of the Issuer’s agreement with the underwriters, but shall not
be or become an obligation of the Team, except to the extent
specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement or assumed in
writing by the Team.

Assist the staff of the Issuer in the safekeeping of any good faith
checks, to the extent there are any of such, and provide a cost
comparison, for both expenses and interest which are suggested by
the underwriters, to the then current market.

Advise the Issuer as to the fairness of the price offered by the
underwriters.

Offering Documents. Assist in the preparation and compilation of the notice

of sale and bidding instructions, official statement, official bid form and such
other documents (the “Offering Documents”) as may be required and submit
all such documents to the Issuer for examination, approval and certification.
The Issuer acknowledges that it is subject to and may be held liable under
federal or state securities laws for violations thereof, including misleading or
incomplete disclosure in the Offering Documents. After such examination,
approval and certification, the Team shall provide the Issuer with a supply

3
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10.

of all such documents sufficient to its needs and distribute by mail or, where
appropriate, by electronic delivery, sets of the same to prospective
purchasers of the Debt Instruments. Also, the Team shall provide copies of
the final Official Statement to the purchaser of the Debt Instruments in
accordance with the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions.

Credit Ratings. Make recommendations to the Issuer as to the advisability
of obtaining a credit rating or ratings, for the Debt Instruments and/or
municipal bond insurance, and, when directed by the Issuer, coordinate the
preparation of such information as may be appropriate for submission to the
rating agency, or agencies and/or municipal bond insurance providers. In
those cases where the advisability of personal presentation of information to
the rating agency, or agencies, may be indicated, the Team will arrange for
such personal presentations, utilizing such composition of representatives
from the Issuer as may be finally approved or directed by the Issuer.

Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar. Upon request, counsel with the Issuer in
the selection of a Trustee and/or Paying Agent/Registrar for the Debt
Instruments, and assist in the negotiation of agreements pertinent to these
services and the fees incident thereto.

Financial Publications. When appropriate, advise financial publications of
the forthcoming sale of the Debt Instruments and provide them with all
pertinent information.

Consultants. After consulting with and receiving directions from the Issuer,
arrange for such reports and opinions of recognized independent
consultants as may be appropriate for the successful marketing of the Debt
Instruments.

Auditors. In the event formal verification by an independent auditor of any
calculations incident to the Debt Instruments is required, make
arrangements for such services.

[ssuer Meetings. Attend meetings of the governing body of the Issuer, its
staff, representatives or committees as requested at all times when the Team
may be of assistance or service and the subject of financing is to be discussed.

Printing. To the extentauthorized by the Issuer, coordinate all work incident
to printing of the offering documents and the Debt Instruments.

Delivery of Debt Instruments. As soon as a bid for the Debt Instruments is
accepted by the Issuer, coordinate the efforts of all concerned to the end that
the Debt Instruments may be delivered and paid for as expeditiously as
possible and assist the Issuer in the preparation or verification of final closing
figures incident to the delivery of the Debt Instruments.




1L Debt Service Schedule. After the closing of the sale and delivery of the Debt
Instruments, deliver to the Issuer a schedule of annual debt service
requirements for the Debt Instruments.

SECTION II
TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the Issuer or the Team upon
the giving of at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other party of its intention to
terminate, specifying in such notice the effective date of such termination. However, it is
understood that the Team may not be terminated during the pendency of a competitive bond
issue once the Issuer has authorized the advertisement of the sale of such bonds and until the
delivery of such bonds. No penalty will be assessed for termination of this Agreement.

SECTION III
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT

The fees due to the Team for the services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through
A6 of this Agreement with respect to financial planning and meetings prior to the issuance of
bonds shall be calculated in accordance with the schedule set forth or Appendix A attached
hereto. The fees due to the Team for the services set forth and described in Section 1, B1 through
B11 of this agreement with respect to the issuance of Debt Instruments shall be calculated in
accordance with the schedule set forth on Appendix B attached hereto. Unless specifically
provided otherwise in Appendices A and B or in a separate written agreement between Issuer
and the Team, such fees, together with any other fees as may have been mutually agreed upon
and all expenses for which the Team is entitled to reimbursement, shall become due and payable
as shown in Appendices A and B. The Team shall invoice the Issuer for all fees and reimbursable
expenses due from the Issuer hereunder, and all invoices shall be signed by Post Oak Municipal
Advisors LLC (“POMA”) and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated (“Baird”). In accordance with
the terms of this Agreement, the Issuer shall pay each such invoice as follows: (i) for the portion
of the invoice attributable to fees, the Issuer shall pay 50% of the fees to POMA and 50% of the
fees to Baird, and (ii) for the portion of the invoice attributable to reimbursable expenses, the
Issuer shall reimburse POMA or Baird (as applicable) those expenses that the invoice reflects were
paid by POMA or Baird (as applicable).

SECTION IV
MISCELLANEOUS

1.  Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed and given effect in accordance with the
laws of the State of Texas.

2.  Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the Issuer and the Team, their respective successors and assigns; provided however,
neither party hereto may assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder
without the prior written consent of the other party.

3. Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties
relating to the rights herein granted and obligations herein assumed. Any oral or written
representations or modifications concerning this Agreement shall be of no force or effect
except for a subsequent modification in writing signed by all parties hereto.

-5-
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Additional Certifications. Additionally, Baird and POMA represent and verify that, to the
extent this contract represents a contract for goods and services within the meaning of
Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of
Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government Code, at the time of execution of this contract and
through the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by
applicable federal law, neither Baird (nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned
subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same) nor POMA boycotts or will boycott
Israel. The terms “boycott Israel” and “boycotts Israel” as used in this paragraph have the
meanings assigned to the term “boycott Israel” in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government
Code, as amended.

Further, by executing this contract, Baird and POMA also represent and certify that, to the
extent this contract represents a governmental contract within the meaning of Section
2252.151 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of Chapter
2252 of the Texas Government Code, at the time of execution and delivery of this contract
and through the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by
applicable federal law, neither Baird ( nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned
subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same) nor POMA (i) engages in business with
Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization as described in Chapters 806 or 807 of the
Texas Government Code, or Subchapter F of Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code,
or (ii) is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections
806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. The term “foreign terrorist
organization” in this paragraph the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2252.151 of
the Texas Government Code.



ATTEST:

Secretary
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POST OAK MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

o LTl

Pl ]

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO. INCORPORATED

By;%ﬁmwww

artholomew
ging Director

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

By:
Title:
Date:




POST OAK MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

By:

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO. INCORPORATED

By:

Jan Bartholomew
Managing Director

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

By: 4 %

Title: _PREB |1 P &7 7
Date: G~ ~Z0 (R

ATTEST:

W

Secretar)ﬂ
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APPENDIX A

The fees due the Team for services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through A6, shall be
accrued on an hourly basis as follows:

Senior Vice Presidents/Managing Directors $150.00 per hour
Other Vice Presidents/ Analysts $100.00 per hour
Administrative $ 25.00 per hour

With respect to the method of billing used By the Team, if two senior vice presidents and/or
managing directors are in attendance or involved in a project, the Issuer will only be invoiced for
$150.00 per hour. However, if a senior vice president and/ or managing director and another vice
president or analyst is necessary at the attendance of a meeting or involved in a project, the Issuer
will be invoiced for both of those professionals.

If the Team seeks payment for any such services, the Team shall invoice the Issuer for any such
services on a quarterly basis. Hourly fees shall be due and payable within 60 days of the date of
the invoice.

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by the Team as reimbursable
expenses:

Travel expenses
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges
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APPENDIX B

The fees due the Team with respect to the services as set forth in Section I, B1 through B11
for the issuing of Debt Instruments that are bonds are as follows:

Minimum Fee $50,000

First $3,000,000: 2.00% of the Principal Amount
$3,000,001 to $5,000,000: 1.50% of the Principal Amount
$5,000,001 to $10,000,000: 1.00% of the Principal Amount
$10,000,001 to $20,000,000: 0.75% of the Principal Amount
$20,000,001 to $30,000,000: 0.50% of the Principal Amount
$30,000,001 to $50,000,000: 0.25% of the Principal Amount
Over to $50,000,000: 0.10% of the Principal Amount

The payment of fees described above for financial advisory services shall be contingent upon the
delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that bonds are delivered.

The fees due the Team for Debt Instruments that are not bonds will be mutually determined by
the Issuer and Team by separate written agreement.

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by the Team as reimbursable
expenses:

Bond counsel, legal or tax opinion, counsel to underwriter, securities or disclosure counsel, or
any other counsel

Bond printing

Bond ratings

Credit enhancement

CPA fees for refunding

Official statement preparation and printing and distribution

Paying agent/registrar/ trustee

Travel expenses

Publication of Notices in newspapers, financial publications and other publications
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges

The payment of reimbursable expenses that the Team has assumed on behalf of the Issuer shall
not be contingent upon the delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that services are
rendered and payable upon receipt of an invoice therefor submitted by the Team.

In the event that either party to this contract determines that it is necessary to retain securities or
disclosure counsel to review documents and proceedings related to the offering of bonds by the
Issuer and to provide other services customarily provided by securities disclosure counsel, such
counsel will be retained.
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FINANCIAL ADVISORY AGREEMENT

This Financial Advisory Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and
between the West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the “Issuer”) and Post Oak
Municipal Advisors LLC and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated (the “Team”) effective as of
fo'.f L L, 201%(the “Lffective Date”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Issuer may have under consideration from time to time the authorization
and issuance of indebtedness in amounts and forms which cannot presently be determined and,
in connection with the authorization, sale, issuance and delivery of such indebtedness, Issuer
desires to retain an independent financial advisor; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to obtain the professional services of the Team to advise the
Issuer regarding the issuance and sale of certain evidences of indebtedness or debt obligations
that may be authorized and issued or otherwise created or assumed by the Issuer (hereinafter
referred to collectively as the “Debt Instruments”) from time to time during the period in which
this Agreement shall be effective; and

WHEREAS, the Team is willing to provide its professional services and its facilities as
financial advisor in connection with all programs of financing as may be considered and
authorized by Issuer during the period in which this Agreement shall be effective.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Issuer and the Team, in consideration of the mutual covenants
and agreements herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree as
follows:

_SECTION I
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Upon the request of an authorized representative of the Issuer, the Team agrees to
perform the financial advisory services stated in the following provisions of this Section [; and
for having rendered such services, the Issuer agrees to pay to the Team the compensation as
provided herein.

A. Financial Planning. At the direction of the Issuer, the Team shall:

1. Survey and Analysis. Conduct a survey of the financial resources of the
Issuer to determine the extent of its capacity to authorize, issue, and service
any Debt Instruments contemplated. This survey will include an analysis of
any existing debt structure as compared with the existing and projected
sources of revenues which may be pledged to secure payment of debt service
and, where appropriate, will include present and future revenue
requirements of the Issuer. In the event revenues of existing or projected
facilities operated by the Issuer are to be pledged to repayment of the Debt
Instruments then under consideration, the survey will take into account any
outstanding indebtedness payable from the revenues thereof, additional
revenues be available from any proposed rate increases and additional

1-
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revenues, as projected by consulting engineers employed by the Issuer,
resulting from improvements to be financed by the Debt Instruments under
consideration. The survey provided under this Section I may also include,
where appropriate, the analysis of the Issuer’s rates, the impact of capital
contributions to the Issuer by members of the Authority, and the analysis of
financing alternatives for payments due the City of Houston or others from
the Issuer.

Future Financings. Consider and analyze future financing needs as
projected by the Issuer’s staff and consulting engineers or other experts, if
any, employed by the Issuer.

Recommendations for Debt Instruments. On the basis of the information
developed by the survey described above, and other information and
experience available, submit to the Issuer recommendations regarding the
Debt Instruments under consideration, including such elements as the date
of issue, interest payment dates, schedule of principal maturities, options of
prior payment, security provisions, and such other provisions as may be
appropriate in order to make the issue attractive to investors while achieving
the objectives of the Issuer. All recommendations will be consistent with the
goal of designing the Debt Instruments to be sold on terms which are
advantageous to the Issuer, including the lowest interest cost consistent with
all other considerations.

Market Information. Advise the Issuer of our interpretation of current bond
market conditions, other related forthcoming bond issues and general
information, with economic data, which might normally be expected to
influence interest rates or bidding conditions so that the date of sale of the
Debt Instruments may be set at a favorable time.

Rates. Annual review of rates and provision of recommendations regarding
Issuer’s Pumpage and Surface Water Fees.

Meetings: In the event our attendance is required at a regularly scheduled
Issuer meeting, at other public meetings, at meetings of a finance committee
or other committee, at a meeting with the City of Houston or any other
meeting specifically requested by the Issuer, a member or members or the
Team will attend.

Debt Management and Financial Implementation. At the direction of Issuer, the

Team shall:

1.

Method of Sale. Evaluate the particular financing being contemplated,

giving consideration to the complexity, market acceptance, rating, size and
structure in order to make a recommendation as to an appropriate method
of sale, and:

a. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by an advertised competitive sale,
the Team will:
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(4)

Supervise the sale of the Debt Instruments;

Disseminate information to prospective bidders, organize such
informational meetings as may be necessary, and facilitate
prospective bidders’ efforts in making timely submission of proper
bids;

Assist the staff of the Issuer in coordinating the receipt of bids, the
safekeeping of good faith checks and the tabulation and
comparison of submitted bids; and

Advise the Issuer regarding the best bid and provide advice
regarding acceptance or rejection of the bids.

b. If the Debt Instruments are to be sold by negotiated sale, the Team will:

(1)

(2)

©)

(4)

Recommend for Issuer’s final approval and acceptance one or more
investment banking firms as managers of an underwriting
syndicate for the purpose of negotiating the purchase of the Debt
Instruments.

Cooperate with and assist any selected managing underwriter and
their counsel in connection with their efforts to prepare any Official
Statement or Offering Memorandum. The Team will cooperate
with and assist the underwriters in the preparation of a bond
purchase contract, an underwriters agreement and other related
documents. The costs incurred in such efforts, including the
printing of the documents, will be paid in accordance with the
terms of the Issuer’s agreement with the underwriters, but shall not
be or become an obligation of the Team, except to the extent
specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement or assumed in
writing by the Team.

Assist the staff of the Issuer in the safekeeping of any good faith
checks, to the extent there are any of such, and provide a cost
comparison, for both expenses and interest which are suggested by
the underwriters, to the then current market.

Advise the Issuer as to the fairness of the price offered by the
underwriters.

Offering Documents. Assist in the preparation and compilation of the notice

of sale and bidding instructions, official statement, official bid form and such
other documents (the “Offering Documents”) as may be required and submit
all such documents to the Issuer for examination, approval and certification.
The Issuer acknowledges that it is subject to and may be held liable under
federal or state securities laws for violations thereof, including misleading or
incomplete disclosure in the Offering Documents. After such examination,
approval and certification, the Team shall provide the Issuer with a supply

3



713704

10.

of all such documents sufficient to its needs and distribute by mail or, where
appropriate, by electronic delivery, sets of the same to prospective
purchasers of the Debt Instruments. Also, the Team shall provide copies of
the final Official Statement to the purchaser of the Debt Instruments in
accordance with the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions.

Credit Ratings. Make recommendations to the Issuer as to the advisability
of obtaining a credit rating or ratings, for the Debt Instruments and/or
municipal bond insurance, and, when directed by the Issuer, coordinate the
preparation of such information as may be appropriate for submission to the
rating agency, or agencies and/or municipal bond insurance providers. In
those cases where the advisability of personal presentation of information to
the rating agency, or agencies, may be indicated, the Team will arrange for
such personal presentations, utilizing such composition of representatives
from the Issuer as may be finally approved or directed by the Issuer.

Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar. Upon request, counsel with the Issuer in
the selection of a Trustee and/or Paying Agent/Registrar for the Debt
Instruments, and assist in the negotiation of agreements pertinent to these
services and the fees incident thereto.

Financial Publications. When appropriate, advise financial publications of
the forthcoming sale of the Debt Instruments and provide them with all
pertinent information.

Consultants. After consulting with and receiving directions from the Issuer,
arrange for such reports and opinions of recognized independent
consultants as may be appropriate for the successful marketing of the Debt
Instruments.

Auditors. In the event formal verification by an independent auditor of any
calculations incident to the Debt Instruments is required, make
arrangements for such services.

[ssuer Meetings. Attend meetings of the governing body of the Issuer, its
staff, representatives or committees as requested at all times when the Team
may be of assistance or service and the subject of financing is to be discussed.

Printing. To the extentauthorized by the Issuer, coordinate all work incident
to printing of the offering documents and the Debt Instruments.

Delivery of Debt Instruments. As soon as a bid for the Debt Instruments is
accepted by the Issuer, coordinate the efforts of all concerned to the end that
the Debt Instruments may be delivered and paid for as expeditiously as
possible and assist the Issuer in the preparation or verification of final closing
figures incident to the delivery of the Debt Instruments.




1L Debt Service Schedule. After the closing of the sale and delivery of the Debt
Instruments, deliver to the Issuer a schedule of annual debt service
requirements for the Debt Instruments.

SECTION II
TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the Issuer or the Team upon
the giving of at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other party of its intention to
terminate, specifying in such notice the effective date of such termination. However, it is
understood that the Team may not be terminated during the pendency of a competitive bond
issue once the Issuer has authorized the advertisement of the sale of such bonds and until the
delivery of such bonds. No penalty will be assessed for termination of this Agreement.

SECTION III
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT

The fees due to the Team for the services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through
A6 of this Agreement with respect to financial planning and meetings prior to the issuance of
bonds shall be calculated in accordance with the schedule set forth or Appendix A attached
hereto. The fees due to the Team for the services set forth and described in Section 1, B1 through
B11 of this agreement with respect to the issuance of Debt Instruments shall be calculated in
accordance with the schedule set forth on Appendix B attached hereto. Unless specifically
provided otherwise in Appendices A and B or in a separate written agreement between Issuer
and the Team, such fees, together with any other fees as may have been mutually agreed upon
and all expenses for which the Team is entitled to reimbursement, shall become due and payable
as shown in Appendices A and B. The Team shall invoice the Issuer for all fees and reimbursable
expenses due from the Issuer hereunder, and all invoices shall be signed by Post Oak Municipal
Advisors LLC (“POMA”) and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated (“Baird”). In accordance with
the terms of this Agreement, the Issuer shall pay each such invoice as follows: (i) for the portion
of the invoice attributable to fees, the Issuer shall pay 50% of the fees to POMA and 50% of the
fees to Baird, and (ii) for the portion of the invoice attributable to reimbursable expenses, the
Issuer shall reimburse POMA or Baird (as applicable) those expenses that the invoice reflects were
paid by POMA or Baird (as applicable).

SECTION IV
MISCELLANEOUS

1.  Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed and given effect in accordance with the
laws of the State of Texas.

2.  Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the Issuer and the Team, their respective successors and assigns; provided however,
neither party hereto may assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder
without the prior written consent of the other party.

3. Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties
relating to the rights herein granted and obligations herein assumed. Any oral or written
representations or modifications concerning this Agreement shall be of no force or effect
except for a subsequent modification in writing signed by all parties hereto.

-5-
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Additional Certifications. Additionally, Baird and POMA represent and verify that, to the
extent this contract represents a contract for goods and services within the meaning of
Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of
Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government Code, at the time of execution of this contract and
through the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by
applicable federal law, neither Baird (nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned
subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same) nor POMA boycotts or will boycott
Israel. The terms “boycott Israel” and “boycotts Israel” as used in this paragraph have the
meanings assigned to the term “boycott Israel” in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government
Code, as amended.

Further, by executing this contract, Baird and POMA also represent and certify that, to the
extent this contract represents a governmental contract within the meaning of Section
2252.151 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and solely for purposes of Chapter
2252 of the Texas Government Code, at the time of execution and delivery of this contract
and through the termination of this contract, except to the extent otherwise required by
applicable federal law, neither Baird ( nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned
subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the same) nor POMA (i) engages in business with
Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization as described in Chapters 806 or 807 of the
Texas Government Code, or Subchapter F of Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code,
or (ii) is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections
806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. The term “foreign terrorist
organization” in this paragraph the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2252.151 of
the Texas Government Code.



ATTEST:

Secretary
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POST OAK MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

o LTl

Pl ]

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO. INCORPORATED

By;%ﬁmwww

artholomew
ging Director

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

By:
Title:
Date:




POST OAK MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

By:

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO. INCORPORATED

By:

Jan Bartholomew
Managing Director

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY

By: 4 %

Title: _PREB |1 P &7 7
Date: G~ ~Z0 (R

ATTEST:

W

Secretar)ﬂ

713704



APPENDIX A

The fees due the Team for services set forth and described in Section I, A1 through A6, shall be
accrued on an hourly basis as follows:

Senior Vice Presidents/Managing Directors $150.00 per hour
Other Vice Presidents/ Analysts $100.00 per hour
Administrative $ 25.00 per hour

With respect to the method of billing used By the Team, if two senior vice presidents and/or
managing directors are in attendance or involved in a project, the Issuer will only be invoiced for
$150.00 per hour. However, if a senior vice president and/ or managing director and another vice
president or analyst is necessary at the attendance of a meeting or involved in a project, the Issuer
will be invoiced for both of those professionals.

If the Team seeks payment for any such services, the Team shall invoice the Issuer for any such
services on a quarterly basis. Hourly fees shall be due and payable within 60 days of the date of
the invoice.

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by the Team as reimbursable
expenses:

Travel expenses
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges
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APPENDIX B

The fees due the Team with respect to the services as set forth in Section I, B1 through B11
for the issuing of Debt Instruments that are bonds are as follows:

Minimum Fee $50,000

First $3,000,000: 2.00% of the Principal Amount
$3,000,001 to $5,000,000: 1.50% of the Principal Amount
$5,000,001 to $10,000,000: 1.00% of the Principal Amount
$10,000,001 to $20,000,000: 0.75% of the Principal Amount
$20,000,001 to $30,000,000: 0.50% of the Principal Amount
$30,000,001 to $50,000,000: 0.25% of the Principal Amount
Over to $50,000,000: 0.10% of the Principal Amount

The payment of fees described above for financial advisory services shall be contingent upon the
delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that bonds are delivered.

The fees due the Team for Debt Instruments that are not bonds will be mutually determined by
the Issuer and Team by separate written agreement.

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable, whether they
are charged to the Issuer directly as expenses or charged to the Issuer by the Team as reimbursable
expenses:

Bond counsel, legal or tax opinion, counsel to underwriter, securities or disclosure counsel, or
any other counsel

Bond printing

Bond ratings

Credit enhancement

CPA fees for refunding

Official statement preparation and printing and distribution

Paying agent/registrar/ trustee

Travel expenses

Publication of Notices in newspapers, financial publications and other publications
Miscellaneous, including copy, delivery, word processing, and phone charges

The payment of reimbursable expenses that the Team has assumed on behalf of the Issuer shall
not be contingent upon the delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that services are
rendered and payable upon receipt of an invoice therefor submitted by the Team.

In the event that either party to this contract determines that it is necessary to retain securities or
disclosure counsel to review documents and proceedings related to the offering of bonds by the
Issuer and to provide other services customarily provided by securities disclosure counsel, such
counsel will be retained.
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A6 & A7

Counties

Harris
Fort Bend

Identify the Applicant's total service area population:: 591,212

Funding Program(s)
Funding Programs
SWIFT: $45,000,000

Other Funding Sources

Other Funding Sources

Funding Source Type of Funds Amount ($)
(Loan, Grant, etc.)

Date Applied for
Funding

Anticipated or
Funding Secured
Date

Local $58,280,000

State loan $348,420,750

Other Funding Comments:




Funding_1 N A



swiFT * Multi-Year Commitment
= Annual Loan Closing Schedule

West Harris County Regional Water Authority

Project# 51003, 51022, and 51023

Internal Distribution, Second Source Transmission Line, and Northeast Water Purification Plant Expansion

Annual Loan Closing Schedule

Year Amount pe1r5:R0e;;)Iution No. Proposed Revised Amount
Prior Years Total $217,950,000 (If Applicable)
2018 $289,680,000 No change
2019 $107,470,000 No change
2020 $62,560,000 No change
2021 $33,570,000 No change
2022 $23,880,000 No change
2023 $38,100,000 No change
2024 $24,190,000 No change
2025 $14,740,000 No change
TOTAL $812,140,000 No change

NOTE: The overall structure and approach are intended to allow applicants to achieve savings while maintaining the
integrity of the SWIFT program and includes subsidies based on level-debt service schedules for all low-interest
obligations. Interest rate subsidies for non-level debt service are subject to modification.

If the TWDB is able to offer the option of spring and/or a fall closing dates, what would be the optimal closing allocation
for your current 2018 commitment of $289,680,000 for your project? (NOTE: Submittal does not constitute approval of a
second closing opportunity by either the TWDB or the applicant.)

Closing October/November 2018: $154,055,000
Closing April/May 2019: $135,625,000
TOTAL: $289,680,000

Contact Information

Please provide the best point of contact for TWDB staff to discuss your anticipated closing schedule.
Deputy Program Manager for WHCRWA
Melinda Silva, PE Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation

Contact Name and Title

713-527-6427 Melinda.silva@dannenbaum.com

Phone Number Email Address



Funding & Project Type

Has this project received TWDB funding for any other project phases?: Y
Requesting Funding for Planning: Y

Requesting Funding for Acquisition: Y

Requesting Funding for Design: Y

Requesting Funding for Construction: Y

Is the project a water project?: Y

Is the project a wastewater project?: N

Is Applicant requesting funding to refinance existing debt?: N

DUNS:

Federal Awards information:

1. Did applicant receive over 80% of their revenue from Federal Awards last year?:
2. Did applicant receive over $25 million in Federal Awards last year?:

3. Does the public have access to executive compensation information via SEC or IRS reports?:

Describe procedures for collecting monthly customer bills (include procedures for collection of
delinquent accounts):



TWDB- 0215 N A



Contractors & Loan/Grant Participation Summary

Have you already solicited contractors?:
Have contracts already been awarded?:

Legal Information

Cite the legal authority under which the Applicant can issue the proposed debt including the
authority to make a proposed pledge of revenues.: Pursuant to the WHCRWA's Act (House Bill
No. 1842, 77th Legislature), the WHCRWA is authorized and has the power to issue, sell and
deliver revenue (including junior lien revenue) bonds for the purpose, among others, of financing
construction and acquisition of water treatment and conveyance facilities.

What type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt?: SYSTEMS_REVENUE

Provide the full legal name of the security for the proposed debt issue(s).: West Harris County
Regional Water Authority Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds Series

Describe the pledge being offered and any existing rate covenants.: The proposed debt issue (the
“Bonds”) is being issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2003 and a
proposed Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture of Trust (collectively, the “Indenture”), both between
the WHCRWA and Regions Bank, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The bonds are being issued as
“Junior Lien Bonds” under the Indenture. Under the Indenture, Parity Bonds, Parity Notes and
Parity Obligations are secured by a lien on Pledged Revenues that is senior and superior to the
lien on Pledged Revenues securing the Junior Lien Bonds, Junior Lien Notes and Junior Lien
Obligations. The Bonds (together with the outstanding bonds and any future Parity Bonds, Parity
Notes and Parity Obligations or future Junior Lien Bonds, Junior Lien Notes and Junior Lien
Obligations) are limited obligations of the WHCRWA payable solely from and to the extent of its
Pledged Revenues and Pledged Funds pledged for that purpose under the Indenture. Pledged
Revenues consist of Net Revenues (hereinafter described) and amounts transferred from the
WHCRWA'’s Coverage Fund to its Revenue Fund. Net Revenues consist primarily of collections of
groundwater pumpage fees/user fees (“GRP Fees”) imposed by the WHCRWA and water sale
revenues (“Water Revenues”) remaining after payment of the WHCRWA's maintenance and
operating expenses. The Bonds are obligations solely of the WHCRWA and are not obligations of
the State of Texas, the City of Houston, Harris County, Fort Bend County, any of the Retail
Utilities, Contract Retail Utilities, Private Well Owners, or any entity other than the WHCRWA. The
Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the WHCRWA and are not payable from funds
raised or to be raised by ad valorem or other property taxes. The WHCRWA has no property
taxing power.
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Application Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution

A RESOLUTION by the Board of Directors of the
West Harris County Regional Water Authority (WHCRWA)

requesting financial assistance from

the Texas Water Development Board; authorizing the filing of an application for assistance; and making certain

findings in connection therewith.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Board of Directors OF
g WHCRWA

SECTION 1: That an application is hereby approved and authorized to be filed with the Texas Water

Development Board seeking financial assistance in an amount not to exceed § 45,000,000 to provide for
the costs of YWHCRWA's share of Second Source Transmission Line ("Surface Water Supply Project”)

SECTION 2: That Bruce Parker be and is hereby
designated the authorized representative of the WHCRWA for purposes

of furnishing such information and executing such documents as may be required in connection with the preparation

and filing of such application for financial assistance and the rules of the Texas Water Development Board.

SECTION 3: That the following firms and individuals are hereby authorized and directed to aid and assist

in the preparation and submission of such application and appear on behalf of and represent the

WHCRWA before any hearing held by the Texas Water

Development Board on such application, to wit:

Financial Advisors: Terrell Palmer, Post Oak Municipal Advisors, LLC
2000 West Loop, Suite 1800, Houston, Texas 77027
Ph: 713-328-0991 Email: TPalmer@PostOakMA.com

Jan Bartholomew, Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated
1331 Lamar, Suite 1360, Houston, Texas 77010
Ph: 713-230-6121 Email: jbartholomew@rwbaird.com

Engineer: Melinda Silva, Dannenbaum Engineering Corp.
3100 West Alabama, Houston, Texas 77098
Ph: 713-527-6427 Email: melinda.silva@dannenbaum.com

Bond Counsel: Alia Vinson, Allen Boone Humphries Robinson, LLP

3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600, Houston, Texas 77027
Ph: 713-860-6449 Email: avinson@abhr.com

s @,
“‘J’"‘ fﬁ’ Eﬁ;}l\{ﬁ' PPROVED, this the day of 720

v
o nunsrarnentt
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Application Affidavit
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF  HARRIS AND FORT BEND $

APPL] C ANT Woast Harris County Regional Water Authority §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, on this day

personally appeared Bruce Parker as the Authorized Representative of the
West Harris County Regional Water Authority

, who being by me duly sworn, upon oath says that:

1. The decision by the West Harris County Regional Water Authority Fiathortty:

city, county, corporation,

district) to request financial assistance from the Texas Water Development Board ("TWDB") was made in a public
meeting held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act (Government Code, §551.001, et seq,) and after providing
all such notice as required by such Act as is applicable to the VVest Harris County Regional Water Authority

(authority, city, county, corporation, district) ,
2. The information submitted in the application is true and correct according to my best knowledge and

belief.

3. The WestHarris County Regional Water Authority (authority, city, county, corporation, district) has no

pending, threatened, or outstanding judgments, orders, fines, penalties, taxes, assessment or other enforcement or
compliance issue of any kind or nature by the Environmental Protection Agency, Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality, Texas Comptroller, Texas Secretary of State, or any other federal, state or local government,
except for the following (if no such outstanding compliance issues, write in "none").

None

4. The West Harris County Regional Water Authority . .riv city, county, corporation, district) warrants

compliance with the representations made in the application in the event that the TWDB provides the financial

assistance; and

5. the West Harris County Regional Water Authority (authority, city, county, corporation, district) will comply

with all applicable federal laws, rules, and regulations as well as the laws of this stat e tules and regulations

of the TWDB.
g7 a«é(

Official Representative

Title:  PRES IDEXT

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, by mp_ C 4'«_,@% L
on this ’// . day of % ,20 ga.

@biic, State of Texas ~—" ¢

LINDA SOTIRAKE

Notaiy 1D # 3127¢
My Lommission Expies
August 31, 2020
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Application Resolution - Certificate of Secretary

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF Harris and Fort Bend §

APPLICANT West Harris County Regional Water Authority §

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the West Harris County Regional Water Authority (WHCRWA) Texas,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY as follows:

I That on the 11th  day of April ,2018 | aregular/special meeting of the
WHCRWA was held; the duly constituted members of the
WHCRWA being as follows:

Bruce Parker, Larry Weppler, Douglas (Cam) Postle, Gary Struzick, Eric Hansen, Mark Janneck, Michael Thornhill, Karla Cannon, Dennis Gorden

all of whom were present at the meeting, except the following;

Among other business considered at the meeting, the attached resolution entitled:

"A RESOLUTION by the Board of Directors of the WHCRWA requesting
financial participation from the Texas Water Development Board; authorizing the filing of an application
for financial participation; and making certain findings in connection therewith."

was introduced and submitted to the Board of Directors for passage and adoption. After
presentation and consideration of the resolution, and upon a motion made by and
seconded by , the resolution was passed and adopted by the
Board of Directors by the following vote:

voted "For" voted "Against" abstained
all as shown in the official minutes of the WHCRWA for this meeting,

2. That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the original on file in the official records
of the_ WHCRWA ; the qualified and acting members of the Board of Directors on
the date of this meeting are those persons shown above and, according to the records of my office, advance notice of
the time, place, and purpose of meeting was given to each member of the Board of Directors ; and that the

meeting, and the deliberations of the public business described above, was open to the public and written notice of
the meeting, including the subject of the resolution described above, was posted and given in advance of the meeting
in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,

IN WITNESS WH REOF, I have signed my name an%lxed the seal of / /P
the [U 3 /c‘ /4 , this the {Z day of , 20 /R
————

4“"# :""m,‘}"

\

Secretary




Bonds, CCN, Enforcement Action

Is the applicant proposing to issue revenue bonds?: Y

Does the applicant possess a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)?: N
If no, indicate the status of the CCN.: N/A

Has the applicant been the subject of any enforcement action by the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), or any other entity
within the past three years?: N



NOT APPLICABLE: THERE IS NO OUTSTANDING PARITY DEBT FOR JUNIOR LIEN REVENUE BONDS.



Municipality

Is the area to be served by the project within the service area of a municipality or other public
utility?: 'Y

If yes, has the applicant obtained an affidavit stating that the utility does not object to the
construction and operation of the services and facilities in its service area?: N

If no, provide an explanation as to why not.: WHCRWA is a wholesale provider. Their legislation
provides the ability to serve those in their Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP). In addition, the
City of Houston consented to the creation of the WHCRWA.



NoQbj ecti onAffidavit N A



Board Approved WCP

If the assistance requested is more than $500,000 a Water Conservation Plan (WCP) is required.
The WCP cannot be more than FIVE years old and must have been adopted by the applicant. Has
the applicant adopted a Board-approved WCP? (Check one and attach requested information, if

any.): Y
Enter date of Applicant's WCP adoption: 2016-03-01 00:00:00.0



Water Conservation Annual Report ~ Wholesale Water Suppliers
TWDB Form Nlc\;. 1“96r9 " o Texas water
Revised on 3/11/2016 10:58 AM nmmpment Board

Water Conservation Plan Annual Report
Wholesale Water Supplier

Name of Utility: West Harris Co Regional WA

Public Water Supply Identification Number (PWS ID): TX1013303

Certification of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) Number:

Surface Water Right ID Number:

Wastewater ID Number:

Check all that apply:

D Retail Water Supplier
Wholesale Water Supplier

|:| Wastewater Treatment Utility

Address: 3200 Southwest Fwy., Ste. 2600 City: Houston Zip Code: 77027

Email: melinda.silva@dannenbaum.com Telephone Number: 7135276427

Regional Water Planning Group: H

Groundwater Conservation District:

Contact:  First Name: Melinda Last Name: Silva
Title: Deputy Program Manager
Is this person the designated Conservation Coordinator? (®) Yes O No

Regional Water Planning Group: H

Groundwater Conservation District:

Reporting Period (Calendar year):

Period Begin (mm/yyyy): 01/2017 Period End (mm/yyyy):  12/2017

Check all that apply:

Received financial assistance of $500,000 or more from TWDB

D Have a surface water right with TCEQ

Page 1 of 6



Water Conservation Annual Report ~ Wholesale Water Suppliers
TWDB Form Nov. 1‘%9 ’ o Texas water
Revised on 3/11/2016 10:58 AM Development Board

SYSTEM DATA

1. For this reporting period, provide the total volume of wholesale water exported (transfered or
sold):
9,277,862,805

] ) ] d Wholesale Customers Categories*
2. For this reporting period, does your
billing/accounting system have the * Municipal
capability to classify > Industrial
customer into the Wholesale Customer » Commercial
Categories? » Institutional
» Agricultural
® yes O No
*Recommended Customer Categories for classifying
customer water use. For definitions, refer to Guidance
3. For this reporting period, select the and Methodology on Water Conservation and Water
category(s) used to calculate wholesale Use.
customer water usage: pN
/ Municipal
Industrial
Commercial
Institutional
Agricultural

4. For this reporting period, enter the gallons of WHOLESALE water exported (transfered or sold).
Enter zero if a Customer Category does not apply.

Wholesale Customer Category ggﬁ?jfdnggﬁg) gﬂggﬁ{eorfs
Municipal 9,277,862,805 204,732
Industrial
Commercial
Institutional
Agricultural

Total Gallons® 9277862805 204732

"Municipal + Industrial + Commercial + Institutional + Agricultural = Wholesale Water Exported

Page 2 of 6



Water Conservation Annual Report ~ Wholesale Water Suppliers
TWDB Form N(; 1‘969 0 o Texas water
Revised on 3/11/2016 10:58 AM Development Board

Water Use Accounting

Total Gallons During the Reporting Period

Water Produced:
Water from permitted sources such as rivers, lakes, streams, and 0
wells

Wholesale Water Imported:

Purchased wholesale water transferred into the system. 9,277,862,805

System Input:
Total water supplied to system and available for use. 9,277,862,805
Produced + Imported = System Input

Wholesale Water Exported:

Wholesale water sold or transferred out of the system. 9,277,862,805
Gallons Per Day:
Wholesale Water Exported / 365 = Gallons Per Day 25,418,802
Population:
Estimated total population for municipal customers. AV =
Gallons Per Capita Per Day:
Wholesale Exported / Population / 365 = Gallons Per Capita Per 124
Day
Provide the breakdown of Wholesale Water Exported into Raw and Treated water volumes.

Gallons
Raw Wholesale Water Exported
Treated Wholesale Water Exported 9,277,862,805

Provide the specific and quantified five and ten-year targets as listed in your most current Water Conservation Plan.

Date to Achieve Target Specified and Quantified Targets
Five-year target 2020 144.2 total gpcd, 7.2 water loss gpcd
Ten-year target 2025 145.1 total gpcd, 7.3 water loss gpcd

Page 3 of 6



Water Conservation Annual Report ~ Wholesale Water Suppliers
TWDB Form N(;/. 1‘%9 ; o Texas water
Revised on 3/11/2016 10:58 AM Development Board

Water Conservation Programs and Activities

1. Water Conservation Plan. 2015
What year did your entity adopt or revise their most recent Water Conservation
Plan?
Does The Plan incorporate Best Management Practices? ® Yes O No

2. Water Conservation Programs
Has your entity implemented any type of water conservation activity or
program?

® Yes O No

If yes, select the type(s) of Best Management Practices or water conservation strategies
implemented during this reporting period.

Wholesale Supplier Activities and Practices

Agricultural Conservation Programs

Conservation Analysis & Planning

Conservation Rate Structures

Conservation Technology

Education & Public Awareness

Industrial Conservation Programs

Leak Detection/Water Loss Program

Rebate, Retrofit, and Incentive Programs

NS

Regulatory & Enforcement

System Operations

Water Efficient Landscape Programs

Water Use Audits

Other

3. Recycle/Reuse (Water or Wastewater Effluent)
For this reporting period, provide direct and indirect reuse activities.

Reuse Activity Estimated Volume (in gallons)

On-site irrigation

Page 4 of 6



Water Conservation Annual Report ~ Wholesale Water Suppliers
TWDB Form Ng. 1‘%9 ’ o Texas water
Revised on 3/11/2016 10:58 AM Development Board

Plant wash down

Chlorination/de-chlorination

Industrial

Landscape irrigation (parks, golf

courses) 762,298,000

Agricultural

Other
Estimated Volume of Reuse 762,298,000

4. Water Savings
For this reporting period, estimate the savings that resulted from water conversation activities and

programs.
E(s;t;{roar'id Estimated Gallons Total Volume Dollar Value
1 2
Saved/Conserved Recycled/Reused of Water Saved of Water Saved
762,298,000 762,298,000 2,176,549

Estimated Gallons Saved + Estimated Gallons Recycled/Reused = Total Volume Saved

2Estimated this value by taking into account water savings, the cost of treatment or purchase of water, and deferred capital
cost due to conservation.

5. Program Effectiveness
In your opinion, how would you rank the overall effectiveness of your conservation programs and
activities?

‘Less Than Effective | Somewhat Effective| Hightly Effective Does Not Apply ‘

e O ® o

6. What might your entity do to improve the effectiveness of your water conservation program?

The WHCRWA continues to sponsor educational outreach programs that focus on providing information
to the community in order to enlist their help in conserving water.

The WHCRWA's educational outreach programs include publishing water conservation and water
management articles in the WHCRWA's newsletters and pamphlets, and creating active links to water
conservation-related websites via the WHCRWA's Website. Water conservation has been and will
continue to be discussed at the WHCRWA Town Hall Meetings.

In addition to the educational outreach programs, the WHCRWA sponsors two Mobile Teaching Labs.
The “Water is Life” Teaching Lab is jointly sponsored by the WHCRWA and the North Harris County
Regional Water Authority (NHCRWA).

Water Conservation Educational Materials can be downloaded via a link on the WHCRWA's web site at:
http://www.whcrwa.com/education/

The WHCRWA implements incentives in the form of water credits to encourage reuse of treatment plant
effluent, untreated surf

Page 5 of 6



Water Conservation Annual Report ~ Wholesale Water Suppliers
TWDB Form No. 1969
Revised on 3/11/2016 10:58 AM

7. Select the areas for which you would like to receive more technical assistance.

Technical Assitance Areas

Agricultural Best Management Practices

/ Wholesale Best Management Practices

Industrial Best Management Practices

Drought Contingency Plans

Landscape Efficient Systems

Leak Detection and Equipment

Educational Resources

Water Conservation Plans

Water 1Q: Know Your Water

Water Loss Audits

Rainwater Harvesting

Recycling and Reuse

Page 6 of 6

Texas Water
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Retaill Water Services

Does the applicant provide retail water services?: N



Date/Time Survey Submitted: 4/2/2018 3:30:46 PM

SYSTEM NAME:

TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WATER USE SURVEY

WATER USE IN CALENDAR YEAR: 2017

WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY SURVEY NUMBER: 1100643
OPERATOR NAME: PRIMARY USED COUNTY: HARRIS
MULTIPLE SURVEY ORG: PRIMARY USED RIVER BASIN: SAN JACINTO
MAILING ADDRESS 1: 3200 SOUTHWEST FWY STE 2600 ORGANIZATION MAIN PHONE: - -
MAILING ADDRESS 2: MAIN EMAIL:
CITY/STATE/ZIP: HOUSTON X 77027-7537 WEB:
PWS NAME: WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHOR PWS CODE: 1013303
INTAKE:
. . . A Metered or Brackish / % Treated Prior
Water Type County Basin Aquifer Well Name (if applicable) Estimated | Saline (Y or N) to Intake Total Volume (gallons)
GROUND WATER SELF FORT BEND SAN JACINTO | GULF COAST well M N 0.00 667,924,700
SUPPLIED AQUIFER
JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 667,924,700
. . . A Metered or Brackish / % Treated Prior
Water Type County Basin Aquifer Well Name (if applicable) Estimated | Saline (Y or N) to Intake Total Volume (gallons)
GROUND WATER SELF HARRIS SAN JACINTO | GULF COAST wells M N 0.00 13,697,064,115
SUPPLIED AQUIFER
JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 13,697,064,115
. River / Metered or Brackish / % Treated Prior
Water Type County Basin Seller Name and/or Seller System R Estimated | Saline (Y or N) ® [iEe Total Volume (gallons)
SURFACE WATER PURCHASED CITY OF GENERAL M N 100.00 8,515,564,805
HOUSTON DISTRIBUTION
SYSTEM
(HOUSTON) &
CWA SYSTEMS
JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST | SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 8,515,564,805
% Reuse
Water Type County Besiin Néetgred or o % Reuse for % Reuse for % Reuse for Total Volume
stimated (e Landscape Agriculture Other (gallons)
REUSE SELF SUPPLIED DIRECT HARRIS SAN JACINTO M 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 762,298,000
SALES:
SALLE NP WATER [AQUIFER NAME |SURFACE WATER RAW or TOTAL VOLUME
BUYER (MUNICIPAL or | COUNTY NAME | BASIN NAME TYPE (if GW) Name (if SW) TREATED (GALLONS)
INDUSTRIAL)
ADDICKS UD M SURFACE Treated 0
WATER




BARKER CYPRESS MUD SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 185 SURFACE Treated
WATER

CLAY ROAD MUD SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 188 POINT NORTHWEST SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 162 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 179 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 130 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 208 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 163 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 186 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 70 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 102 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 250 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 127 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 136 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 183 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 149 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 257 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 155 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 166 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 276 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 172 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 500 SURFACE Treated
WATER

REMINGTON MUD 1 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 196 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 173 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 238 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 264 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 341 SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 370 SURFACE Treated

WATER




HARRIS COUNTY MUD 433 M SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY UD 6 M SURFACE Treated
WATER

JACKRABBIT ROAD PUD M SURFACE Treated
WATER

LANGHAM CREEK UD M SURFACE Treated
WATER

MAYDE CREEK MUD M SURFACE Treated
WATER

RICEWOOD MUD M SURFACE Treated
WATER

PINE FOREST COUNTRY CLUB M SURFACE Treated
WATER

ROLLING CREEK UD M SURFACE Treated
WATER

SPENCER ROAD PUD M SURFACE Treated
WATER

WEST HARRIS COUNTY MUD 15 M SURFACE Treated
WATER

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 418 M SURFACE Treated
WATER

WATER SYSTEM INFORMATION:

lEstimated full-time residential population served directly by this system

206,715




Potable Water Services

Is the applicant a retail public utility that provides potable water?: N



West Harris County Regional Water Authority is not a retail water provider; therefore it is not
required to submit a water loss audit to TWDB.



Provide Wastewater Services

Does the applicant provide wastewater services?: N

Provide Regional or Wholesale Water Services

Does the applicant provide regional or wholesale water services?: Y

List the top TEN customers of the system by annual usage in gallons and percentage of total

usage, including whether any are in bankruptcy.

Customer Name

Annual Usage (gal)

Percent of Usage

Bankruptcy (Y/N)

Interstate MUD 983,476,000 24.00% N
Harris County MUD 822,373,000 20.00% N
418
Harris County MUD 362,288,000 9.00% N
165
Mission Bend MUD 2 |333,875,000 8.00% N
Harris County MUD 306,251,000 7.00% N
433
Harris County MUD 293,284,000 7.00% N
167
Katy, City of 277,772,000 7.00% N
Harris County MUD 268,659,000 6.00% N
106
Harris County MUD 71 |260,905,000 6.00% N
Harris County MUD 260,310,000 6.00% N

165

Comments:




List the top TEN customers of the system by gross revenues and percent of total revenues,
including whether any are in bankruptcy.

Customer Name

Annual Revenue

Percent of Revenue

Bankruptcy (Y/N)

Interstate MUD $2,409,516.2 23.59% N
Harris County MUD $2,014,813.85 19.72% N
418
Harris County MUD $887,605.6 8.69% N
165
Mission Bend MUD 2 [$817,993.75 8.01% N
Harris County MUD $750,314.95 7.35% N
433
Harris County MUD $718,545.8 7.03% N
167
Katy, City of $680,541.4 6.66% N
Harris County MUD $658,214.55 6.44% N
106
Harris County MUD 71 [$639,217.25 6.26% N
Harris County MUD $637,759.5 6.24% N

165




Provide a summary of the wholesale contracts with customers.

Contract Minimum | Usage Fee Annual Annual Annual Debt Other
Type Annual Per 1000 | Operations Capital Service
Amount Gallons and Costs
Maintenance
Harris $1,139,367.6($2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
County MUD
196
Harris $918,453.6 [$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
County MUD
418
Remington |$868,409.1 |$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
MUD 1
Harris $805,326.3 [$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
County MUD
102
Jackrabbit  [$798,462.9 |$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
Road PUD
Langham $734,323.59 [$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
Creek U.D.
Horsepen  |$734,323.59 ($2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
Bayou MUD
Harris $714,471.3 [$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
County MUD
500
Barker $705,042.9 [$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cypress
MUD
Harris $600,174.9 [$2.7 $0 $0 $0 $0
County UD 6

Debt

Disclose all issues that may affect the project or the applicant's ability to issue and/or repay debt
(such as anticipated lawsuits, judgments, bankruptcies, major customer closings, etc).:. NONE

Has the applicant ever defaulted on any debt?: N

Taxing Authority

Does the applicant have taxing authority?: N
Tax Assessed Valuations

Fiscal Year Net Tax Rate | General | Interest& | Tax Levy |Percentage|Percentage
Ending Taxable %) Fund ($) Sinking %) Current Total
Assessed Fund (%) Collections | Collections
Value ($) (%) (%)
2018
2017




2016

2015

2014

Tax Assessed Values Comments:



TaxRat eTabl e N A



TaxAssessedVal ueByCd ass_0 N A



TaxAssessedVal ueByC ass_1 N A



TaxAssessedVal ueByC ass_2 N A



TaxAssessedVal ueByd ass_3 N A



TaxAssessedVal ueByd ass_4 N A



Top Ten Taxpayers

Taxpayer Name

Assessed Value

Percent of Total

Bankruptcy (Y/N)

Top Ten Taxpayer Comments:

Tax Rate and Sales Tax

Provide the maximum tax rate permitted by law per $100 of property value.:

Does the applicant collect sales tax?: N

Is the proposed loan tax-exempt?: N




West Harris County Regional Water Authority

Water Rate and Pumpage Fee Model

Rates and Fees

Authority System Net Revenue

Year Surface Rate Per Pumpage Rate Per  Total Entity NFBWA Gross Administration - Operating  Luce Bayou  Luce Bayou Available for
Ended Water MGD 1000 MDG Fee MGD 1000 MDG Credits Payments Revenue 7% Inflation Expenses Operating  Debt Service Raw Water  Treated Water COH Capital Total Debt Service
2018 17.8598 310 41.6730 2.70 (804,430) 1,094,152 61,566,773 (4,587,786)  (792,292) (814,000) (1,511,433} (4,174,450) (2,000,000) (13,879,961) 47,686,812
2019 18.4255 310 429929 2.70 (804,490} 1,092,842 63,506,311 (4,908,931)  (792,292) {1,628,000) (1,590,491) (4,362,802}  (2,000,000) (15,312,516) 48,193,795
2020 18.9912 310 443128 2.70 (804,490) 1,094,523 65,448,840 (5,252,556) [792,292) (1,937,000) (1,672,107) (4,618,218)  (2,000,000) (16,272,174) 49,176,666
2021 19.3049 310 450447 2.70 (804,450) 1,094,216 66,524,769 (5,620,235) (792,292)  (1,566,000) (2,158,000) (1,733,720} (4,788,388) (2,000,000} (18,658,635) 47,866,134
2022 19.6186 310 457766 2.70 (804,490} 1,095,335 67,602,124 (6,013,652) (792,292) (1,596,000} (2,448,000) (1,797,129) (4,963,517) (2,000,000} (19,610,589) 47,991,535
2023 19.9322 310 46.5086 2.70 (804,490) 1,092,979 68,676,004 (6,434,607) (792,292)  (1,632,000) (2,574,000} (1,862,380) (5,143,736)  (2,000,000) (20,439,015) 48,236,989
2024 20.2459 310 47.2405 2.70 (804,490) 1,094,234 69,753,496 (6,885,030) (792,292)  (1,664,000) (2,535,000} (1,929,523) (5,329,178) (2,000,000) (21,135,023) 48,618,473
2025 41.1192 310 274128 2.70 (804,490) 1,094,403 73,831,602 (7,366,982)  (792,292) (1,700,000}  (4,169,000) (3.997,212)  (11,039,962) (2,000,000) (31,065,448) 42,766,154
2026 41.7466 310 27.8310 2.70 (804,490) 1,093,757 74,952,990 (7,882,671) (792,292)  (1,700,000) (4,163,000) (4,139,362 (11,432,568) (2,000,000) (32,115,892) 42,837,097

2027 42,3739 310 28.2493 2.70 (804,490} 1,094,030 76,075,296 (8,434,457)  (792,292) (1,700,000) (4,169,000} (4,285599)  (11,836,462) (2,000,000) (33,217,810) 42,857,486
2028 43,0013 310 286675 2.70 (804,490) 1,092,916 77,196,215 (9,024,869)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (4,169,000) (4,/436,030)  (12,251,939) (2,000,000) (34,374,130) 42,822,085
2029 43,6286 310 29.0858 2.70 (421,210) 1,092,938 78,701,551 (9,656,610)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,801,798) (4,590,763)  (12,679,300) (2,000,000) (35,220,764) 43,480,787

2030 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (421,210} 1,093,680 79,824,326 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,801,798) (4,749,912)  (13,118,855) (2,000,000} (36,495,430) 43,328,896
2031 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (274,738) 1,093,070 79,970,188 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (4,844910)  (13,381,232) (2,000000) (36,791,008) 43,179,180
2032 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (274,738) 78,877,118 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (4,941,808)  (13,648,857) (2,000,000) (37,155,530) 41,721,588

2033 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (230,246} 78,921,610 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,394,266
2034 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (203,582) 78,948,274 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,420,930
2035 44,2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (100,118) 79,051,738 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,524,394

2036 44.2560 3.10 29.5040 2.70 (100,118) 79,051,738 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,524,394
2037 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (100,118) 79,051,738 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,524,334
2038 44,2560 310 29.5040 2.70 (100,118) 79,051,738 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,524,394

2039 44.2560 3.10 29.5040 2.70 (100,118) 79,051,738 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,524,394
2040 442560 310  29.5040 270 (100,118) 79,051,738 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,524,394

2041 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,624,512

2042 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5.040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000} (37,527,344) 41,624,512
2043 44.2560 3.10  29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,334) 41,624,512

2044 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573) (792,292)  (1,700,000) (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,624,512

2045 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645) (13,921,834} (2,000,000} (37,527,344) 41,624,512
2046 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (2,000,000) (37,527,344) 41,624,512

2047 442560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573) (792,292)  (1,700,000) (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (1,999,999) (37,527,343) 41,624,513

2048 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573) (792,292)  (1,700,000) (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (1,999,998)  (37,527,342) 41,624,514

2049 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573) (792,292) (1,700,000} (2,740,000) (5,040,645) (13,921,834)  (1,999,997) (37,527,341) 41,624,515

2050 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573) (792,292} (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (1,999,996) (37,527,340) 41,624,516

2051 44,2560 310  29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573} (792,292)  (1,700,000) (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (1,999,995)  (37,527,339) 41,624,517

2052 44,2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573) (792,292)  (1,700,000) (3,740,000} (5,040,645) (13,92 1,834) (1,999,994) (37,527,338) 41,624,518

2053 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573} (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5040,645)  (13,921,834) (1,999,993) (37,527,337) 41,624,519

2054 44.2560 310 29.5040 2.70 79,151,856 (10,332,573)  (792,292) (1,700,000)  (3,740,000) (5,040,645)  (13,921,834) (1,999,992) (37,527,336) 41,624,520
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West Harris County Regional Water Authority
Water Rate and Pumpage Fee Model

West Harris County Regional Water Authority
Water Rate and Pumpage Fee Model

Senior Lien Junior Lien
Call of Net Total Senior

Year Outstanding  Oustanding  Total Debt Year Outstanding Total Debt  Capitalized  and Junior Lien
Ended Bonds Bonds Service Ended Bonds Series 2018  Series 2019  Series 2020 Service Interest Debt
2018 22,727,559 22,727,559 2018 8,609,373 8,609,373 (5,602,897) 25,734,035
2019 (1,000,000) 23,309,390 22,309,390 2019 13,540,077 1,950,000 - & 15,490,077 (3,057,441) 34,742,026
2020 (2,000,000) 23,913,885 21,913,885 2020 13,549,021 3,387,454 450,000 - 17,386,475 (254,327) 39,046,033
2021 (2,000,000) 23,926,600 21,926,600 2021 13,560,892 3,387,454 781,720 450,000 18,180,066 (191,114) 39,915,552
2022 (2,000,000) 22,725,903 20,725,903 2022 13,564,549 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,515,443 - 39,241,346
2023 (2,000,000) 20,306,133 18,306,133 2023 13,572,362 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,523,256 - 36,829,389
2024 (2,000,000) 22515429 20,515429 2024 13,579,394 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,530,287 - 39,045,716
2025 (6,560,000) 18,541,455 11,981,455 2025 13,576,791 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,527,685 = 30,509,140
2026 (4,617,000) 14,262,016 9,645,016 2026 13,583,466 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,534,359 - 28,179,376
2027 (7,899,750) 18,737,373 10,837,623 2027 13,579,952 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,530,845 29,368,469
2028 (9.221,250) 18,744,143 9,522,893 2028 13,579,629 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,530,523 28,053,416
2029 (8,656,000) 18,754,791 10,098,791 2029 13,583,720 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,534,614 28,633,405
2030 (4,719,250) 13,542,045 8,822,795 2030 13,572,262 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,523,156 27,345,951
2031 (1,325,000) 10,547,085 9,222,085 2031 13,577,970 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,528,864 27,750,949
2032 (1,275,000) 8,109,819 6,834,819 2032 13,580,411 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,531,304 25,366,123
2033 (1,725,000) 8,108,713 6,383,713 2033 13,589,582 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,540,475 24,924,188
2034 {1,650,000) 8,109,925 6,459,925 2034 13,586,983 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,537,877 24,997,802
2035 (1,575,000) 8,102,788 6,527,788 2035 13,586,729 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 18,537,623 25,065,410
2036 3,840,513 3,840,513 2036 12,442,271 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,393,164 21,233,677
2037 3,838,638 3,838,638 2037 12,444 416 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,395,309 21,233,947
2038 3,840,775 3,840,775 2038 12,450,413 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,401,307 21,242,082
2039 3,838,825 3,838,825 2039 12,459,680 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,410,574 21,249,399
2040 3,837,800 3,837,800 2040 12,461,656 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,412,550 21,250,350
2041 3,835,000 3,839,000 2041 12,468,844 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,419,738 21,258,738
2042 3,840,400 3,840,400 2042 12,467,438 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,418,331 21,258,731
2043 3,836,800 3,836,800 2043 12,466,242 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,417,135 21,253,935
2044 3,843,200 3,843,200 2044 12,483,530 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,434,423 21,277,623
2045 3,839,000 3,839,000 2045 12,505,330 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,456,223 21,295,223
2046 2,064,400 2,064,400 2046 12,527,159 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 17,478,053 19,542,453
2047 - 2047 10,703,778 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 15,654,672 15,654,672
2048 - 2048 3,387,454 781,720 781,720 4,950,894 4,950,894
2049 - 2049 - 781,720 781,720 1,563,440 1,563,440
2050 - 2050 - - 781,720 781,720 781,720
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West Harris County Regional Water Authority
Water Rate and Pumpage Fee Model

Rate Covenant -

Annual Debt Service Senior Lien ABT -
Prior Year Coverage from Net MADS Coverage w/Net

Year  NetRevenue Available Coverage Account Improvement Fund  Total Available Revenue, O&M &  Debt Service Coverage Revenue, Imp. Fund.
Ended for Debt Service Balance O&M Reserve Balance for Debt Service ~ Net Debt Service Coverage Acct from Net Revenues  O&M & Coverage Acct
2018 47,686,812 10,218,736 10,000,000 19,000,000 86,905,548 25,734,035 3.38 1.85 363
2019 48,193,795 10,414,166 10,000,000 20,789,533 89,397,494 34,742,026 2.57 1.39 3.74
2020 49,176,666 10,526,666 10,000,000 19,304,286 89,007,619 39,046,033 2.28 1.26 3.72
2021 47,866,134 10,310,336 10,000,000 30,262,772 98,439,242 39,915,552 2.47 1.20 4.33
2022 47,991,535 10,261,429 10,000,000 39,480,018 107,732,982 39,241,346 2.75 1.22 4.78
2023 48,236,989 10,261,429 10,000,000 49,384,099 117,882,517 36,829,389 3.20 131 5.24
2024 48,618,473 9,322,351 10,000,000 61,920,107 129,860,931 35,045,716 3.33 1.25 6.92
2025 42,766,154 9,322,351 10,000,000 73,754,750 135,843,256 30,509,140 4.45 1.40 7.24
2026 42,837,097 9,322,351 10,000,000 87,328,733 149,488,181 28,179,376 5.30 1.52

2027 42,857,486 9,322,351 10,000,000 102,859,742 165,039,579 29,368,469 5.62 1.46

2028 42,822,085 9,322,351 10,000,000 117,377,356 179,521,793 28,053,416 6.40 1.53

2029 43,480,787 9,322,351 10,000,000 133,319,799 196,122,937 28,633,405 6.85 1.52

2030 43,328,896 9,322,351 10,000,000 149,500,379 212,151,626 27,345,951 7.76 1.58

2031 43,179,180 9,322,351 10,000,000 166,978,328 229,479,859 27,750,949 8.27 1.56

2032 41,721,588 9,322,351 10,000,000 184,076,342 245,120,281 25,366,123 9.66 1.64

2033 41,394,266 9,322,351 10,000,000 197,872,471 258,589,088 24,924,188 10.38 1.66

2034 41,420,930 9,322,351 10,000,000 216,321,274 277,064,555 24,997,802 11.08 1.66

2035 41,524,394 9,322,351 10,000,000 234,907,615 255,754,361 25,065,410 11.80 1.66

2036 41,524,354 9,322,351 10,000,000 253,715,675 314,562,421 21,233,677 14.81 1.596

2037 41,524,394 9,322,351 10,000,000 276,543,550 337,390,295 21,233,947 15.89 1.96

2038 41,524,394 9,322,351 10,000,000 299,599,433 360,446,178 21,242,082 16.97 1.95

2039 41,524,354 9,322,351 10,000,000 322,877,740 383,724,485 21,249,399 18.06 1.95

2040 41,524,394 9,322,351 10,000,000 346,381,513 407,228,258 21,250,350 18.16 1.95

2041 41,624,512 9,322,351 10,000,000 370,115,372 431,066,236 21,258,738 20.28 1.96

2042 41,624,512 5,322,351 10,000,000 394,186,341 455,133,204 21,258,731 21.41 1.96

2043 41,624,512 9,322,351 10,000,000 418,493,985 479,440,849 21,253,935 22.56 1.96

2034 41,624,512 9,322,351 10,000,000 443,049,502 503,996,366 21,277,623 23.68 1.96

2045 41,624,512 323451 10,000,000 467,826,886 528,773,750 21,295,223 2483 1.95

2046 41,624,512 5,322,351 10,000,000 492,834,444 553,781,308 19,542,453 28.34 2.13

2047 41,624,513 9,322,351 10,000,000 519,844,848 580,791,713 15,654,672 37.10 2.66

2048 41,624,514 9,322,351 10,000,000 551,013,138 611,960,004 4,950,834 123.61 8.41

2049 41,624,515 9,322,351 10,000,000 593,196,890 654,143,757 1,563,440 418.40 26.62

2050 41,624,516 9,322,351 10,000,000 639,189,934 700,136,802 781,720 895.64 53.25

4/20/2018
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West Harris County Regional Water Authority
Water Rate and Pumpage Fee Model

Series 2018 2019 2020
Construction from Bonds 59,342,559 14,145,673 14,208,886
Capitalized Interest 1,950,000 450,000 450,000
DSRF 3,057,441 254,327 191,114
Expenses 650,000 150,000 150,000
Rounding - - -
65,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Par 65,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Principal 29 29 29
Interest rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Year Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
2017
2018
2012 1,950,000
2020 3,387,454 450,000
2021 3,387,454 781,720 450,000
2022 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2023 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2024 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2025 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2026 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2027 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2028 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2029 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2030 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2031 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2032 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2033 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2034 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2035 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2036 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2037 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2038 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2032 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2040 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2041 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2042 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2043 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2044 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2045 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2046 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2047 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2048 3,387,454 781,720 781,720
2049 781,720 781,720
2050 781,720
2051
2052
2053
2054

2055



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION - FIVE YEARS

Amounts
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES
Pumpage Fees $ 32,059,687 § 28.036997 § 25227627 § 28098868 $ 26,674,006
Surface Water Sold 19,801,873 16,844,860 15.958.478 15,370,479 14,339,019
Joint Facilities Revenue 125,295 115,340 97,315 48.013 69,366
Other 18.536
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES § 52005391 $§ 44,997,197 § 41.283.420 §$ 43,517.360 § 41,082,391
OPERATING EXPENSES
Professional Fees $ 2712223 § 2857095 $ 2674548 $§ 3.648211 § 1,406,385
Contracted Services 844,839 652,781 7,625,159 616,728 583,099
Purchased Water Service 6,373,629 3,821,400 646,297 5,994,227 3.791.177
Utilities 533.677 498,221 533,122 445,740 462,669
Repairs and Maintenance 808.312 903.703 667.315 816,179 613.187
Depreciation/Amortization 5,369,677 5,226,934 6,747,093 6,472,044 6.115.,065
Other 659,835 802,428 683,522 651.786 636,492
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 17302192 § 14762562 § 19577.056 § 18644915 § 13,608,074
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 34,703,199 $ 30,234,635 § 21,706,364 § 24872445 § 27474317
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Revenues b 282,226 % 106,123  § 115,146 § 155,668 §% 506,885
Capital Contributions 37.151 (348.102) 899144
Professional Fees (1.845.302) (733.021)
Contracted Services (31.925)
Miscellaneous Revenues 18.356 100
Bond Issuance Costs (1.650.397) (1.528.514) (825.875) (684.865) (369.500)
Interest Expense (11,173.035) (10.319.403) (12,005.555) (12.044.063) (12.686.700)
Chloramine Conversion/Waterline
Connections (291.615) (267.875) (788,221) (64,374)
Joint Facilities WIF Contribution 1,095,839 1,095,839 1.095,843 1,095,877 473,343
City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt Service (49.546) (24,159)
Other (3.566) (20.747) (48.525)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES) $ (13.631,830) $(11.401.477) $ (11.890.707) $ (12,662,231) $ (11,241.102)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 21.071.369 § 18.833.158 § 9815657 § 12.210.214 § 16.233.215
BEGINNING NET POSITION 92.818.883 73.985.725 64.170,068 51.959.854 35.726.639
ENDING IN NET POSITION $ 113.890.252 § 92,818,883 § 73.985.725 § 64.170,068 $ 51,959.854

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Percent of Total Revenues

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
61.6% 62.3% 61.1% 64.6% 64.9%
38.1% 37.4% 38.7% 353% 34.9%

0.2% 0.3% 0.2% 0.1% 0.2%
0.1%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
52% 6.3% 6.5% 8.4% 3.4%
1.6% 1.5% 18.5% 1.4% 1.4%

12.3% 8.5% 1.6% 13.8% 9.2%
1.0% 1.1% 1.3% 1.0% 1.1%
1.6% 2.0% 1.6% 1.9% 1.5%

10.3% 11.6% 16.3% 14.9% 14.9%
1.3% 1.8% 1.7% 1.5% 1.6%

33.3% 32.8% 47.5% 42.9% 33.1%

66.7% 67.2% 52.5% 57.1% 66.9%
0.5% 0.2% 0.3% 0.4% 1.2%

0.1% -0.8% 2.2%
-3.5% -1.6%
-0.1%
0.0% 0.0%

-3.2% -3.4% -2.0% -1.6% -0.9%

-21.5% -22.9% -29.0% -27.7% -30.9%

-0.6% -0.6% -1.8% -0.2%
2.1% 2.4% 2.7% 2.5% 1.2%

-0.1% -0.1%

-0.1% -0.1%

-26.3% -25.4% -28.7% -29.1% -27.4%

40.4% 41.8% 23.8% 28.0% 39.5%
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Certified Public Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
West Harris County Regional
Water Authority
Harris and Fort Bend Counties, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of West Harris
County Regional Water Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and
the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making these risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants






Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information required by the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality as published in the Water District Financial Management
Guide is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The supplementary information, excluding that portion marked “Unaudited” on which we express no
opinion or provide any assurance, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Ml atl MWW\BW PrLe

McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

May 10, 2017






WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Management’s discussion and analysis of West Harris County Regional Water Authority’s (the
"Authority") financial performance provides an overview of the Authority's financial activities
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's
financial statements.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The basic financial statements
include: (1) Statement of Net Position, (2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position, (3) Statement of Cash Flows, and (4) notes to financial statements. This report
also includes required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority's annual report includes three financial statements. These financial statements
provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall status.
Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector
with its basis in full accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal activities.

The first of the financial statements is the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net
Position is the financial statement presenting information that includes all of the Authority's
assets, deferred outflows of financial resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of financial
resources with the residual reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority as a
whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the Authority would
extend to other non-financial factors.

The second financial statement is the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position. This financial statement reports how the Authority's net position changed during the
current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash
is received or paid.

The third financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Cash Flows
shows the inflows and outflows of cash that occurred during the current fiscal year.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying notes to financial statements provide information essential to a full
understanding of the financial statements.



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority's financial position. In
the case of the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$113,890,252 as of December 31, 2016. A portion of the Authority's net position reflects its
investment in capital assets less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The Authority uses these assets to provide water service to its participants. The following table
provides a summary of the Authority's net position at December 31, 2016, and December 31,

2015:

Summary of Changes in the Statement of Net Position

Change
Positive
2016 2015 (Negative)
Current and Other Assets 197,485,626 158,543,611 38,942,015
Capital Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation) 294,590,027 274,085,920 20,504,107
Total Assets 492,075,653 432,629,531 59,446,122
Long-Term Liabilities 341,809,583 308,020,079 (33,789,504)
Other Liabilities 20,502,516 14,870,316 (5,632,200)
Total Liabilities 362,312,099 322,890,395 (39,421,704)
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 15,873,302 16,920,253 1,046,951
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 54,449,426 24,670,445 29,778,981
Restricted 27,511,844 29,303,528 (1,791,684)
Unrestricted 31,928,982 38,844,910 (6,915,928)
Total Net Position 113,890,252 92,818,883 21,071,369




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

The following table provides a summary of the Authority's operations for the fiscal years
ending December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2015. The Authority's net position increased by
$21,071,369, resulting in a 22.70% growth in net position.

Operating Revenues
Pumpage Fees
Surface Water Sold
Joint Facilities Revenue
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Revenues
Capital Contributions
Professional Fees
Contracted Services
Bond Issuance Costs
Interest Expense
Chloramine Conversion/
Waterline Connections
Joint Facilities WIF Contribution
City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt
Other
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

Summary of Changes in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Position

Change

. Positive

2016 2015 (Negative)
$ 32,059,687 $ 28,036,997 $ 4,022,690
19,801,873 16,844,860 2,957,013
125,295 115,340 9,955
18,536 18,536
$ 52,005,391 $ 44 997,197 $ 7,008,194
17,302,192 14,762,562 2,539,630
$ 34,703,199 $ 30,234,635 $ 4,468,564
$ 282,226 $ 106,123 $ 176,103
37,151 (37,151)
(1,845,302) (733,021) (1,112,281)
(31,925) 31,925
(1,650,397) (1,528,514) (121,883)
(11,173,035) (10,319,405) (853,630)
(291,615) (291,615)

1,095,839 1,095,839

(49,546) (24,159) (25,387)
(3,566) 3,566
$ (13,631,830) $ (11,401,477) $ (2,230,353)
$ 21,071,369 $ 18,833,158 $ 2,238,211
92,818,883 73,985,725 18,833,158
$ 113,890,252 $ 92,818,883 $ 21,071,369




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Authority's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2016, is $294,590,027 (net of
accumulated depreciation/amortization). This investment in capital assets includes land,
easements, water distribution facilities and capital contributions to the City of Houston.
Significant capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Land Additions:
e Land easements

Construction in Progress:

e Contract 33

» Contract 33A

e Contract 33B

» Contract 34

o SWSP Segment A

e SWSP Segment B

«  SWSP Segment C

e Pump Station

Total Construction in Progress

5,422,659

849,021
2,523,200
1,400
6,435,806
2,330,700
2,891,797
2,188,166
1,158,456

$

18,378,546

Capital Assets at Year-End Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization

Net
Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease)
Capital Assets Not Subject to
Depreciation/Amortization:
Land and Easements $ 40,399,927 35,044,466 $ 5,355,461
Construction in Progress 18,378,546 4,843,828 13,534,718
Capital Assets Subject to
Depreciation/Amortization
Water Distribution System 149,535,229 148,345,698 1,189,531
Capital Contributions - City of
Houston 79,467,012 78,481,427 985,585
Interest in Joint Facilities 6,809,313 7,370,501 (561,188)
Total Net Capital Assets $ 294,590,027 274,085,920 $ 20,504,107

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 6.



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had total long-term debt payable of

$331,645,000. The change in the long-term debt position of the Authority during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2016, is summarized as follows:

Bond Debt Payable - January 1, 2016 $ 293,145,000
Add: Debt Issuance 70,475,000
Less: Debt Defeased 21,010,000
Less: Principal Retirement 10,965,000
Bond Debt Payable - December 31, 2016 | $ 331,645,000

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2007, Series 2014, and Series 2015A Bonds
(collectively the “Insured Bonds™), the Authority obtained bond insurance from various bond
insurers. The Authority did not obtain bond insurance in connection with its Series 2009, Series
2012, Series 2013, Series 2015 Bonds, Series 2016 and Series 2016A Bonds. Independent of
bond insurance, the Authority’s Bonds have underlying ratings of “A+”, “A1”, and “AA-" from
Fitch, Moody’s Investor Service, and Standard & Poor’s, respectively. The bond insurers of the
Insured Bonds carry higher or lower ratings than the above-described ratings.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority owed participants $8,367,469 for capital
contribution credits. See Note 7 for additional information.

The changes in the amount due to participants by the Authority during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Due to Participants - January 1, 2016 $ 8,763,968
Less: Capital Contribution Credits Applied in the Current Fiscal Year 396,499
Due to Participants - December 31, 2016 $ 8,367,469




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to West Harris County Regional Water Authority, c/o Allen
Boone Humphries Robinson, LLP, 3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600, Houston, TX 77027.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Joint Facilities Receivable
Accrued Interest Receivable
Due From City of Houston
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Cash
Restricted Investments
Construction Advances
Water Conservation Credits
Unamortized Bond Insurance
Joint Facilities WIF Receivable
Capital Assets:
Land and Easements
Construction in Progress
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation/Amortization)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable-Capital
Retainage Payable-Capital
Other Payables
Accrued Bond Interest Payable
Joint Facilities Operating Reserve
Due to Participants
Due to Other Authority
Bonds Payable, Due Within One Year
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Due to Participants

Bonds Payable, Due After One Year
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes to financial

statements are an integral part of this report.
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$

1,401,355
25,788,888
5,603,999
9,144
9,245
229,715
24,763

33,067,109

62,023,038
84,767,188
865,485
1,853,488
170,893
14,738,425

40,399,927
18,378,546

235,811,554

459,008,544

492,075,653

1,332,932
1,504,417
228,093
54,677
670,379
8,585
414,752
933,681
15,355,000

20,502,516

7,952,717
333,856,866

&

341,809,583

©“°

362,312,099




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2016

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Joint Facilities WIF Revenues $ 14,738,425
Deferred Difference on Refunding Bonds 1,134,877
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 15,873,302
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 54,449,426
Restricted for Debt Service:
Coverage Fund 7,505,063
Reserve Fund 7,862,202
Junior Lien Reserve Fund 2,505,779
Capitalized Interest 1,429,748
Junior Lien Capitalized Interest 943,166
Debt Service 1,444,372
Junior Lien Debt Service 81,560
Restricted for Water Conservation Credits 1,853,488
Restricted for Operations and Maintenance 1,541,922
Restricted for Joint Facilities ' 1,294,545
Restricted for Letter of Credit 1,000,000
Restricted for Mitigation 50,000
Unrestricted 31,928,981
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 113,890,252
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION $ 492,075,653

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of this report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Pumpage Fees $ 32,059,687
Surface Water Sold 19,801,873
Joint Facilities Revenue 125,295
Other 18,536
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 52,005,391
OPERATING EXPENSES
Professional Fees $ 2,712,223
Contracted Services 844,839
Purchased Water Service 6,373,629
Utilities 533,677
Repairs and Maintenance 808,312
Depreciation/Amortization 5,369,677
Other 659,835
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 17,302,192
OPERATING INCOME $ 34,703,199
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Revenues 282,226
Professional Fees (1,845,302)
Bond Issuance Costs (1,650,397)
Interest Expense (11,173,035)
Chloramine Conversion/Waterline Connections (291,615)
Joint Facilities WIF Contribution 1,095,839
City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt Service (49,546)

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION-JANUARY 1, 2016
NET POSITION-DECEMBER 31, 2016

$  (13,631,830)

$ 21,071,369

92,818,883

$ 113,890,252

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of this report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Participants $ 50,533,279
Cash Payments for Goods and Services (9,440,738)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 41,092,541
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from Sale of Bonds $ 72,255,801
Payment to Escrow Agent for Defeasance of Bonds (22,379,635)
Bond Principal Payment (10,965,000)
Payment of Bond Interest ‘ : (11,463,326)
Payment of Bond Issuance Costs (1,650,397)
Payment of Luce Bayou Interest (49,546)
Payments for Capital Assets (23,196,290)
Received from NFBWA - Debt Service 1,095,839
Capital Contribution to City of Houston (1,721,148)
Chloramine conversion reimbursement (291,615)
Other Receipts/Expenses ' (1,845,302)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED $ (210,619)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of Interest $ 280,464
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ 280,464
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $§ 41,162,386
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-JANUARY 1, 2016 $ 132,818,083
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-DECEMBER 31, 2016 $ 173,980,469
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 34,703,199
Depreciation/Amortization 5,369,677
Less Capital Contribution Credits Taken (396,499)
(Increase) Decrease in Pumpage Fees Receivable (1,073,406)
(Increase) Decrease in Joint Facilities Receivable (2,207)
(Increase) Decrease in Water Conservation Credits 14,012
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 283,868
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Governments 1,963,766
(Increase) Decrease in Other Receivables 50
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 230,081
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES § 41,092,541
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PER STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Cash $ 1,401,355
Restricted cash 62,023,038
Investments 25,788,888
Restricted investments 84,767,188
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 173,980,469

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of this report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

NOTE 1. CREATION OF AUTHORITY

The West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the "Authority") was created under Article
16, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution by House Bill 1842, as passed by the seventy-seventh
(77th) Texas Legislature in 2001, and amended thereafter (the "Act"). The Act empowers the
Authority for purposes including the acquisition and provision of surface water and
groundwater for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, and other uses; the reduction
of groundwater withdrawals; the conservation, preservation, protection, recharge, and
prevention of waste of groundwater, and of groundwater reservoirs or their subdivisions; and
the control of subsidence caused by withdrawal of water from those groundwater reservoirs or
their subdivisions.

A nine-member board of directors governs the Authority. The directors serve staggered four
year terms. Each director must qualify to serve as director in the manner provided by Section
49.055 of the Water Code and must meet certain other requirements set forth in the Act.

The Authority charges a fee, based on the amount of water pumped from the well, to the owner
of wells located within the boundaries of the Authority, unless exempted, and to certain owners
of wells located outside the Authority that have contracted with the Authority to be part of the
Authority's Groundwater Reduction Plan. The Authority also charges a surface water fee for
water sold by the Authority. These fees enable the Authority to fulfill its purposes and
regulatory functions, as set forth in the Act.

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). In addition, the accounting records of
the Authority are maintained generally in accordance with the Water District Financial
Management Guide published by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (the
"Commission").

The Authority is a political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by a board that is
appointed by the water districts and municipalities within the Authority. GASB has established
the criteria for determining whether or not an entity is a primary government or a component
unit of a primary government. The primary criteria are that it has a separately elected governing
body, it is legally separate, and it is fiscally independent of other state and local governments.
Under these criteria, the Authority is considered a primary government and is not a component
unit of any other government. Additionally, no other entities meet the criteria for inclusion in
the Authority’s financial statement as component units.

-15-



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
NOTE2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Statement Presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards Part II. Financial Reporting.

GASB Codification sets forth standards for external financial reporting for all state and local
government entities, which include a requirement for a Statement of Net Position and a
Statement of Activities. It requires the classification of net position into three components: Net
Investment in Capital Assets; Restricted; and Unrestricted. These classifications are defined as
follows:

» Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.

» Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of external constraints
placed on the use of assets imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation of other governments or constraints imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

» Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of assets that do not
meet the definition of "Restricted" or "Net Investment in Capital Assets." Included in the
Authority’s unrestricted net assets of $31,928,981 is $16,638,551, which the Authority has
deposited into separate bank/investment accounts and has designated as the Improvement
Fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the
Authority's policy to use restricted resources first.

The Authority follows proprietary fund accounting and reporting requirements, which utilize
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
measurement focus is upon determination of net revenue, financial position, and changes in
cash flows. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from providing services and
delivering goods in connection with the Authority’s primary activities. The Authority’s primary
source of revenue is pumpage fees and surface water fees. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are considered non-operating revenues and expenses.
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NOTE 2. @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets

All capital assets, including infrastructure capital assets, are recorded at historical cost. Capital
assets (except land, easements and construction in progress) are depreciated or amortized using
the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Capital Asset Category Estimated Life
Water Distribution System 45 years
Interest in Joint Facilities 45 years
Capital Contributions 35-40 years

See Note 6 for additional disclosure.

Interest costs on assets acquired with tax-exempt borrowings are capitalized, net of interest
earned on related interest-bearing investments acquired with proceeds of the related
borrowings, from the date of borrowing until the assets are ready for their intended use. During
the current fiscal year, the Authority incurred interest costs of $11,173,035 on construction
related borrowings.

Pension
The Authority has not established a pension plan as the Authority does not have employees.
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that fees of office received by Directors are

considered to be wages subject to federal income tax withholding for payroll purposes only.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all amounts in checking accounts, money market accounts, savings
accounts, mutual funds, external investment pools and all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of ninety days or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. Certificates of
deposit are included in cash and cash equivalents regardless of their maturity date. The carrying
value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturities of
these financial instruments. See Note 5 for additional disclosure.

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments made by the Authority reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as a prepaid expense on the Authority’s Statement of Net Position.

Budgeting

In compliance with Commission requirements, the Board of Directors annually adopts a budget
for the Authority. The budget is then amended during the current fiscal year if need be.
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DECEMBER 31, 2016
NOTE2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 3. BONDS PAYABLE

Water System
Revenue Water System
Water System  Water System Water System Refunding Revenue
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds  Bonds Series  Refunding Bonds
Series 2007 Series 2009 Series 2012 2013 Series 2014

Amount Outstanding -
December 31, 2016 $22,195,000 $ 52,260,000 $ 32,825,000 $ 35,860,000 $ 40,370,000

Interest Rates 4.00%-5.00% 4.00%-5.00% 0.00%-1.86% 3.00%-5.00% 2.00%-5.00%
Maturity Dates:
Beginning - Ending December 15, December 15, December 15, December 15, December 15,
’ 2017-2025 2017-2019, 2017-2031 2017-2024 2017-2022,
2021-2029, 2024-2025,
2035 2027-2029
Interest Payment Dates June 15/ June 15/ June 15/ June 15/ June 15/
December 15 December 15 December 15 December 15 December 15
Callable Dates December 15, December 15, December 15, December 15, December 15,
2017* 2019* 2022* 2021% 2023*
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NOTE 3.

Amount Outstanding -
December 31, 2016

Interest Rates

Maturity Dates:
Beginning - Ending

Interest Payment Dates

Callable Dates

DECEMBER 31, 2016

BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

Water System
Revenue and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Water System

Water System Revenue Junior Lien Water System
Junior Lien Refunding Revenue Revenue
Revenue Bonds Bonds Series Bonds Series Bonds Series

Series 2015 2015A 2016 2016A
$ 17,940,000 $ 59,720,000 $ 37,960,000 $32,515,000

0.38% - 2.41%

December 15,
2017-2035

June 15/
December 15

December 15,
2025*

3.250% - 5.00%

December 15,
2017-2035,
2039, 2045

June 15/
December 15

December 15,
2025*

0.65% - 3.04%

December 15,
2018-2046

June 15/
December 15

December 15,
2026%*

4.00% - 5.00%

December 15,
2020-2036,
2041, 2046

June 15/
December 15

December 15,
2025%*

*Or any date thereafter, callable at par plus unpaid accrued interest in whole or in part at the
option of the Authority. Series 2009 term bonds maturing December 15, 2021, and December
15, 2035, are subject to mandatory redemption beginning December 15, 2020, and December
15, 2030, respectively. Series 2015A term bonds maturing December 15, 2039 and December
15, 2045 are subject to mandatory redemption beginning December 15, 2036 and December 15,
2040, respectively. Series 2016A term bonds maturing December 15, 2041 and December 15,
2046 are subject to mandatory redemption beginning December 15, 2037 and December 15,
2042, respectively.

During 2015, the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) made a commitment to the
Authority for financial assistance in the amount of $812,140,000 from the State Water
Implementation Revenue Fund. The TWDB proposes to purchase water system junior lien
revenue bonds from the Authority each year from 2015 through 2025. The proceeds are
proposed to be used for the Northeast Water Purification Plant Expansion in the amount of
$306,200,000, the Surface Water Supply Project in the amount of $325,440,000, and internal
transmission lines in the amount of $180,500,000.

On October 27, 2016, the Authority sold $37,960,000 Series 2016 Water System Junior Lien
Revenue Bonds at a net effective interest rate of 2.557636% to the TWDB. Proceeds of the
bonds will be used to 1) fund the realty interest acquisition, engineering, environmental work,
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NOTE 3. BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

and construction and acquisition for System improvements and capacity, including, (a) storage,
pumping and transmission facilities to transport and convey water along some or all of the
distance from the Northeast Water Purification Plant (“NEWPP”) to areas near, in and through
the Authority’s boundaries (“Surface Water Supply Project”), (b) storage, pumping and
transmission facilities to transport and convey water to Authority water customers, and (c)
payments due to the City for expansion of the NEWPP; 2) fund the Junior Lien Reserve
Fund Requirement attributable to the Series 2016 Bonds; and 3) fund capitalized interest and
pay for the costs of issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds.

On November 22, 2016, the Authority executed a cash defeasance of $21,010,000 of
outstanding Series 2007 Water System Revenue Bonds. Since these bonds were not yet subject
to redemption, the Authority placed $22,378,135 in an escrow account with an escrow agent
and irrevocably pledged the funds for the payment of debt service payments through December
15, 2017, the redemption date of the bonds. As a result, such portion of the Series 2007 bonds
are considered defeased and the liability for the defeased bonds has been removed from the
Authority’s Statement of Financial Position. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding
principal of defeased bonds is $21,010,000.

On December 22, 2016, the Authority issued its $32,515,000 Series 2016A. Water System
Revenue Bonds at a net effective interest rate of 4.076992%. The proceeds of the Bonds will be
used to 1) fund certain payments due to the City of Houston, Texas under a Water Supply
Contract between the Authority and the City, as amended and supplemented; 2) fund costs of
design, construction and acquisition of System improvements and capacity and acquisition of
realty interests for the System; 3) fund the purchase of the Series 2016A Debt Service Reserve
Fund Surety Policy; and 4) fund capitalized interest and pay for the costs of issuance of the
Series 2016A Bonds.

The following is a summary of transactions regarding bonds payable for the year ended
December 31, 2016:.

January 1 December 31
2016 Additions Retirements 2016
Bond Debt Payable $ 293,145,000 $ - - $ 293,145,000
Bonds Issued 70,475,000 70,475,000
Bonds Defeased . 21,010,000 21,010,000
Unamortized Premiums 17,472,610 1,266,130 1,171,874 17,566,366
Principal Retirement 10,965,000 10,965,000
Bonds Payable, Net $ 310,617,610 $ 71,741,130 $ 33,146,874 $ 349,211,866

Due Within One Year 3 15,355,000
Due After One Year 333,856,866
Bonds Payable, Net $ 349,211,866
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DECEMBER 31, 2016
NOTE 3. BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)
As of December 31, 2016, the debt service requirements on the bonds outstanding were as
follows:
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 15,355,000 12,501,635 27,856,635
2018 16,880,000 11,941,374 28,821,374
2019 17,985,000 11,415,986 29,400,986
2020 19,245,000 10,770,453 30,015,453
2021 19,940,000 10,079,911 30,019,911
2022-2026 86,590,000 39,170,146 125,760,146
2027-2031 72,075,000 23,315,050 95,390,050
2032-2036 37,700,000 12,486,006 50,186,006
2037-2041 21,730,000 6,776,698 28,506,698
2042-2046 24,145,000 2,579,656 26,724,656
$ 331,645,000 $ 141,036,915 $ 472,681,915
NOTE 4. INDENTURE OF TRUST AGREEMENT

The Authority entered into the Indenture of Trust Agreement dated as of August 1, 2003; the
First Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2003; the Second Supplemental
Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2005; the Third Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated
as of August 1, 2006; the Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of October 1, 2007,
the Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated September 1, 2009; the Sixth Supplemental
Indenture of Trust dated March 1, 2012; the Seventh Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated
June 1, 2013; the Eighth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated September 1, 2014; the Ninth
Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated November 1, 2015; the Tenth Supplemental Indenture
of Trust dated December 1, 2015; the Eleventh Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated October
1, 2016; and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated December 1, 2016
(collectively, the "Agreement"). Effective November 2, 2005, Regions Bank became the
Trustee under the Agreement. The Agreement was entered into with the Trustee for the purpose
of establishing various funds and assigning and pledging the monies held by Trustee to secure
the payment of principal and interest on the bonds and payments of certain obligations. The
Trustee is responsible for allocating certain available monies of the Authority in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement. The following are certain requirements and provisions of the
Agreement:

A. The Authority is required to maintain a Coverage Fund. The Coverage Fund
requirement (1) for Parity Bonds, Parity Notes, and Parity Obligations is twenty-five
percent (25%) of their maximum annual debt service requirements, and (2) for Junior
Lien Bonds, Junior Lien Notes, and Junior Lien Obligations is twenty-five percent
(25%) of their maximum annual debt service requirements. The maximum annual
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NOTE 4. INDENTURE OF TRUST AGREEMENT (Continued)

debt service requirement for Parity Bonds is currently $27,015,188, with 25% being
$6,753,797. The maximum annual debt service requirement for Junior Lien Bonds is
currently $3,015,898, with 25% being $753,975. As of December 31, 2016, funds of
$7,505,063 are invested in a money market mutual fund at the Trustee. Subsequent to
year end, $2,709 was deposited to the Coverage Fund to bring the balance to
$7,507,772.

B. The Agreement calls for the establishment of a Reserve Fund Requirement which for
Parity Bonds and Parity Notes is the lesser of (i) the maximum annual debt service
requirements or (ii) 125% of the average annual aggregate debt service requirements on
the Parity Bonds and Parity Notes, calculated as of the date of issuance of each series.
The Reserve Fund Requirement is established and stipulated to be $16,813,162. The
Reserve Fund Requirement will be satisfied by (1) debt service reserve fund surety
policies as follows: the Series 2007 Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Policy in the
amount of $3,100,600, the Series 2014 Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Policy in the
amount of $4,400,100, the Series 2016A Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Policy in
the amount of $1,527,453; and (2) a cash deposit of $7,785,009 comprised of previous
deposits from the proceeds of Parity Bonds issued heretofore and a previous deposit
from the Improvement Fund. As of December 31, 2016, the Debt Service Reserve Cash
Balance was $7,862,202.

C. The Agreement calls for the establishment of a Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement,
which for Junior Lien Bonds and Junior Lien Notes, is the average annual aggregate
debt service requirements on the Junior Lien Bonds and Junior Lien Notes, calculated as
of the date of issuance of each series. Upon issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds, the
amount of the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement is established to be $2,505,637.
The Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement was satisfied by a deposit of $1,137,281
from proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds and a deposit of $1,368,356 from proceeds of
the Series 2016 Bonds. As of December 31, 2016, the Junior Lien Reserve Fund cash
balance was $2,505,779.

D. In connection with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-
12, the Authority provides continuing disclosure of certain financial information and
operating data to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”™) via the
Electronic Municipal Market Access system established by MSRB. This information,
along with the audited annual financial statements, is to be provided within six months
after the end of each fiscal year.

E. The Authority has covenanted that it will take all necessary steps to comply with the
requirement that rebatable arbitrage earnings on the investment of the gross proceeds of
the bonds, within the meaning of section 148 (f) of the Internal Revenue Code, be
rebated to the federal government. The minimum requirement for determination of the
rebatable amount is on the 5th year anniversary of each issue.
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NOTESS. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits (i.e., cash and certificates of
deposit) or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Authority's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with
the provisions of Texas statutes.

Texas statutes require that any cash balance in any fund shall, to the extent not insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor, be continuously secured by a valid
pledge to the Authority of securities eligible under the laws of Texas to secure the funds of the
Authority, having an aggregate market value, including accrued interest, at all times equal to
the uninsured cash balance in the fund to which such securities are pledged. At fiscal year end,
the carrying amount of the Authority's deposits was $64,678,940 and the bank balance was
$65,618,406. Of the bank balance, $1,245,000 was covered by federal depository insurance,
and $64,373,406 was covered by collateral pledged in the name of the Authority and held in a
third-party depository, or letters of credit payable to the Authority.

The carrying values of the deposits at December 31, 2016, are as listed below:

Unrestricted:

Cash $ 1,401,355

Certificates of Deposit 1,254,547
Restricted:

Money Market Accounts 62,023,038
TOTAL DEPOSITS $ 64,678,940

For financial statement reporting purposes, the Authority's investments in certificates of deposit
are classified with investments on the Statement of Net Position.

Investments

Under Texas law, the Authority is required to invest its funds under written investment policies
that primarily emphasize safety of principal and liquidity and that address investment
diversification, yield, maturity, and the quality and capability of investment management, and
all Authority funds must be invested in accordance with the following investment objectives:
understanding the suitability of the investment to the Authority's financial requirements, first
preservation and safety of principal, second; liquidity, third; marketability of the investments if
the need arises to liquidate the investment before maturity, fourth; diversification of the
investment portfolio, fifth; and yield, sixth. The Authority's investments must be made "with
judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion, and
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NOTE 5. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

intelligence would exercise in the management of the person's own affairs, not for speculation,
but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be
derived." No person may invest Authority funds without express written authority from the
Board of Directors.

Texas statutes include specifications for and limitations applicable to the Authority and its
authority to purchase investments as defined in the Public Funds Investment Act. Authorized
investments are summarized as follows: (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities, (3) certain collateralized mortgage obligations, (4) other obligations, the
principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of
Texas or the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations that are
fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by the explicit full
faith and credit of the United States (5) certain A rated or higher obligations of states, agencies,
counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state, (6) bonds issued, assumed or
guaranteed by the State of Israel, (7) insured or collateralized certificates of deposit, (8) certain
fully collateralized repurchase agreements secured by delivery, (9) certain bankers' acceptances
with limitations, (10) commercial paper rated A-1 or P-I or higher and a maturity of 270 days or
less, (11) no-load money market mutual funds and no-load mutual funds with limitations, (12)
certain guaranteed investment contracts, (13) certain qualified governmental investment pools
and (14) a qualified securities lending program.

The Authority’s investment policy is more restrictive than the Public Funds Investment Act. In
accordance with the Authority’s adopted investment policy, the Authority may invest in any of
the above investment items except (3), (6), (8), (9), (10), (12) and (14). The Authority was in
compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act.

The Authority participates in Texas Short Term Asset Reserve fund (TexSTAR) which is
managed by First Southwest, a division of Hilltop Securities, Inc., and J.P. Morgan Investment
Management, Inc. First Southwest provides participant and marketing services while J.P.

Morgan provides investment management services. Custodial and depository services are
provided by J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A. or its subsidiary.

Investments held by TexSTAR are valued using fair value. TexSTAR seeks to maintain a
constant dollar value per share. Accordingly, the fair value of the Authority’s position in
TexSTAR is the same as the value of TexSTAR shares. The Authority implemented GASB
Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Application,” during the current fiscal year.
This statement establishes a hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value as follows: Level 1
inputs are based on quoted prices in active markets, Level 2 inputs are based on significant
other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are based on significant unobservable inputs. The
Authority’s investment in TexSTAR is measured using Level 1 inputs.
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NOTE 5. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments in TexSTAR may be withdrawn via wire transfer on a same day basis, as long as
the transaction is executed by 4 p.m. ACH withdrawals made by 4 p.m. will settle on the next
business day.

As of December 31, 2016, the Authority had the following investments and maturities:

Maturities in Years

Fund and Less Than
Investment Type Fair Values 1 I-5 6-10
TexSTAR
Restricted - Operations and Maintenance $ 1,541,922 § 1,541,922  § - $ -
Restricted - Mitigation 50,238 50,238
Restricted - Construction 60,732,758 60,732,758
Unrestricted - Improvement Fund 15,797,875 15,797,875
Unrestricted - Operations and Maintenance 8,736,467 8,736,467

Money Market Mutual Funds
Restricted Debt Service 22,442,269 22,442,269

Certificates of Deposits

Unrestricted - Operations and Maintenance 245,000 245,000
Unrestricted - Operations and Maintenance 1,009,547 1,009,547
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 110,556,076 $ 110,556,076 § -0- $ -0-

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. At December 31, 2016, the Authority’s investments in TexSTAR and money
market mutual funds were rated “AAAm” by Standard & Poor’s.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The Authority considers the investments in TexSTAR and the money market
mutual funds to have a maturity of less than one (1) year due to the fact the share positions can
usually be redeemed each day at the discretion of the Authority, unless there has been a
significant change in value. '

The Authority's investment policies do not address investment credit and interest rate risk
beyond the rating and maturity restrictions established by state statutes.
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NOTE 6.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated/Amortized

Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being

Capital Assets Subject to
Depreciated/Amortization

Capital Contributions - City of

Capital Contributions - City of

Houston - Luce Bayou

Capital Contributions - City of
Houston - NETL
Interest in Joint Facilities -

Bellaire Pump Station

Total Capital Assets Subject to

Historical Cost

Less Accumulated
Depreciated/Amortization

Capital Contributions - City of

Capital Contributions - City of

Houston - Luce Bayou
Capital Contributions - City of
Houston - NETL
Interest in Joint Facilities

Bellaire Pump Station

Total Accumulated

Total Depreciable Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated

Depreciated/Amortization

Total Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation/

January 1, December 31,

2016 Increases Decreases 2016
Land and Easements $ 35,044,466 $ 5,422,659 $ 67,198 $ 40,399,927
4,843,828 17,215,056 3,680,338 18,378,546
Depreciated/Amortized $ 39888294 $§ 22,637,715 $ 3,747,536 $ 58,778,473
Water Distribution System $ 172,046,913 $ 5,224,645  $ 101,953 $ 177,169,605
Houston - Existing Facilities 103,582,126 1,721,148 105,303,274
2,080,670 2,080,670
525,821 525,821
7,881,022 386,055 7,494,967
$ 285,590,731 $ 7,471,614  § 488,008 $ 292,574,337
Water Distribution System $ 23,701,215 $ 3,933,161 §$ - $ 27,634,376
26,820,811 1,226,289 28,047,100

Houston - Existing Facilities

360,558 29,023 2,144 387,437
8,216 8216
510,521 175,133 685,654
Depreciated/Amortization $ 51,393,105 $ 5,371,822  $ 2,144 $ 56,762,783
$ 234,197,626 $ 2,099,792 § 485,864 $ 235,811,554
$ 274,085,920 $ 24,737,507 $ 4233400 $ 294,590,027

Amortization
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NOTE 7. WATER TRUNKLINE FINANCING AGREEMENT/RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING CAPITAL ADVANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT
PROCEDURE

On May 6, 2002, as amended on August 14, 2002, and March 1, 2004, the Authority entered
into the Water Trunkline Financing Agreement ("Trunkline Agreement") with Harris County
Municipal Utility District No. 130, Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 162, Harris
County Municipal Utility District No. 163, Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 179,
Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 186, Harris County Municipal Utility District No.
188, Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 208 and Spencer Road Public Utility District
(the "Copperfield Districts"). The Copperfield Districts, except No. 130, are referred to herein
as the "Participating Copperfield Districts."

Pursuant to the Trunkline Agreement, the Participating Copperfield Districts funded a portion
of the costs to design and construct the water distribution trunkline system to deliver water
purchased by the Authority from the City of Houston to the Participating Copperfield Districts
and other areas. The Authority funded the remainder of the costs to design and construct the
trunkline and constructed the trunkline for ownership, operation and maintenance by the
Authority as part of its regional surface water distribution system.

Through June 1, 2003, the Participating Copperfield Districts advanced $5,686,664 to the
Authority in accordance with the Trunkline Agreement. With the addition of an interest
component and an issuance cost component, the total principal amount of the reimbursement
credits to be received by the Participating Copperfield Districts in accordance with the
Trunkline Agreement is $5,788,688. Beginning on June 1, 2003, the Authority initiated the
monthly reimbursement credits to each Participating Copperfield District. The reimbursement
credits, which include interest, will be provided in 307 equal monthly credits to be applied
against all fees, rates and charges due to the Authority for groundwater pumpage and/or surface
water purchased. The monthly reimbursement credit received by the Participating Copperfield
Districts is $31,940.

In addition to the Trunkline Agreement, the Authority has adopted a Resolution Authorizing
Capital Advance and Reimbursement Procedure (collectively, the "Resolution™) prior to certain
bond issues. The Authority has adopted the Resolution pursuant to Section 4.04 of the Act to
provide each district and municipality within its boundaries the opportunity to fund its share of
certain capital costs of the Authority's system and to provide a mechanism for the
reimbursement credit thereof. During 2005, and pursuant to the Resolution, the Authority
received capital contributions from Mayde Creek Municipal Utility District, West Harris
County Municipal Utility District No. 2 and West Park Municipal Utility District in the amount
of $2,148,762. With the addition of an issuance cost component, the total principal amount of
the reimbursement credit to be received by these three districts is $2,168,282. The
reimbursement credits, which include interest, to these three districts will be provided in 306
equal monthly credits to be applied against all fees, rates and charges due to the Authority for
groundwater pumpage and/or surface water purchased. The monthly reimbursement credit
received by these three districts for this capital contribution is $12,206.
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AUTHORIZING CAPITAL ADVANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT
PROCEDURE (Continued) '

During 2007, and pursuant to the Resolution, the Authority received capital contributions from
Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 61 and West Park Municipal District in the
amount of $647,465. With the addition of an issuance cost component, the total principal
amount of the reimbursement credit to be received by these two districts is $664,475. The
reimbursement credits, which include interest, to these two districts will be provided in 306
equal monthly credits to be applied against all fees, rates and charges due to the Authority for
groundwater pumpage and/or surface water purchased. The monthly reimbursement credit
received by these two districts for this capital contribution is $3,707.

During 2008, and pursuant to the Resolution, the Authority received a capital contribution from
West Park Municipal District in the amount of $392,628. With the addition of an issuance cost
component, the total principal amount of the reimbursement credit to be received by this one
district is $396,454. The reimbursement credit, which includes interest, to this one district will
be provided in 310 equal monthly credits to be applied against all fees, rates and charges due to
the Authority for groundwater pumpage and/or surface water purchased. The monthly
reimbursement credit received by this one district for this capital contribution is $2,222.

During 2010, and pursuant to the Resolution, the Authority received capital contributions from
Mayde Creek Municipal Utility District and West Park Municipal District in the amount of
$1,343,665. With the addition of an issuance cost component, the total principal amount of the
reimbursement credit to be received by these two districts is $1,359,219. The reimbursement
credits, which include interest, to these two districts will be provided in 310 equal monthly
credits to be applied against all fees, rates and charges due to the Authority for groundwater
pumpage and/or surface water purchased. The monthly reimbursement credit received by these
two districts for this capital contribution is $7,479.

During 2015, and pursuant to the Resolution, the Authority received capital contributions from
Memorial Municipal Utility District and West Park Municipal District in the amount of
$1,411,356. With the addition of an issuance cost component, the total principal amount of the
reimbursement credit to be received by these two districts is $1,428,292. The reimbursement
credits, which include interest, to these two districts will be provided in 300 equal monthly
credits to be applied against all fees, rates and charges due to the Authority for groundwater
pumpage and/or surface water purchased. The monthly reimbursement credit received by these
two districts for this capital contribution is $7,264.
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NOTE 7. WATER TRUNKLINE FINANCING AGREEMENT/RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING CAPITAL ADVANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT
PROCEDURE (Continued)

During the current fiscal year, the interest cost on all the contribution credits was $381,297.
The following is a schedule of the credits and interest to be given by the Authority.

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 414,752 $ 363,044 $ 777,796
2018 433,849 343,947 777,796
2019 453,829 323,967 777,796
2020 474,732 303,064 777,796
2021 496,603 281,193 777,796

2022-2026 2,848,158 1,040,822 3,888,980

2027-2031 2,176,360 404,102 2,580,462

2032-2036 745,173 125,332 870,505

2037-2040 324,013 24,659 348,672

$ 8367469 $ 3,210,130 $§ 11,577,599
Payable Within
One Year $ 414,752 $ 363,044 $ 777,796
Payable After
One Year $ 7,952,717 $ 2847086 $ 10,799,803

The changes in the amount due to participants by the Authority during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Due to Other Governmental Units-January 1, 2016 $ 8,763,968
Less: Capital Contribution Credits Applied in the Current Fiscal Year 396,499
Due to Other Governmental Units-December 31, 2016 $ 8,367,469

NOTE 8. GROUNDWATER REDUCTION PLAN PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

On April 30, 2002, the Authority entered into Groundwater Reduction Plan Participation
Agreements (“GRPPA”) with Trail of the Lakes Municipal Utility District, Harris County
Municipal Utility District No. 46, Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 106, Harris
County Municipal Utility District No. 132, Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 151,
Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 152, Harris County Municipal Utility District No.
180, Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 290, and Harris County Municipal Utility
District No. 292 (the "GRPPA Districts"). The GRPPA Districts are located outside the
Authority's boundaries. The Authority agreed to include the GRPPA Districts into the
Authority’s groundwater reduction plan as non-voting members, and the GRPPA Districts
agreed to pay the Authority the monthly groundwater pumpage fee, and if the Authority
delivers surface water to them, the monthly surface water fee.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
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NOTE 9. WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF HOUSTON

On April 8, 2003, the Authority entered into a Water Supply Contract (the "Contract") with the
City of Houston (the “City”). Under the Contract, the Authority purchases potable treated
surface water from the City for distribution and use for domestic, commercial and other
purposes. The City is responsible for the design, construction, ownership, maintenance and
operation of the Untreated Water Facilities and the Treated Water Facilities upstream from the
point(s) of delivery. The Authority is responsible for the design, construction, ownership,
maintenance and operation of all facilities downstream of the point(s) of delivery. The City will
make available to the Authority at the point(s) of delivery the amount of water that equals the
Water Demand Allocation, which is currently 28.25 million gallons per day ("mgd").

In 2003, the Authority paid $51,440,991 for the Treated Water Facilities Capital Contribution
for the initial 18.25 mgd Treated Water Facilities Demand Allocation. In addition, prior to
December 31, 2009, the Authority paid the City $12,833,590 for the Untreated Water Facilities
Demand Allocation for its initial 18.25 mgd.

The Authority may submit a reservation request to the City for an increase in its Water
Facilities Demand Allocation and make appropriate payment for the approved reservation
increase. In 2006, the Authority obtained City approval of an additional 10 mgd reservation
request and the Authority paid the City an additional $33,374,275 for the 10 mgd increase in its
Treated Water Facilities Demand Allocation to bring the total Treated Water Facilities Demand
Allocation to 28.25 mgd. The Authority paid the City $7,032,104 in April of 2010 for its 10
mgd increase in the Untreated Water Facilities Demand Allocation. In the event the City
constructs or acquires New Untreated Water Facilities, the Authority is also responsible to
annually pay the City for the Authority's share of the City's annual debt service for the New
Untreated Water Facilities.

The Authority is required to reimburse the City on a periodic basis for the expenses incurred by
the City in producing and treating the water delivered to the Authority. The City is required to
engage an independent auditor on an annual basis to true-up the costs charged to the Authority.
During the current fiscal year, the Authority recorded an expense of $6,373,629 for purchased
water, which was partially offset by a credit from the City in the amount of $229,175 for the
years 2015 and 2016 true-ups.

Effective January 30, 2009, the Authority and the City entered into the First Supplement to the
Water Supply Contract, as amended January 22, 2013 (the “First Supplement”), to increase the
supply of untreated surface water available to the Authority, the City and the other participating
regional water authorities through the construction of the Luce Bayou Interbasin Transfer
Project (“Luce Bayou”). When completed, Luce Bayou will convey approximately 400 mgd of
untreated surface water from the Trinity River to Lake Houston. The First Supplement and
Water Supply Contract remain in effect until January 1, 2080.
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NOTE 9. WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF HOUSTON
(Continued)

Under the terms of the First Supplement, the Authority will make the following payments to the
City:

Lump Sum Payments for Right-of-Way Costs. The Authority paid the City a lump sum
payment for its share of Luce Bayou rights-of-way costs in three payments as follows: (1)
$1,110,000, which was paid in 2009, (2) $555,000 was paid in 2010, and (3) $555,000 was paid
in 2012. At the completion of right-of-way acquisition, a "true-up" was required to be
performed such that the Authority received a reimbursement of $139,417 including interest for
the amount overpaid. This was recorded as a reduction to Capital Assets- Interest in Joint
Facilities in the financial statements.

Payments for Existing Untreated Water Facilities. The Authority seeks to increase its Untreated
Water Facilities Demand Allocation from 28.25 mgd to 110.3 mgd, which is currently
estimated to be the Authority's surface water demand in the year 2040. Under the terms of the
First Supplement, the Authority is required to make four payments to the City for Existing
Untreated Water Facilities.

Each payment is based on a formula defined in the First Supplement based on the Authority's
water demand needs in 2025, 2030, 2035 and 2040. The payments are due as follows: (1) the
first payment is due at the time Luce Bayou has been completed; (2) the second payment is due
upon the earlier of (i) June 30, 2025, or (ii) when the Authority needs its 2030 water demand;
(3) the third payment is due upon the earlier of (i) June 30, 2030, or (ii) when the Authority
needs its 2035 water demand; and (4) the fourth payment is due upon the earlier of (i) June 30,
20335, or (i) when the Authority needs its 2040 water demand.

Payment for Phases 1 and 2 Annual New Untreated Water Facilities. Payments made to the
City for Phase 1 and 2 Annual New Untreated Water Facilities are to be used only for the
purpose of making debt service payments on obligations issued for the construction of Phase 1
and Phase 2 of Luce Bayou. The formulas used to calculate payments are defined in the
contract and take into consideration the Authority's 110.3 mgd Untreated Water Facilities
Demand Allocation (comprised of the Authority's current 28.25 mgd plus an additional 82.05
mgd upon completion of Luce Bayou), the total amount of untreated water sold by the City to
all customers and the City's annual debt service requirement. During the current year, the
Authority paid the City $49,546 for its share of the Luce Bayou State Participation Loan
Annual payment.

Effective February 25, 2015, the Authority and the City executed the Second Supplement to the
Water Supply Contract (the “Second Supplement”) to provide for sharing the cost to construct
additional treated water facilities to add 320 mgd of treated water capacity to Houston’s
Northeast Water Purification Plant (“NEWPP”). The Authority seeks to increase its Treated
Water Facilities Demand Allocation from 28.25 mgd to 110.67 mgd.
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NOTE 9. WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF HOUSTON
(Continued)

Under the terms of the Second Supplement:

e The parties intend Houston to cause Phase 1 to be substantially complete not later than
August 31, 2021 for 80 mgd of treated water capacity, of which the Authority made a
reservation for 17.03 mgd

e The parties intend Houston to cause Phase 2 to be substantially complete not later than
June 30, 2024 for 240 mgd of treated water capacity, of which the Authority made a
reservation for 65.39 mgd

e As stipulated by the Second Supplement, the Authority paid to the City $471,011 for
costs incurred by Houston prior to December 1, 2014

e Total cash calls due from the Authority are estimated to be $326,995,224 through 2025

e Cash Call No. 1 in the amount of $1,796,543, Cash Call No. 2 in the amount of
$1,702,385, Cash Call No. 2B in the amount of $1,205,973 and Cash Call No. 4 & 4A
in the amount of $4,120,960 were paid to the City by the Authority to be used toward
the costs of the NEWPP expansion

e The Central Harris County Regional Water Authority, North Fort Bend Water
Authority, and North Harris County Regional Water Authority (“Other Authorities™)
are also participating in the 320 mgd expansion to the NEWPP and Houston has
entered into agreements (“Other Second Supplements”) with them that are similar to
the Authority’s Second Supplement

e The Other Authorities are third party beneficiaries to the Authority’s Second
Supplement, with the right to enforce Houston’s and the Authority’s respective
obligations thereunder, and the Authority is a third party beneficiary to the Other
Second Supplements with the right to enforce Houston’s and the Other Authorities’
respective obligations thereunder.

The NEWPP expansion project cost estimate, phasing, and estimated delivery dates described
above are based on various project-scope, cost, and schedule assumptions, which assumptions
will be revised from time to time throughout the course of the project. These assumptions are
currently being reviewed by the parties participating in the project and it is expected that, upon
completion of this review, the cost estimate for the NEWPP expansion project may increase -
beyond the current estimate, the phasing may be adjusted, and the estimated delivery dates may
be delayed. These revisions to the cost estimate and delivery dates could substantially increase
the cost of the project and delay completion of the project.

On November 10, 2015, the Authority and the City executed the Third Supplement to the
Water Supply Contract to provide for sharing the cost to construct a segment of water
transmission lines known as the Segment 1 or Northeast Transmission Line (NETL) Project.
This project is to be substantially complete not later than September 1, 2020. The Authority’s
NETL Project reservation is 82.42 mgd
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NOTE 9. WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF HOUSTON
(Continued)

The Authority’s estimated share of the total costs is approximately $3,652,504. The City will
invoice the Authority prior to engaging a design engineer and after the City’s Utility Official
has selected a construction contractor to whom the Utility Official will recommend the City
award the construction contract. During 2016, the Authority made payments under the Third
Supplement for the NETL Project in the amount of $525,821.

NOTE 10. WATER CONSERVATION CREDITS

The Authority participates in the Water Wise program sponsored by the Harris Galveston
Subsidence District (the "Subsidence District"). The Authority receives a Certificate of Deposit
water conservation credit equal to 84,000 gallons of groundwater (which equals 1,400 gallons
per month for five years) for each student sponsored. Redemption of the Certificate of Deposit
requires the Subsidence District to increase the redeemer's groundwater allocation by the
amount of the water conservation credit, provided however that Certificates of Deposit issued
beginning with the 2001-2002 school year (Series B) may only be applied to a maximum of
thirty percent of the permittee’s total water demand. The Authority began purchasing water
conservation credits from other entities in 2002. The cost paid to the Subsidence District to
sponsor each student and the cost paid to other entities to purchase water conservation credits is
recorded as an asset and will be expensed in the year in which the credit(s) are redeemed. The
Authority also sells credits to other entities. As of December 31, 2016, the Authority's
investment in the water conservation credits is $1,853,488.

NOTE 11.  JOINT FACILITIES AGREEMENT

The Authority and North Fort Bend Water Authority (the “Fort Bend Authority™) entered into a
Joint Facilities Agreement dated July 1, 2011, as amended March 1, 2012, (the “Agreement”)
to jointly design, acquire, construct, finance, operate and maintain (i) certain booster pump
stations and water transmission facilities in the Mission Bend area to receive water from the
City for ultimate delivery to the authorities’ respective customers, and (ii) the Surface Water
Supply Project described below.

Segments 0 & 1A. The Fort Bend Authority is responsible for the design and construction of
Segments 0 & 1A. The Authority will pay to the Fort Bend Authority its pro rata share of total
project costs which varies depending on the segment. The Fort Bend Authority will own and
operate the segments for the benefit of both parties. Each authority will have an equitable
interest to the extent of its pro rata share.

Bellaire Pump Station. The Fort Bend Authority is responsible for the purchase of land for the
Bellaire Pump Station as well as the design and construction of Phases 1 and 2. In 2011, the
Authority paid the Fort Bend Authority $364,550 for its portion of realty costs associated with
the Bellaire Pump Station, which is included in the Authority’s capital asset schedule.
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NOTE 11. JOINT FACILITIES AGREEMENT (Continued)

The Authority was invoiced for its estimated share of construction costs of Phase 1 based on its
current pro-rata share of 8%, plus its share of Phase 1 facilities that are over-sized for the
Authority’s future needs. In 2012, the Authority paid $6,201,866 to the Fort Bend Authority for
its portion of the estimated share of these costs. The Fort Bend Authority will own and operate
the Bellaire Pump Station for the benefit of both parties. Each authority will have an equitable
interest to the extent of its pro rata share.

During the 2015 fiscal year, The Fort Bend Authority performed a reconciliation and final
accounting of Segments 0 and 1A project costs and Phase I the Bellaire Pump Station costs as
required by the Agreement. Based on the final accounting, the Authority recorded $933,681 as
Due to Other Authority for its remaining pro-rata share of the projects.

Phase 2 is planned to add capacity to the Bellaire Pump Station for the benefit of the Authority.
The Fort Bend Authority will design and construct Phase 2 provided that the Authority pays all
Phase 2 project costs. The Fort Bend Authority will invoice the Authority for 100% of Phase 2
design and construction costs.

Surface Water Supply Project (formerly known as the Second Source Waterline). This project
consists of water mains, pump stations, re-pump stations, re-pressurization stations and related
appurtenances needed to convey water from the City’s NEWPP to the authorities. The Surface
Water Supply Project is required to be completed no later than June 30, 2024. The Authority
will own and operate the Surface Water Supply Project for the benefit of both parties. Each
authority will have an equitable interest to the extent of its pro rata share.

The Authority will invoice itself and the Fort Bend Authority for each authority’s respective
pro-rata share of realty acquisition costs, engineering costs, and construction costs, which
invoices are required to be paid pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. All deposits are to be
deposited into a separate bank account and the bookkeeper will provide monthly reports of the
application of each authority’s payment for project costs and of related interest earnings.

The responsible authority, which means the Fort Bend Authority for Segment 0, Segment 1A,
and the Bellaire Pump Station and the Authority for the Surface Water Supply Project, will
maintain, repair and operate the joint facilities for which it is responsible. Prior to the joint
facilities going into service, each authority will pay their respective shares of operation and
maintenance expenses which will be allocated based on the authorities’ pro-rata share of the
applicable joint facility. After the facilities go into service, each authority will pay a fraction of
the monthly operation and maintenance expenses based on the amount of water received.

Each authority is required to establish a separate joint facilities account. All funds received and
any expenses related to the joint facilities shall be accounted for through this account. Each
month, the responsible authority will provide a bill to each authority for its respective share of
the actual expenses made from the joint facilities account. Additionally, an initial deposit of
one fourth of the annual budget prepared for the joint facilities account will be billed. The
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NOTE 11.  JOINT FACILITIES AGREEMENT (Continued)

authorities will establish a capital replacement account for each joint facility, and the amount
and timing of funding of this account will be mutually agreed upon.

As required by the Agreement, the Authority established the Surface Water Supply Project fund
to account for project costs associated with the Surface Water Supply Project. The Fort Bend
Authority has deposited a total of $10,364,862 into this account for its portion of the estimated
Surface Water Supply Project realty costs. As of December 31, 2016, the remaining balance
from these advances is $865,485 which is recorded as a construction advance.

Additionally, the Fort Bend Authority and the Authority deposited $8,585 and $12,665
respectively into the joint facilities account for its portion of the operating reserve. During the
current year, the Fort Bend Authority was billed $125,295 for its share of operation and
maintenance expenses related to the joint facilities.

Water Improvement Fund Bonds. The Authority is authorized to issue bonds financed through
the Water Improvement Fund (WIF) of the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) to fund
a portion of the Surface Water Supply Project costs. Debt service requirements for these bonds
will be shared between the Authority and the Fort Bend Authority on a pro-rata basis. The Fort
Bend Authority is required to make two payments to the Authority each year equal to the Fort
Bend Authority’s pro-rata share of the annual debt service on the bonds. In 2012, the Authority
issued its $41,965,000 Series 2012 Water System Revenue Bonds to the TWDB related to this
Agreement. The Fort Bend Authority’s pro-rata share of these bonds is $18,842,285, which was
‘recorded as an asset and a deferred inflow of resources on the Statement of Net Position.
During the current year, the Fort Bend Authority paid the Authority $1,095,839 for its pro-rata
share of the annual debt service payment and paying agent fees, which consists of a principal
reduction of $936,165 and an interest component of $157,987. As of December 31, 2016, the
outstanding balance of the receivable and deferred inflow is $14,738,425.

The Fort Bend Authority’s share of the debt service requirements on the WIF bonds is as
follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 936,165 $ 157,987 $ 1,094,152
2018 936,165 157,987 1,094,152
2019 936,165 156,677 1,092,842
2020 940,655 153,868 1,094,523
2021 _ 945,145 149,072 1,094,217
2022-2026 4,853,690 616,018 5,469,708
2027-2031 5,190,440 276,194 . 5,466,634

$ 14,738,425 $ 1,667,803 $ 16,406,228
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NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Authority carries
commercial insurance. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the
prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage in the past three years.

NOTE 13. UNUSED LETTER OF CREDIT

The Authority is required to issue an Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit in the amount of

$1,000,000 for the benefit of CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC. The letter of credit
was amended to extend the expiration date to February 13, 2018.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
SERVICES AND RATES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

1. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE DISTRICT DURING THE FISCAL YEAR:

____Retail Water _x_ Wholesale Water ___ Drainage

___Retail Wastewater ___ Wholesale Wastewater ___ lrrigation

___ Parks/Recreation ___ Fire Protection ___ Security
Solid Waste / Garbage Flood Control Roads

Participates in joint venture, regional system and/or wastewater service
(other than emergency interconnect)

x  Other (Specify): Ground Water Reduction Plan Services

2. WHOLESALE RATES FOR SURFACE WATER:
Based on rate order approved November 11, 2015:

Rate per 1,000

Minimum Gallons Over
Charge Minimum Usage Flat Rate Y/N Minimum Usage Usage Levels
SURFACE WATER: § -0- 0,001 N 2.65% 0,001 and up
GROUND WATER
REDUCTION
PLANS FEE: $§ -0- 0,001 N 2.25% 0,001 and up

*Effective January 1, 2017, the rate for surface water increased to $2.85 and the rate for groundwater reduction
plan fee increased to $2.45.

3. TOTAL WATER CONSUMPTION DURING THE FISCAL YEAR ROUNDED TO THE NEAREST
THOUSAND: (UNAUDITED)

Water Accountability Ratio: 98%
(Gallons billed and sold/Gallons
pumped and purchased)
Gallons purchased: 8,353,910,000 From: City of Houston

Gallons sold to participants: 8,216,795,600

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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4. STANDBY FEES (authorized only under TWC Section 49.231) (Not Applicable)
5. LOCATION OF DISTRICT
Is the Authority located entirely within one county?
Yes _ No X
County or Counties in which the Authority is located:
Harris County, Téxas and Fort Bend County, Texas
Is the Authority located within a city?
Entirely  Partly X  Notatall
Is the Authority located within a city's extra territorial jurisdiction (ETJ)?
Entirely  Partly X Notatall
ETlJs in which the Authority is located:
City of Houston, Texas and City of Katy, Texas
Are Board members appointed by an office outside the Authority?
Yes X No

Pursuant to the Act, the water districts and municipalities within each of the nine director
precincts within the Authority appoint the director for that precinct.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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EXPENSES
DECEMBER 31, 2016

PERSONNEL EXPENDITURES (Including Benefits):

PROFESSIONAL FEES:
Auditing
Accounting
Engineering
Legal
Risk Management Services
Rate Study

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES

PURCHASED SERVICES FOR RESALE:
Purchased Water

CONTRACTED SERVICES:
Bookkeeping
Operations
Website and Communications
Paying Agent

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

UTILITIES:
Electricity

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

OTHER EXPENSES:
Director Fees
Dues
Insurance
Laboratory Fees
Office Supplies and Postage
Other
Permit Fees
Legal Notices & Publications
Payroll Taxes
Travel and Meetings
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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55,900
21,000
1,886,472
653,851
70,000
25,000

2,712,223

6,373,629

208,068
424,600
186,371

25,800

844,839

533,677

808,312

54,050
1,108
151,656
33,523
5,459
721
303,623
91,343
4,290
14,062

659,835




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

EXPENSES
DECEMBER 31, 2016

DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION:
Amortized Capital Contributions to City of Houston

Depreciation

TOTAL DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Professional Fees

Reimbursement for Chloramine Conversions

Bond Issuance Costs

City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt Service

Interest Expense

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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1,261,381
4,108,296

5,369,677

17,302,192

1,845,302
291,615
1,650,397
49,546
11,173,035

15,009,895

32,312,087




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

INVESTMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
Accrued
Identification or Interest
Certificate Maturity Balance at End Receivable at
Funds Number Interest Rate - Date of Year End of Year
ENTERPRISE FUND
Investment Pools:
TexSTAR XXXXXX1111 0.4815% Daily $ 10,278,389 $ -
TexSTAR XXXXXX2550 0.4815% Daily 15,797,875
TexSTAR XXXXXX2560 0.4815% Daily 25,119
- TexSTAR XXXXXX2561 0.4815% Daily 25,119
TexSTAR XXXXXX0160 0.4815% Daily 28,713,890
TexSTAR XXXXXX0161 0.4815% Daily 32,018,868
Fidelity Institutional Money Market Treasury Portfolio Fund:
Regions Bank XXXXXX5410 0.0100% Daily 81,560
Regions Bank XXXXXX0834 0.0100% Daily 2,114,751
Regions Bank XXXXXX0816 0.0100% Daily 7,505,063
Regions Bank XXXXXX0843 0.0100% Daily 7,862,202
Regions Bank XXXXXX5429 0.0100% Daily 2,505,779
Regions Bank XXXXXX6543 0.0100% Daily 943,166
Regions Bank XXXXXX6696 0.0100% Daily 1,429,748
Certificates of Deposits:
Icon Bank XX7237 0.90% 11/17/2017 245,000 266
Central Bank XXXX0277 0.75% 11/13/2017 1,009,547 996
TOTAL - ENTERPRISE FUND $ 110,556,076 $ 1,262

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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SERIES- 2007

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ 2,035,000 $ 1,053,738 $ 3,088,738
2018 2,115,000 972,338 3,087,338
2019 2,220,000 866,588 3,086,588
2020 2,340,000 755,588 3,095,588
2021 2,450,000 638,588 3,088,588
2022 2,570,000 516,088 3,086,088
2023 2,690,000 402,088 3,092,088
2024 2,815,000 274313 3,089,313
2025 2,960,000 140,600 3,100,600
TOTAL $ 22,195,000 $ 5,619,929 $ 27,814,929

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

.44 -



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016
SERIES- 2009
Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ 1,770,000 $ 2,506,350 $ 4,276,350
2018 1,855,000 2,417,850 4,272,850
2019 1,950,000 2,325,100 4,275,100
2020 2,045,000 2,227,600 4,272,600
2021 2,130,000 2,145,800 4,275,800
2022 2,215,000 2,060,600 4,275,600
2023 2,325,000 1,949,850 4,274,850
2024 2,415,000 1,856,850 4,271,850
2025 2,515,000 1,760,250 4,275,250
2026 2,640,000 1,634,500 4,274,500
2027 2,770,000 1,502,500 4,272,500
2028 2,905,000 1,364,000 4,269,000
2029 3,050,000 1,218,750 4,268,750
2030 3,185,000 1,083,750 4,268,750
2031 3,345,000 924,500 4,269,500
2032 3,515,000 757,250 4,272,250
2033 3,690,000 581,500 4,271,500
2034 3,875,000 397,000 4,272,000
2035 4,065,000 203,250 4,268,250
TOTAL $ 52,260,000 $ 28,917,250 $ 81,177,250

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

- 45 -



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

SERIES- 2012

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ 2,085,000 $ 351,865 $ 2,436,865
2018 2,085,000 351,865 2,436,865
2019 2,085,000 348,946 2,433,946
2020 2,095,000 342,691 2,437,691
2021 2,105,000 332,006 2,437,006
2022 2,120,000 317,271 2,437,271
2023 2,135,000 299,252 2,434,252
2024 2,160,000 277,048 2,437,048
2025 2,185,000 252,424 2,437,424
2026 2,210,000 225,985 2,435,985
2027 2,240,000 196,592 2,436,592
2028 2,270,000 164,112 2,434,112
2029 2,310,000 124,160 2,434,160
2030 2,350,000 85,814 2,435,814
2031 2,390,000 44,454 2,434,454
TOTAL 5 32,825,000 $ 3,714,485 $ 36,539,485

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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SERIES- 2013

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ 4,080,000 $ 1,555,200 $ 5,635,200
2018 4,205,000 1,432,800 5,637,800
2019 4,370,000 1,264,600 5,634,600
2020 4,545,000 1,089,800 5,634,800
2021 4,730,000 908,000 5,638,000
2022 4,965,000 671,500 5,636,500
2023 5,185,000 448,250 5,633,250
2024 3,780,000 189,000 3,969,000
TOTAL $ 35,860,000 $ 7,559,150 $ 43,419,150

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

SERIES- 2014

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ 2,970,000 $ 1,750,813 $ - 4,720,813
2018 3,090,000 1,632,013 4,722,013
2019 3,155,000 1,570,213 4,725,213
2020 3,275,000 1,444,013 4,719,013
2021 3,410,000 1,313,013 4,723,013
2022 2,305,000 1,223,500 3,528,500
2023 1,108,250 1,108,250
2024 3,875,000 1,108,250 4,983,250
2025 4,070,000 914,500 4,984,500
2026 711,000 711,000
2027 4,510,000 711,000 5,221,000
2028 4,735,000 485,500 5,220,500
2029 4,975,000 248,750 5,223,750
TOTAL $ 40,370,000 $ 14,220,815 $ 54,590,815

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

SERIES- 2015

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total

2017 $ 830,000 $ 297,437 $ 1,127,437
2018 835,000 294,283 1,129,283
2019 840,000 289,607 1,129,607
2020 850,000 283,559 1,133,559
2021 855,000 276,164 1,131,164 -
2022 865,000 267,529 1,132,529
2023 880,000 257,495 1,137,495
2024 895,000 246,055 1,141,055
2025 905,000 233,614 1,138,614
2026 925,000 220,310 1,145,310
2027 940,000 205,140 : 1,145,140
2028 960,000 188,126 1,148,126
2029 980,000 169,310 1,149,310
2030 1,000,000 148,731 1,148,731
2031 1,025,000 126,731 1,151,731
2032 1,050,000 103,360 1,153,360
2033 1,075,000 79,000 1,154,000
2034 1,100,000 53,523 1,153,523
2035 1,130,000 27,233 1,157,233

TOTAL $ 17,940,000 $ 3,767,207 $ 21,707,207

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

SERIES- 2015 A

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ 1,585,000 $ 2,613,331 $ 4,198,331
2018 1,650,000 2,549,931 4,199,931
2019 2,315,000 2,467,431 4,782,431
2020 2,430,000 2,351,681 4,781,681
2021 2,555,000 2,230,181 4,785,181
2022 2,680,000 2,102,432 4,782,432
2023 2,820,000 1,968,432 4,788,432
2024 2,960,000 1,827,431 4,787,431
2025 3,095,000 1,679,431 4,774,431
2026 3,250,000 1,524,681 4,774,681
2027 3,375,000 1,362,181 4,737,181
2028 3,560,000 1,193,431 4,753,431
2029 3,710,000 1,051,031 4,761,031
2030 3,865,000 902,631 4,767,631
2031 1,025,000 748,031 1,773,031
2032 1,055,000 714,719 1,769,719
2033 1,090,000 679,113 1,769,113
2034 1,130,000 642,325 1,772,325
2035 1,165,000 604,187 1,769,187
2036 1,210,000 563,413 1,773,413
2037 1,255,000 518,038 1,773,038
2038 1,300,000 470,975 1,770,975
2039 1,350,000 422,225 1,772,225
2040 1,400,000 371,600 1,771,600
2041 1,455,000 315,600 1,770,600
2042 1,515,000 257,400 1,772,400
2043 1,575,000 196,800 1,771,800
2044 1,640,000 133,800 1,773,800
2045 1,705,000 68,200 1,773,200
TOTAL $ 59,720,000 $ 32,530,662 $ 92,250,662

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

SERIES- 2016

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ - $ 943,153 $ 943,153
2018 1,045,000 832,194 1,877,194
2019 1,050,000 825,401 1,875,401
2020 1,055,000 817,421 1,872,421
2021 1,065,000 808,559 1,873,559
2022 1,070,000 798,868 1,868,868
2023 1,080,000 788,275 1,868,275
2024 1,095,000 776,503 1,871,503
2025 1,105,000 763,363 1,868,363
2026 1,120,000 749,108 1,869,108
2027 1,130,000 733,764 1,863,764
2028 1,150,000 716,023 1,866,023
2029 1,170,000 ‘ 696,588 1,866,588
2030 1,190,000 673,071 1,863,071
2031 1,215,000 647,129 1,862,129
2032 1,240,000 619,306 1,859,306
2033 1,270,000 590,414 1,860,414
2034 1,300,000 560,061 1,860,061
2035 1,330,000 527,301 1,857,301
2036 1,365,000 494,051 1,859,051
2037 1,400,000 459,380 1,859,380
2038 1,440,000 421,440 1,861,440
2039 1,480,000 382,416 1,862,416
2040 1,520,000 342,308 1,862,308
2041 1,565,000 301,116 1,866,116
2042 1,605,000 258,704 1,863,704
2043 1,655,000 209,912 1,864,912
2044 1,700,000 159,600 1,859,600
2045 1,750,000 107,920 1,857,920
2046 1,800,000 54,720 . 1,854,720
TOTAL $ 37,960,000 $ 17,058,069 $ 55,018,069

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

SERIES- 2016 A

Due During Fiscal Interest Due
Years Ending Principal Due June 15/
December 31 December 15 December 15 Total
2017 $ - $ 1,429,748 $ 1,429,748
2018 1,458,100 1,458,100
2019 1,458,100 1,458,100
2020 610,000 1,458,100 2,068,100
2021 640,000 1,427,600 2,067,600
2022 670,000 1,395,600 2,065,600
2023 705,000 1,362,100 2,067,100
2024 740,000 1,326,850 2,066,850
2025 780,000 : 1,289,850 2,069,850
2026 815,000 1,250,850 2,065,850
2027 860,000 1,210,100 2,070,100
2028 900,000 1,167,100 2,067,100
2029 945,000 1,122,100 2,067,100
2030 995,000 1,074,850 2,069,850
2031 1,045,000 1,025,100 2,070,100
2032 1,095,000 972,850 2,067,850
2033 1,150,000 918,100 2,068,100
2034 1,205,000 860,600 2,065,600
2035 1,265,000 800,350 2,065,350
2036 1,330,000 737,100 2,067,100
2037 1,395,000 670,600 2,065,600
2038 1,455,000 614,800 2,069,800
2039 1,510,000 556,600 2,066,600
2040 1,570,000 496,200 2,066,200
2041 1,635,000 433,400 2,068,400
2042 1,700,000 368,000 2,068,000
2043 1,765,000 300,000 2,065,000
2044 1,840,000 229,400 2,069,400
2045 1,910,000 155,800 2,065,800
2046 1,985,000 79,400 2,064,400
TOTAL $ 32,515,000 $ 27,649,348 $ 60,164,348

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016
ANNUAL REQUIREMENT
FOR ALL SERIES
Due During Fiscal Total
Years Ending Total Total Principal and

December 31 Principal Due Interest Due Interest Due
2017 15,355,000 $ 12,501,635 27,856,635
2018 16,880,000 11,941,374 28,821,374
2019 17,985,000 11,415,986 29,400,986
2020 19,245,000 10,770,453 30,015,453
2021 19,940,000 10,079,911 30,019,911
2022 19,460,000 9,353,388 28,813,388
2023 17,820,000 8,583,992 26,403,992
2024 20,735,000 7,882,300 28,617,300
2025 17,615,000 7,034,032 24,649,032
2026 10,960,000 6,316,434 17,276,434
2027 15,825,000 5,921,277 21,746,277
2028 16,480,000 5,278,292 21,758,292
2029 17,140,000 4,630,689 21,770,689
2030 12,585,000 3,968,847 16,553,847
2031 10,045,000 3,515,945 13,560,945
2032 7,955,000 3,167,485 11,122,485
2033 8,275,000 2,848,127 11,123,127
2034 8,610,000 2,513,509 11,123,509
2035 8,955,000 2,162,321 11,117,321
2036 3,905,000 1,794,564 5,699,564
2037 4,050,000 1,648,018 5,698,018
2038 4,195,000 1,507,215 5,702,215
2039 4,340,000 1,361,241 5,701,241
2040 4,490,000 1,210,108 5,700,108
2041 4,655,000 1,050,116 5,705,116
2042 4,820,000 884,104 5,704,104
2043 4,995,000 706,712 5,701,712
2044 5,180,000 522,800 5,702,800
2045 5,365,000 331,920 5,696,920
2046 3,785,000 134,120 3,919,120

TOTAL $ 331,645,000 $ 141,036,915 3 472,681,915

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM BOND DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2016
Bonds
Original Outstanding
Description Bonds Issued January 1, 2016

West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water

System Revenue Bonds - Series 2007 $ 53,855,000 $ 45,165,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water

System Revenue Bonds - Series 2009 60,000,000 53,940,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water

System Revenue Bonds - Series 2012 41,965,000 34,910,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water

System Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2013 35,860,000 35,860,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water

System Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2014 46,030,000 43,225,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water

System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds - Series 2015 18,740,000 18,740,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority - Water

System Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds -

Series 2015A 61,305,000 61,305,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water ,

System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds - Series 2016 37,960,000
West Harris County Regional Water Authority Water

System Revenue Bonds - Series 2016A 32,515,000
TOTAL $ 388,230,000 $ 293,145,000

Debt Service Funds as of December 31, 2016:
Coverage Fund
Reserve Fund
Junior Lien Reserve Fund
Capitalized Interest
Junior Lien Capitalized Interest
Debt Service
Junior Lien Debt Service

Total

Average annual debt service payment (principal and interest) for remaining term
of all bond debt (Includes Parity Bonds and Junior Lien Bonds):

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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$ 7,505,063
7,862,202
2,505,779
1,429,748

943,166
2,114,751
81,560

$ 22442269

815756064



Current Year Transactions

Retirements

Bonds

Outstanding

December 31,
Bonds Sold Bonds Defeased Principal Interest 2016 Paying Agent
. Regions Bank
$ - $ 21,010,000 $ 1,960,000 $ 1,649,406 $ 22,195,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
1,680,000 2,590,350 52,260,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
2,085,000 351,865 32,825,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
1,555,200 35,860,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
2,855,000 1,865,013 40,370,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
800,000 320,548 17,940,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
1,585,000 2,747,894 59,720,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
37,960,000 37,960,000 Houston, TX
Regions Bank
32,515,000 32,515,000 Houston, TX

$ 70,475,000 $

$ 331,645,000

Bond Authority:
Amount Authorized by Voters
Amount Issued

Remaining to be Issued

21,010,000 $§ 10,965,000 $ 11,080,276
Refunding
Tax Bonds Bonds
$ -0- b -0-
-0- -0-
$ -0- $ -0-

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION - FIVE YEARS

Amounts
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES
Pumpage Fees $ 32,059,687 $ 28,036,997 $§ 25227,627 $ 28,098,868 $ 26,674,006
Surface Water Sold 19,801,873 16,844,860 15,958,478 15,370,479 14,339,019
Joint Facilities Revenue 125,295 115,340 97,315 48,013 69,366
Other 18,536
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 52,005,391 § 44,997,197 $§ 41,283,420 $ 43,517,360 $ 41,082,391
OPERATING EXPENSES
Professional Fees $ 2,712,223 § 2857095 $ 2674548 $ 3,648,211 $ 1,406,385
Contracted Services 844,839 652,781 7,625,159 616,728 583,099
Purchased Water Service 6,373,629 3,821,400 646,297 5,994,227 3,791,177
Utilities 533,677 498,221 533,122 445,740 462,669
Repairs and Maintenance 808,312 " 903,703 667,315 816,179 613,187
Depreciation/Amortization 5,369,677 5,226,934 6,747,093 6,472,044 6,115,065
Other 659,835 802,428 683,522 651,786 636,492
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 17,302,192 § 14,762,562 § 19,577,056 § 18,644915 $ 13,608,074
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 34,703,199 $ 30,234,635 $ 21,706,364 § 24,872,445 § 27,474,317
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Revenues $ 282226 $ 106,123 § 115,146 $ 155,668 $ 506,885
Capital Contributions 37,151 (348,102) 899,144
Professional Fees (1.845,302) (733,021)
Contracted Services (31.925)
Miscellaneous Revenues 18,356 100
Bond Issuance Costs (1,650,397) (1,528,514) (825.875) (684,865) (369,500)
Interest Expense (11,173,035) (10,319.,405) (12,005.555) (12,044,063) (12,686,700)
Chloramine Conversion/Waterline
Connections (291,615) (267,875) (788,221) (64,374)
Joint Facilities WIF Contribution 1,095,839 1,095,839 1,095,843 1,095,877 473,343
City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt Service (49,546) (24,159)
Other ' (3,566) (20,747) (48,525)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES) $ (13,631,830) $(11,401,477) $ (11,890,707) §$ (12,662,231) $ (11,241,102)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 21,071,369 § 18,833,158 $ 9815657 $ 12,210,214 $ 16,233,215
BEGINNING NET POSITION 92,818,883 73,985,725 64,170,068 51,959,854 35,726,639
ENDING IN NET POSITION $ 113,890,252 $ 92,818,883 § 73,985,725 $ 64,170,068 $ 51,959,854

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Percent of Total Revenues

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
61.6% 62.3% 61.1% 64.6% 64.9%
38.1% 37.4% 38.7% 35.3% 34.9%

0.2% 0.3% 0.2% 0.1% 0.2%
0.1%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
5.2% 6.3% 6.5% 8.4% 3.4%
1.6% 1.5% 18.5% 1.4% 1.4%

12.3% 8.5% 1.6% 13.8% 9.2%
1.0% 1.1% 1.3% 1.0% 1.1%
1.6% 2.0% 1.6% 1.9% 1.5%
10.3% 11.6% 16.3% 14.9% 14.9%
13% 1.8% 1.7% 1.5% 1.6%
33.3% 32.8% 47.5% 42.9% 33.1%
66.7% 67.2% 52.5% 57.1% 66.9%
0.5% 0.2% 0.3% 0.4% 1.2%
0.1% -0.8% 2.2%
-3.5% -1.6%
-0.1%
0.0% 0.0%
-3.2% -3.4% -2.0% -1.6% -0.9%
-21.5% -22.9% -29.0% -27.7% -30.9%
-0.6% -0.6% -1.8% -0.2%
2.1% 2.4% 2.7% 2.5% 12%
-0.1% -0.1%
-0.1% -0.1%
-26.3% -25.4% -28.7% -29.1% -27.4%
40.4% 41.8% 23.8% 28.0% 39.5%
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

OPERATING REVENUES
Pumpage Fees
Surface Water Sold
Joint Facilities Revenue
Other

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Professional Fees
Contracted Services
Purchased Water Service
Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Depreciation/Amortization
Other

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment Revenues

Professional Fees

Miscellaneous Revenues

Bond Issuance Costs

Interest Expense

Chloramine Conversion/
Waterline Connections

Joint Facilities WIF Contribution

City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt Service

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

(EXPENSES)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - JANUARY 1,2016

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Variance

Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 33,406,222 $ 32,059,687 $ (1,346,535)
19,002,646 19,801,873 799,227
134,116 125,295 (8,821)
17,500 18,536 1,036
$ 52,560,484 $ 52005391 $ (555,093)
$ 2,241,000 §$ 2,712223  $§  (471,223)
689,950 844,839 (154,889)
3,805,201 6,373,629 (2,568,428)
525,000 533,677 (8,677)
828,700 808,312 20,388
5,369,677 (5,369,677)
1,336,500 659,835 676,665
$ 9,426,351 § 17,302,192 § (7,875,841)
$ 43,134,133 § 34,703,199 ~ $ (8,430,934)
$ 25,000 § 282,226 $ 257,226
(1,845,302) (1,845,302)
100,000 (100,000)
(1,650,397) (1,650,397)
(22,562,544) (11,173,035) 11,389,509
(291,615) (291,615)
1,095,948 1,095,839 (109)
(50,000) (49,546) 454
$ (21,391,596) § (13,631,830) $§ 7,759,766
$ 21,742,537 $ 21,071,369 $ (671,168)

92,818,883 92,818,883

$ 114,561,420 §$ 113,890,252 $ (671,168)

NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31, 2016

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

District Mailing Address West Harris County Regional Water Authority
c/o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson, LLP
3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600
Houston, TX 77027

District Telephone Number (713) 860-6400

Expense
Reimbursements
Fees of Office for the
for the year ended
Appointed year ended December 31,
Board Members Term of Office December 31, 2016 2016 Title
Bruce G. Parker 05/14 $ 7,200 $ 3,287 President
05/18
Larry A. Weppler 05/14 $ 7,200 $ 1,025 Vice President
05/18
Gary Struzick 05/16 $ 7,200 $ 788 Assistant
05720 Vice President
Douglas C. Postle 05/16 $ 7,200 $ 578 Secretary
05720
Eric Hansen 05/16 $ 7,200 $ 4,956 Assistant
05/20 Secretary
Mark Janneck 05/16 $ 5,550 $ 281 Director
05/20
Dennis Gorden 10/16 $ 1,200 $ 81 Director
05/18
Karla Cannon 05/14 $ 4,350 $ 512 Director
05/18
Michael Thornhill 09/14 $ 7,200 $ 1,815 Director
05/18
Johnny Nelson 05/14 $ 450 $ 32 Former
07/16 : Director

Notes: Submission date of most recent District Registration Form (TWC Sections 36.054 and 49.054): October 12, 2016.
The limit on Fees of Office that a Director may receive during a fiscal year is the maximum extent allowed
by law (TWC section 49.060) as set by Board Resolution on July 17, 2001. Fees of Office are the amounts
actually paid to the Director during the Authority's current fiscal year.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016
Fees for the
year ended
Consultants: Date Hired December 31, 2016 Title
Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 07/26/03 $ 1,201,836 General Counsel
420,272 Bond Counsel
McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC 12/18/01 $ 55,900 Auditor
Myrtle Cruz, Inc. 06/06/01 $ 230,568 Bookkeeper
McGrath & Co., PLLC 11/10/10 $ 21,000 Accountant
Dannenbaum Engineering Corp. 06/06/01 $ 6,538,626 Engineer
FirstSouthwest, a Division of Hilltop
Securities, Inc. 10/16/01 $ 281,249 Financial
Advisor
Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated 02/02/15 $ 278,444 Financial
Advisor
Mary Jarmon 06/27/01 $ -0- Investment
Officer
Severn Trent Services, Inc. 02/13/13 $ 867,227 Operator
Payne Communications 07/17/01 $ 62,158 Communications

Various other consultants are engaged from time to time by the Authority to perform legal, engineering, surveying,
appraisal and right-of-way services.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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McCALL GIBSON SWEDLUND BARFOOT PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

13100 Wortham Center Drive

Suite 235 9600 Great Hills Trail
Houston, Texas 77065-5610 Suite 150W
(713) 462-0341 Austin, Texas 78759
Fax (713) 462-2708 (512) 610-2209
E-Mail: mgsb@ingsbpllc.com wwew.ngshpllc.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
West Harris County Regional
Water Authority
Harris and Fort Bend Counties, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of West Harris
County Regional Water Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and
the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making these risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants






Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information required by the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality as published in the Water District Financial Management
Guide is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The supplementary information, excluding that portion marked “Unaudited” on which we express no
opinion or provide any assurance, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Ml atl MWW\BW PrLe

McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

May 10, 2017






WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Management’s discussion and analysis of West Harris County Regional Water Authority’s (the
"Authority") financial performance provides an overview of the Authority's financial activities
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's
financial statements.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The basic financial statements
include: (1) Statement of Net Position, (2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position, (3) Statement of Cash Flows, and (4) notes to financial statements. This report
also includes required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority's annual report includes three financial statements. These financial statements
provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall status.
Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector
with its basis in full accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal activities.

The first of the financial statements is the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net
Position is the financial statement presenting information that includes all of the Authority's
assets, deferred outflows of financial resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of financial
resources with the residual reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority as a
whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the Authority would
extend to other non-financial factors.

The second financial statement is the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position. This financial statement reports how the Authority's net position changed during the
current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash
is received or paid.

The third financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Cash Flows
shows the inflows and outflows of cash that occurred during the current fiscal year.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying notes to financial statements provide information essential to a full
understanding of the financial statements.



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority's financial position. In
the case of the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$113,890,252 as of December 31, 2016. A portion of the Authority's net position reflects its
investment in capital assets less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The Authority uses these assets to provide water service to its participants. The following table
provides a summary of the Authority's net position at December 31, 2016, and December 31,

2015:

Summary of Changes in the Statement of Net Position

Change
Positive
2016 2015 (Negative)
Current and Other Assets 197,485,626 158,543,611 38,942,015
Capital Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation) 294,590,027 274,085,920 20,504,107
Total Assets 492,075,653 432,629,531 59,446,122
Long-Term Liabilities 341,809,583 308,020,079 (33,789,504)
Other Liabilities 20,502,516 14,870,316 (5,632,200)
Total Liabilities 362,312,099 322,890,395 (39,421,704)
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 15,873,302 16,920,253 1,046,951
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 54,449,426 24,670,445 29,778,981
Restricted 27,511,844 29,303,528 (1,791,684)
Unrestricted 31,928,982 38,844,910 (6,915,928)
Total Net Position 113,890,252 92,818,883 21,071,369




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

The following table provides a summary of the Authority's operations for the fiscal years
ending December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2015. The Authority's net position increased by
$21,071,369, resulting in a 22.70% growth in net position.

Operating Revenues
Pumpage Fees
Surface Water Sold
Joint Facilities Revenue
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Revenues
Capital Contributions
Professional Fees
Contracted Services
Bond Issuance Costs
Interest Expense
Chloramine Conversion/
Waterline Connections
Joint Facilities WIF Contribution
City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt
Other
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

Summary of Changes in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Position

Change

. Positive

2016 2015 (Negative)
$ 32,059,687 $ 28,036,997 $ 4,022,690
19,801,873 16,844,860 2,957,013
125,295 115,340 9,955
18,536 18,536
$ 52,005,391 $ 44 997,197 $ 7,008,194
17,302,192 14,762,562 2,539,630
$ 34,703,199 $ 30,234,635 $ 4,468,564
$ 282,226 $ 106,123 $ 176,103
37,151 (37,151)
(1,845,302) (733,021) (1,112,281)
(31,925) 31,925
(1,650,397) (1,528,514) (121,883)
(11,173,035) (10,319,405) (853,630)
(291,615) (291,615)

1,095,839 1,095,839

(49,546) (24,159) (25,387)
(3,566) 3,566
$ (13,631,830) $ (11,401,477) $ (2,230,353)
$ 21,071,369 $ 18,833,158 $ 2,238,211
92,818,883 73,985,725 18,833,158
$ 113,890,252 $ 92,818,883 $ 21,071,369




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Authority's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2016, is $294,590,027 (net of
accumulated depreciation/amortization). This investment in capital assets includes land,
easements, water distribution facilities and capital contributions to the City of Houston.
Significant capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Land Additions:
e Land easements

Construction in Progress:

e Contract 33

» Contract 33A

e Contract 33B

» Contract 34

o SWSP Segment A

e SWSP Segment B

«  SWSP Segment C

e Pump Station

Total Construction in Progress

5,422,659

849,021
2,523,200
1,400
6,435,806
2,330,700
2,891,797
2,188,166
1,158,456

$

18,378,546

Capital Assets at Year-End Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization

Net
Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease)
Capital Assets Not Subject to
Depreciation/Amortization:
Land and Easements $ 40,399,927 35,044,466 $ 5,355,461
Construction in Progress 18,378,546 4,843,828 13,534,718
Capital Assets Subject to
Depreciation/Amortization
Water Distribution System 149,535,229 148,345,698 1,189,531
Capital Contributions - City of
Houston 79,467,012 78,481,427 985,585
Interest in Joint Facilities 6,809,313 7,370,501 (561,188)
Total Net Capital Assets $ 294,590,027 274,085,920 $ 20,504,107

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 6.



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had total long-term debt payable of

$331,645,000. The change in the long-term debt position of the Authority during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2016, is summarized as follows:

Bond Debt Payable - January 1, 2016 $ 293,145,000
Add: Debt Issuance 70,475,000
Less: Debt Defeased 21,010,000
Less: Principal Retirement 10,965,000
Bond Debt Payable - December 31, 2016 | $ 331,645,000

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2007, Series 2014, and Series 2015A Bonds
(collectively the “Insured Bonds™), the Authority obtained bond insurance from various bond
insurers. The Authority did not obtain bond insurance in connection with its Series 2009, Series
2012, Series 2013, Series 2015 Bonds, Series 2016 and Series 2016A Bonds. Independent of
bond insurance, the Authority’s Bonds have underlying ratings of “A+”, “A1”, and “AA-" from
Fitch, Moody’s Investor Service, and Standard & Poor’s, respectively. The bond insurers of the
Insured Bonds carry higher or lower ratings than the above-described ratings.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority owed participants $8,367,469 for capital
contribution credits. See Note 7 for additional information.

The changes in the amount due to participants by the Authority during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Due to Participants - January 1, 2016 $ 8,763,968
Less: Capital Contribution Credits Applied in the Current Fiscal Year 396,499
Due to Participants - December 31, 2016 $ 8,367,469




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to West Harris County Regional Water Authority, c/o Allen
Boone Humphries Robinson, LLP, 3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600, Houston, TX 77027.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Joint Facilities Receivable
Accrued Interest Receivable
Due From City of Houston
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Cash
Restricted Investments
Construction Advances
Water Conservation Credits
Unamortized Bond Insurance
Joint Facilities WIF Receivable
Capital Assets:
Land and Easements
Construction in Progress
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation/Amortization)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable-Capital
Retainage Payable-Capital
Other Payables
Accrued Bond Interest Payable
Joint Facilities Operating Reserve
Due to Participants
Due to Other Authority
Bonds Payable, Due Within One Year
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Due to Participants

Bonds Payable, Due After One Year
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes to financial

statements are an integral part of this report.
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$

1,401,355
25,788,888
5,603,999
9,144
9,245
229,715
24,763

33,067,109

62,023,038
84,767,188
865,485
1,853,488
170,893
14,738,425

40,399,927
18,378,546

235,811,554

459,008,544

492,075,653

1,332,932
1,504,417
228,093
54,677
670,379
8,585
414,752
933,681
15,355,000

20,502,516

7,952,717
333,856,866

&

341,809,583

©“°

362,312,099




WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2016

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Joint Facilities WIF Revenues $ 14,738,425
Deferred Difference on Refunding Bonds 1,134,877
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 15,873,302
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 54,449,426
Restricted for Debt Service:
Coverage Fund 7,505,063
Reserve Fund 7,862,202
Junior Lien Reserve Fund 2,505,779
Capitalized Interest 1,429,748
Junior Lien Capitalized Interest 943,166
Debt Service 1,444,372
Junior Lien Debt Service 81,560
Restricted for Water Conservation Credits 1,853,488
Restricted for Operations and Maintenance 1,541,922
Restricted for Joint Facilities ' 1,294,545
Restricted for Letter of Credit 1,000,000
Restricted for Mitigation 50,000
Unrestricted 31,928,981
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 113,890,252
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION $ 492,075,653

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of this report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Pumpage Fees $ 32,059,687
Surface Water Sold 19,801,873
Joint Facilities Revenue 125,295
Other 18,536
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 52,005,391
OPERATING EXPENSES
Professional Fees $ 2,712,223
Contracted Services 844,839
Purchased Water Service 6,373,629
Utilities 533,677
Repairs and Maintenance 808,312
Depreciation/Amortization 5,369,677
Other 659,835
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 17,302,192
OPERATING INCOME $ 34,703,199
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Revenues 282,226
Professional Fees (1,845,302)
Bond Issuance Costs (1,650,397)
Interest Expense (11,173,035)
Chloramine Conversion/Waterline Connections (291,615)
Joint Facilities WIF Contribution 1,095,839
City of Houston Luce Bayou Debt Service (49,546)

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION-JANUARY 1, 2016
NET POSITION-DECEMBER 31, 2016

$  (13,631,830)

$ 21,071,369

92,818,883

$ 113,890,252

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of this report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Participants $ 50,533,279
Cash Payments for Goods and Services (9,440,738)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 41,092,541
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from Sale of Bonds $ 72,255,801
Payment to Escrow Agent for Defeasance of Bonds (22,379,635)
Bond Principal Payment (10,965,000)
Payment of Bond Interest ‘ : (11,463,326)
Payment of Bond Issuance Costs (1,650,397)
Payment of Luce Bayou Interest (49,546)
Payments for Capital Assets (23,196,290)
Received from NFBWA - Debt Service 1,095,839
Capital Contribution to City of Houston (1,721,148)
Chloramine conversion reimbursement (291,615)
Other Receipts/Expenses ' (1,845,302)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED $ (210,619)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of Interest $ 280,464
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ 280,464
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $§ 41,162,386
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-JANUARY 1, 2016 $ 132,818,083
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-DECEMBER 31, 2016 $ 173,980,469
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 34,703,199
Depreciation/Amortization 5,369,677
Less Capital Contribution Credits Taken (396,499)
(Increase) Decrease in Pumpage Fees Receivable (1,073,406)
(Increase) Decrease in Joint Facilities Receivable (2,207)
(Increase) Decrease in Water Conservation Credits 14,012
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 283,868
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Governments 1,963,766
(Increase) Decrease in Other Receivables 50
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 230,081
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES § 41,092,541
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PER STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Cash $ 1,401,355
Restricted cash 62,023,038
Investments 25,788,888
Restricted investments 84,767,188
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 173,980,469

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of this report.
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WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

NOTE 1. CREATION OF AUTHORITY

The West Harris County Regional Water Authority (the "Authority") was created under Article
16, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution by House Bill 1842, as passed by the seventy-seventh
(77th) Texas Legislature in 2001, and amended thereafter (the "Act"). The Act empowers the
Authority for purposes including the acquisition and provision of surface water and
groundwater for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, and other uses; the reduction
of groundwater withdrawals; the conservation, preservation, protection, recharge, and
prevention of waste of groundwater, and of groundwater reservoirs or their subdivisions; and
the control of subsidence caused by withdrawal of water from those groundwater reservoirs or
their subdivisions.

A nine-member board of directors governs the Authority. The directors serve staggered four
year terms. Each director must qualify to serve as director in the manner provided by Section
49.055 of the Water Code and must meet certain other requirements set forth in the Act.

The Authority charges a fee, based on the amount of water pumped from the well, to the owner
of wells located within the boundaries of the Authority, unless exempted, and to certain owners
of wells located outside the Authority that have contracted with the Authority to be part of the
Authority's Groundwater Reduction Plan. The Authority also charges a surface water fee for
water sold by the Authority. These fees enable the Authority to fulfill its purposes and
regulatory functions, as set forth in the Act.

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). In addition, the accounting records of
the Authority are maintained generally in accordance with the Water District Financial
Management Guide published by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (the
"Commission").

The Authority is a political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by a board that is
appointed by the water districts and municipalities within the Authority. GASB has established
the criteria for determining whether or not an entity is a primary government or a component
unit of a primary government. The primary criteria are that it has a separately elected governing
body, it is legally separate, and it is fiscally independent of other state and local governments.
Under these criteria, the Authority is considered a primary government and is not a component
unit of any other government. Additionally, no other entities meet the criteria for inclusion in
the Authority’s financial statement as component units.

-15-



WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
NOTE2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Statement Presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards Part II. Financial Reporting.

GASB Codification sets forth standards for external financial reporting for all state and local
government entities, which include a requirement for a Statement of Net Position and a
Statement of Activities. It requires the classification of net position into three components: Net
Investment in Capital Assets; Restricted; and Unrestricted. These classifications are defined as
follows:

» Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.

» Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of external constraints
placed on the use of assets imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation of other governments or constraints imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

» Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of assets that do not
meet the definition of "Restricted" or "Net Investment in Capital Assets." Included in the
Authority’s unrestricted net assets of $31,928,981 is $16,638,551, which the Authority has
deposited into separate bank/investment accounts and has designated as the Improvement
Fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the
Authority's policy to use restricted resources first.

The Authority follows proprietary fund accounting and reporting requirements, which utilize
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
measurement focus is upon determination of net revenue, financial position, and changes in
cash flows. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from providing services and
delivering goods in connection with the Authority’s primary activities. The Authority’s primary
source of revenue is pumpage fees and surface water fees. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are considered non-operating revenues and expenses.

-16 -



‘WEST HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

NOTE 2. @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets

All capital assets, including infrastructure capital assets, are recorded at historical cost. Capital
assets (except land, easements and construction in progress) are depreciated or amortized using
the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Capital Asset Category Estimated Life
Water Distribution System 45 years
Interest in Joint Facilities 45 years
Capital Contributions 35-40 years

See Note 6 for additional disclosure.

Interest costs on assets acquired with tax-exempt borrowings are capitalized, net of interest
earned on related interest-bearing investments acquired with proceeds of the related
borrowings, from the date of borrowing until the assets are ready for their intended use. During
the current fiscal year, the Authority incurred interest costs of $11,173,035 on construction
related borrowings.

Pension
The Authority has not established a pension plan as the Authority does not have employees.
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that fees of office received by Directors are

considered to be wages subject to federal income tax withholding for payroll purposes only.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all amounts in checking accounts, money market accounts, savings
accounts, mutual funds, external investment pools and all highly liquid investments with 